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Financial Highlight

MR RHE

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

o Revenue decreased by 8.4% to approximately HK$164.3
million

o Revenue from mortgage loan receivables decreased by
22.8% to approximately HK$77.0 million

o Profit attributable to the equity shareholders decreased by
35.3% to approximately HK$55.9 million

o Net profit margin decreased by 14.2 percentage points to
34.0%

o Basic earnings per share is HK2.9 cents

o Gross pawn loan receivables increased by 5.2% to
approximately HK$189.9 million

o Gross mortgage loan receivables decreased by 12.8% to
approximately HK$670.7 million

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

o Total amount of new pawn loans granted increased by 6.5%
to approximately HK$872.0 million

o Average amount of pawn loans granted increased by 3.8%
to approximately HK$10,900 per transaction

° Number of new pawn loans (larger than HK$100,000)
granted decreased by 3.5% to 690 cases

o Total amount of new mortgage loans granted decreased by
36.4% to approximately HK$217.0 million

o Average amount of mortgage loans granted decreased by
20.5% to approximately HK$3.1 million

o Number of new mortgage loans granted decreased by
19.5% to 70 cases

o Net interest margin for pawn loans increased by 2.3
percentage points to 40.0%

o Net interest margin for mortgage loans decreased by 1.2
percentage points to 10.3%

o As at 28 February 2025, the average loan-to-value ratio of
the mortgage loan portfolio was kept at around 58.2%
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Five-year Financial Summary
HEFPBEEE

2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
—E-RE —E-E —EC-=F —T-F —E-—F

Profitability data (HK$'000) ZEFIEHEE (FEx)

Revenue from pawn loan HEEHER W
business
— Interest income from pawn - HEEFH I8
loans WA 8,496 9,477 14,411 10,081 8,171
— Interest income from pawn - EAF{EF AB&
loan receivables at fair value ZEBHE T2
through profit or loss FLEMA 67,686 63,367 56,693 50,131 48,002
— Gain on disposal of - HELKEEEZ
repossessed assets g 11,141 6,715 3,205 9,093 8,024

Total revenue from pawn loan — EEEHER 2 BN
business 87,323 79,559 74,309 69,305 64,197

Revenue from mortgage loan  RIBEAERER 2 I

business
— Interest income from - RIBEREFR
mortgage loans 2 EHA 76,972 99,748 91,532 82,672 118,571

Total revenue s 164,295 179,307 165,841 151,977 182,768
Operating profit R A 68,632 109,412 112,500 98,082 133,005
Profit attributable to equity IR E R T

shareholders 55,908 86,447 86,107 71,671 93,144
Earnings per share — basic GREF - AR (BIL)

(HK cents) 2.9 4.5 4.5 3.7 4.8
Profitability ratios (%) BRI E(%)
Operating profit margin R 41.8 61.0 67.8 64.5 72.8
Net profit margin P 34.0 48.2 51.9 47.2 51.0
Effective tax rate (Note 1) BB (MR 13.6 16.3 16.2 16.3 16.9
Return on total assets (Note 2) BE##LED R (Mz2) 4.7 7.3 7.5 6.2 76
Return on shareholders’ equity AR SR EzS %R (FzE3)

(Note 3) 5.0 8.0 8.4 7.3 9.8
Net interest margin (Note 4) FEE (M) 16.5 16.4 15.6 15.0 13.7

— pawn loans - HEER 40.0 37.7 37.6 38.7 40.2

- mortgage loans - BIBEARER 10.3 11.5 10.5 9.9 10.0

Note 1 Effective income tax rate is equal to the current tax divided by  FfiF1 BEAESMEENZEE 2 ENEITER K B AT

the profit before taxation for the respective year i )

Note 2 Return on total assets is calculated by dividing profit for the year  [ffsF2 EBEARELORIIZERNENGUNSEFENEEE
by the total assets as at the respective year HEtE

Note 3 Return on equity is calculated by dividing profit for the year by  [fi5¥3 #EREIMIIEFERNHMNGEUASFE 2 R @5
the total equity as at the respective year &

Note 4 Net interest margin during the year refers to our interest income  [MizF4 FRZFEEHREANEBEHBEERLIRBEME
in respect of our pawn loans and mortgage loans less the B MERANRAEERERS  RAFAERE
respective finance costs, divided by the average of month-end A2 ARERE R EHATE T
gross loan receivables balances of the corresponding loans during
the year
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Five-year Financial Summary
EFPHEEBE

2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
—EC-RE —T-E —T-=F —E-—F —E-—F
Operating ratios (as a e E (hikE
percentage of revenue) (%) Ha L) (%)
Staff costs BT 20.6 17.7 17.8 19.4 15.9
Rental expenses plus MeRZ B RE
depreciation of right-of-use BERE
assets 7.2 6.8 7.7 8.7 7.2
Advertising and promotions EEREE 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.8 1.7
Assets and liabilities data BEENEEHE
(HK$'000) (F#%x)
Non-current assets FRBEE 100,768 57,076 88,253 62,407 63,993
Current assets MENVEE 1,082,252 1,131,630 1,065,317 1,093,407 1,155,499
Current liabilities mEARE 59,745 101,811 89,815 122,515 178,866
Non-current liabilities FRBEE 15,297 7,213 33,710 50,388 91,773
Capital and reserves BEARR 1,107,978 1,079,682 1,030,045 982,911 948,853
Gross loan receivables - principal JEWWEH 45 - K¢ 870,645 949,978 927,595 890,322 934,097
— Gross pawn loan receivables - JEWHEEREE 189,923 180,479 173,104 164,026 132,901
— Gross mortgage loan - EWRBERER
receivables HBE 670,722 769,499 754,491 726,296 801,196
— Gross corporate loan - BRRARIERERE
receivables 10,000 - - - -
Assets and working capital EBEREELELHE
data
Current ratios (Note 5) TENLL & (PHFES) 18.1 11.1 11.9 8.9 6.5
Gearing ratios (%) (Note 6) BELE(%) (MiTe6) 4.3 7.7 9.3 15.0 26.2
Net assets value per share (HK$) S EEFE (Bx)
(Note 7) (BIzE7) 0.576 0.560 0.534 0.510 0.491
Note 5 Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current M55 REBHR RS ERZRBEER ARSI B E:T

liabilities as at the respective year end

Note 6 Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing total borrowings (summation
of bank loans and overdrafts, obligations under finance leases,
other loans, loans from immediate holding company and debt

securities issued) by total equity as at the respective year end

Note 7 Net assets value per share is calculated by dividing net assets by

the total number of shares as at the respective year end
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Five-year Financial Summary
LEMBHE

Total revenue from pawn loan business Revenue from mortgage loan business
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Return on shareholders’ equity
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LEMBHE

Net interest margin - pawn loans
=h
I?zu\i /\E FA

50
~ =)
S 8 ¢ & 8

40@

30

20

10

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Gross pawn loan receivables
JELI&/\E %i#tggﬁ
‘000

200,000

189.923

150,000

<
=)
9
~

132,901

100,000

50,000

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Gearing ratios (%)

EE L= (%)

20

10

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025



.”

Chairman Statement

ERWE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Oi Wah
Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited (the “Company” or “our
Company”), and its subsidiaries (together with the Company
collectively referred to as the “Group” or “our Group”), | am
delighted to present the annual report of the Group for the year
ended 28 February 2025 (“FY2025").

The Fed commenced interest rate reductions in September
2024. However, the extent of rate cuts was less than market
anticipations, and the global interest rates persisted at elevated
levels during the reporting year. Combined with external adverse
factors, including tightening monetary policy and geopolitical
tensions, these situations heightened market uncertainties and
impeded the pace of economic recovery across various regions.
Despite the overall market downtrend, the second-hand luxury
market remained resilient and the gold prices continued to ascend
steadily, contributing to the growing in the pawn business.

Amid ongoing external uncertainties, the Hong Kong property
market experienced a slowdown in transactions during the year,
which also restrained local loan demand. By leveraging the limited
partnership fund with PACM Group (Holdings) Limited (“PACM
Group”), we subscribed for the interests to explore overseas
potential projects and to expand our loan portfolio across various
markets. This strategic offshore expansion has started to realize
profitability and has contributed the overall profit growth of the
Group during the year. The Group believes that this segment
will serve as one of the main drivers of future profit growth,
continuously creating stable returns in the volatile market through
the development of a resilient and diversified portfolio.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my heartfelt
gratitude to our management team and employees for their
unwavering commitment and dedication to the growth of the
Group. | also sincerely thank our customers and shareholders
for their continued support. The hard work and perseverance
of our team during challenging times have been instrumental in
enabling us to maintain sustainable performance. As the economy
gradually recovers, we are committed to seizing opportunities
through innovation and to delivering sustainable growth for our
shareholders.

Chan Kai Ho, Edward
Chairman and Executive Director

27 May 2025
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Management Discussion and Analysis

O

BUSINESS REVIEW

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited (the “Company”
or "our Company”), and its subsidiaries (together with the
Company collectively referred to as the “Group” or “our Group”)
is a financing service provider in Hong Kong operating under
the brand name of “Oi Wah", principally engaged in providing
secured financing, including mortgage loans and pawn loans.

MORTGAGE LOAN BUSINESS

For the year ended 28 February 2025 (“FY2025"), the economy
has started to recover in a gradual progress, resulting in a
moderate increase in demand for loans. The revenue from the
mortgage loan business was approximately HK$77.0 million and
accounted for approximately 46.9% of the Group’s total revenue
during the year. The amount of gross mortgage loan receivables
was approximately HK$670.7 million as at 28 February 2025.
During the year, net interest margin of the mortgage loan business
is about 10.3%.
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)lanagement Discussion and Analysis

In FY2025, the Group has maintained a prudent approach when
granting loans, underpinned by a focus on building a resilient
loan portfolio amid the uncertain environment brought about by
the pandemic. We are of the view that maintaining a cautious
underwriting stance and healthy loan portfolio will position the
Group well for the economic recovery and eventual normalization
ahead. During the year, the average loan-to-value ratio for first
mortgage was approximately 58.4%, while overall average loan-
to-value ratio for subordinate mortgage was approximately 49.6%,
of which, average loan-to-value ratio of subordinate mortgage
that the Group participate in was approximately 21.8%.

PAWN LOAN BUSINESS

During FY2025, the revenue from the pawn loan business
increased from HK$79.6 million to HK$87.3 million, representing
an increase of 9.7% or HK$7.7 million. The increase was mainly
attributed to the robustness of gold prices and an active second-
hand luxury market, especially for luxury watches, thereby
positioning the pawn loan business as a strategic hedge against
economic cycles.

During the year, the Group has continued to channel resources
to advertising and promotion to enhance the Group's brand
exposure. Such effort has generated demand for one-to-one pawn
loan appointment services for pawn loans exceeding HK$0.1
million.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The Federal Reserve System of the Unite States (“the Fed’s")
interest rate cuts were more cautious than market expectations
and the global monetary policy tightening cycle has remained.
Coupled with escalating geopolitical tensions, these excessive
external factors have contributed to a stagnation in global
economic growth. The risk aversion sentiments among investors
have risen, serving as a driving force behind the growing demand
for gold.

During the year, gold price remained relatively volatile at high
levels, and has reached new historic highs. Given the ongoing
geopolitical tensions and inflationary pressures, we believe that
gold prices are likely to remain robust. As long as there are no
significant declines in the near term, we expect limited impact on
our business.
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)lanagmnenl Discussion and ;\nallysis

In addition, the market for pre-owned timepieces, especially
luxury watches, continued to be buoyant and served as a catalyst
for customers to utilize our pawn loans as a funding channel,
thereby supporting the growth of our pawn loan business. Moving
forward, we are committed to providing the prestigious customer
experience and maintaining our leading position as a preferred
pawn loan provider, offering a comprehensive range of flexible
financing options.

Along with the limited stimulation on the transaction of the local
residential property market by the Hong Kong Government'’s
proposed measures, the residential property prices in Hong Kong
have declined by 7.0% in 2024. As the market supply persists in
expanding, it is anticipated that the pace of property launches
and the level of market competition will remain intense. We will
continue to monitor property price movements closely and seek
to capitalize on emerging opportunities to optimize returns for
investors and shareholders.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Our Group’s revenue decreased from approximately HK$179.3
million for the year ended 29 February 2024 ("FY2024") to
approximately HK$164.3 million for FY2025, representing a
decrease of approximately HK$15.0 million or 8.4%. The decrease
was attributable to the decrease in our interest income from
mortgage business by approximately HK$22.7 million or 22.8%
from approximately HK$99.7 million in FY2024 to approximately
HK$77.0 million in FY2025, netting off with the increase in
our revenue from pawn loan business by approximately HK$7.7
million or 9.7% from approximately HK$79.6 million in FY2024 to
approximately HK$87.3 million in FY2025.

Mortgage loan business

The decrease in our interest income from mortgage business
was mainly due to the average month end balance for the
gross mortgage loans receivables for the year decreased from
approximately HK$821.9 million in FY2024 to approximately
HK$714.3 million in FY2025 with total new mortgage loans
granted of approximately HK$217.0 million during FY2025 (FY2024:
approximately HK$341.2 million).
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)lanagemenl Discussion and ;\nall\'sis

EEENWRD

Pawn loan business

The increase in our pawn loan business was due to the increase
in our interest income earned on our pawn loan receivables
by approximately HK$3.3 million or 4.5% from approximately
HK$72.9 million in FY2024 to approximately HK$76.2 million in
FY2025, together with the increase in revenue from disposal of
repossessed assets by approximately HK$4.4 million.

The increase in our interest income earned on our pawn loan
receivables was mainly attributable to the amount of new pawn
loan receivables granted increased from approximately HK$819.0
million in FY2024 to approximately HK$872.0 million in FY2025.

Revenue from disposal of repossessed assets represents the gain/
(loss) of the Group as we sold the repossessed assets in the event
of default in repayment of our pawn loans. The increase in our
gain on disposal of repossessed assets in FY2025 was mainly due
to the increase in the gold price per ounce from around US$2,200
in March 2024 to around US$2,900 in February 2025. Since every
pawn loan has a loan term of four lunar months, the revenue
increased with the appreciation of gold price during FY2025 and
thus the increase in gain on disposal of repossessed assets in
FY2025 was recorded.

Other income, gains or losses

Other income increased from approximately HK$4.7 million in
FY2024 to approximately HK$11.7 million in FY2025, representing
an increase of approximately HK$7.0 million or 148.9%, which
was mainly due to (i) the increase in dividend income from
financial assets at FVPL of approximately HK$2.3 million while no
such income was received in FY2024, (ii) the increase of gain from
changes in fair value of financial assets at FVPL of approximately
HK$2.2 million since the Group subscribed an unlisted fund in
March 2024 and (iii) the increase in bank interest income by
approximately HK$3.3 million; netting off with the decrease in the
rental income of approximately HK$0.6 million in FY2025.
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Operating expenses

Operating expenses increased by approximately HK$1.6 million
or 2.7% from approximately HK$59.5 million in FY2024 to
approximately HK$61.1 million in FY2025.

During FY2025, staff costs increased by approximately HK$2.1
million or 6.6% from approximately HK$31.7 million in FY2024 to
approximately HK$33.8 million in FY2025. The increase was mainly
contributed by the increase in the salaries and other benefits to
staff of approximately HK$2.2 million.

According to HKFRS 16, all operating lease with contract terms
of more than 1 year should be treated as finance lease. Thus, the
contractual liabilities for the rental agreements are discounted
and recognised as lease assets. Rental expenses and depreciation
for right-to-use assets slightly decreased by approximately HK$0.2
million or 1.7% from approximately HK$12.1 million in FY2024
to approximately HK$11.9 million in FY2025. The decrease was
mainly due to the relocation of one of our pawnshops in Shatin
in March 2024 in order to lower the rental cost, netting off with
leasing a hostel for imported labours in November 2024.

Apart from staff costs, rental expenses and depreciation for
right-to-use assets as mention above, other operating expenses
decreased by approximately HK$0.3 million or 1.9% from
approximately HK$15.7 million in FY2024 to approximately
HK$15.4 million in FY2025. This was mainly due to the decrease
in legal and professional fees by approximately HK$0.7 million.

Finance costs

During the year, the finance costs decreased by approximately
HK$2.2 million or 36.1% from approximately HK$6.1 million in
FY2024 to approximately HK$3.9 million in FY2025. It was mainly
due to the decrease in debt securities issued in FY2025.

Impairment losses recognised on loan receivables

During FY2025, the impairment losses recognised on loan
receivables of approximately HK$46.3 million (FY2024: 15.1
million) were measured based on the requirement under HKFRS 9.

The impairment losses recognised on pawn loan receivables by
approximately HK$4.6 million in FY2025 represented a further
impairment made on the pawn loan agreements (same pawn
loan agreements impaired in FY2024) where the management
considered there was an increased likelihood of the value of the
collaterals of these three loans not being able to fully cover the
underlying outstanding loan amount and interest.
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The impairment losses recognised on mortgage receivables
by approximately HK$41.7 million in FY2025 represented the
impairment made on several first mortgage loans (some of them
represented a further impairment on mortgage loans which had
been impaired in FY2024) and several subordinated mortgage
loans. All these mortgage loans are defaulted loans and the
management had taken actions on the respective borrowers.
Due to a noticeable decline in property prices in FY2025, the
management considered there was an increased likelihood of the
value of the collaterals of these mortgage loans not being able to
fully cover the underlying outstanding loan amounts and interests.

The impairment losses recognised on pawn loan receivables
by approximately HK$4.8 million in FY2024 represented an
impairment made on four pawn loan agreements where the
management considered there was an increased likelihood of
the value of the collaterals of these four loans not being able to
fully cover the underlying outstanding loan amount and interest.
Among these four pawn loans, one of them had been fully
written-off during FY2024.

The impairment losses recognised on mortgage receivables
by approximately HK$10.3 million in FY2024 represented
the impairment made on several first mortgage loans and a
subordinated mortgage loan. All these mortgage loans are
defaulted loans and the management had taken actions on the
respective borrowers. Due to a decline in the property prices in
FY2024, the management considered there was an increased
likelihood of the value of the collaterals of these mortgage loans
not being able to fully cover the underlying outstanding loan
amounts and interests.

Income tax expenses

Our Group's effective tax rate decreased from approximately
16.3% in FY2024 to approximately 13.6% in FY2025.

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year

Our Group's profit for FY2025 decreased to approximately
HK$55.9 million from approximately HK$86.4 million in FY2024,
representing a decrease of approximately HK$30.5 million or
35.3%.
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The decrease was mainly attributable to (i) the decrease in
revenue by approximately HK$15.0 million, and (ii) the increase
in impairment losses recognised on loan receivables amounted to
approximately HK$31.2 million, netting off with (i) the increase in
other income amounted to approximately HK$7.0 million and (ii)
the decrease in finance costs and income tax expenses amounted
to approximately HK$2.2 million and approximately HK$8.0 million
respectively.

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group adopts a prudent funding and treasury policy and
maintained a healthy financial position during FY2025. During
FY2025, the Group’s operational and capital requirements were
financed principally through retained earnings, bank loans and
overdrafts, loans from the immediate holding company and debt
securities issued. All borrowings of the Group are denominated at
HKD.

As at 28 February 2025, all outstanding interest-bearing bank
loans and overdrafts were repayable in one year and bore interest
at variable rates. The bank loans and overdrafts were secured by
a corporate guarantee executed by the Company. During FY2025,
the Group had fulfilled all the financial covenants, if any, under
the Group’s banking facilities.

As at 28 February 2025, the loans from immediately holding
company were repayable in one year and bore interest at 5%
per annum. The loans were secured by a corporate guarantee
executed by the Company.

During FY2025, all the debt securities issued were fully repaid.

Based on the Group's current and anticipated levels of operation,
the Group’s future operations and capital requirements will be
mainly financed through bank loans and overdrafts, loans from
the immediate holding company, retained earnings and share
capital.
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As at 28 February 2025, cash and cash equivalents (net of
bank overdraft) amounted to approximately HK$215.7 million,
representing a net increase of approximately HK$45.1 million as
compared to the position as at 29 February 2024. The increase
was attributable to the following items:
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For the year For the year
ended 28 ended 29
February 2025 February 2024
BZE HZE
—E-REF —ECEF
—A=Z+NH —A=+hB8
IEFE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET Fi&TT
Net cash generated from operating activities KEEBPSIRE R 151,767 72,079
Purchase of financial assets at FVPL BEZAFEIFABRZSR
BE (38,181) -
Payments for the purchase of plant and BEME MERE 2 RIE
equipment (675) (1,785)
Repayments of debt securities BEISEHZER (26,000) (12,000)
Net repayments of bank loans RITERZERFHE (10,000) -
Payments for repurchase of shares B [0 i () 2 78 (631) -
Dividend paid BT E (26,981) (36,810)
Finance costs paid ERVE R (3.351) (5,406)
Dividend received from financial assets at FVPL BAFEFAEBERZZSREE
2R E 2,172 -
Other net outflow HAth 7t 558 (3.065) (7,865)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents Be MRS EWE T8 45,055 8,213

Pledge of assets

As at 29 February 2024, the Group had pledged its mortgage
loan receivables with net book value of approximately HK$335.7
million for the purpose of obtaining facilities from banks and
other independent third parties. No assets had been pledged as at
28 February 2025.

Contingent liabilities

There were no significant contingent liabilities for the Group as at
28 February 2025.
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Capital commitments

During FY2025, the Group has an investment commitment related
to a capital contribution obligation for an unlisted fund. Total
investment commitment which has been contracted but not yet
reflected in the consolidated financial statements amounted to
approximated HK$73.8 million as at 28 February 2025. There
were no significant commitments for capital expenditure as at 29
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February 2024.

Key financial ratios FEMBER
As at As at
28 February 29 February
2025 2024
R-ZZBE_HE NoZ—puE
—H=+NH —A=+h8
Current ratio™ TENLEL RO 18.1x 11.1x
Gearing ratio? BELE® 4.3% 7.7%
For the For the
year ended year ended
28 February 29 February
2025 2024
BZE HE
—EBCRF —TomEF
—A=+NH —A=Z+ANH
LEE IEFE
Return on total assets® BEBBERRY 4.7% 7.3%
Return on equity® - EEr 5.0% 8.0%
Net profit margin® HEA R 34.0% 48.2%
Net interest margin® HEEEE 16.5% 16.4%
- pawn loan services —HE B ARTE 40.0% 37.7%
— mortgage loan services —IRIBE R E TR 10.3% 11.5%

Notes: PEE -

(1) Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current (1) REILLETREFRZRBDEERARBEEH -

liabilities as at the respective year end.

(2)  Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing total borrowings (summation  (2) EELEDNREFRZEEE (FTERREX B

of bank loans and overdrafts, loans from the immediate holding
company, other loans and debt securities issued) by total equity as
at the respective year end.

BB AR R ERETE

BEERARZER HUERMEHTERRES 28

(3)  Return on total assets is calculated by dividing profit for the year by ~ (3)  BE#REREI I EF MG FIFR AR F R E ELRRRT

the total assets as at the respective year end.
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(4)  Return on equity is calculated by dividing profit for the year by the
total equity as at the respective year end.

(5)  Net profit margin is calculated by dividing profit for the year by the
turnover for the respective year.

(6)  Net interest margin during the year refers to our interest income in
respect of our pawn loans and mortgage loans less the respective
finance costs, divided by the average of month-end gross loan
receivables balances of the corresponding loans during the year.

Current ratio

Our Group's current ratio increased from approximately 11.1
times as at 29 February 2024 to approximately 18.1 times as at
28 February 2025. The increase in mainly due to the repayment
of bank loans and overdrafts and debt securities issued which
amounted to approximately HK$10.0 million and approximately
HK$26.0 million respectively.

Gearing ratio

Our Group's gearing ratio decreased from approximately 7.7%
as at 29 February 2024 to approximately 4.3% as at 28 February
2025, which was mainly triggered by the repayment of bank loans
and overdrafts and debt securities issued which amounted to
approximately HK$10.0 million and approximately HK$26.0 million
respectively.

Return on total assets,
margin

return on equity, and net profit

Our return on total assets, return on equity, and net profit
margin decreased from approximately 7.3%, 8.0% and 48.2% in
FY2024 to 4.7%, 5.0% and 34.0% in FY2025 respectively, which
was mainly due to the impairment losses recognised on loan
receivables by approximately HK$46.3 million in FY2025.

Net interest margin

There was an slightly increased in our net interest margin from
approximately 16.4% in FY2024 to approximately 16.5% in
FY2025.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's operations, financial conditions, profits and growth
prospects are affected by a number of risks and uncertainties as
outlined below. These factors are not exhaustive and there may
be other risks in addition to those shown below which are not
known to the Group or which may not be material now but could
become material in the future.

Financial risk

Financial risk factors include credit risk, interest rate risk, liquidity
risk and fair value risk. As a money lender in Hong Kong providing
pawn loan and mortgage loan financings to corporations or
private individuals which are secured with collaterals, credit risk is
regarded as the prime risk of the Group.

Mortgage business

For mortgage business, the Group generates revenue from interest
received from the provision of loans to corporate and private
individual customers, primarily small and medium enterprises
requiring working capital. The Group's principal loan products for
mortgage business are (i) first mortgage loans, which are secured
by the first mortgage on the borrowers’ real estates; and (ii)
subordinated mortgage loans, which are secured by mortgages
subordinated to the first mortgages charged on the borrowers’
pledged properties. The Group mainly offers mortgage loan
financings which are secured against real estate assets located in
Hong Kong which include residential, commercial and industrial
real estate assets. Usually, the term of our mortgage loans is
twelve months.

The Group has a credit policy in place and the exposures to
credit risk are monitored on an ongoing basis. Approval for loan
applications, together with the loan amount and corresponding
interest rate, are determined based on a number of factors
including, amongst others, the credit history and profile of the
applicant, the property type, profile and valuation of the proposed
property to be mortgaged and the prevailing market conditions.
In the majority of the cases, the Group grants loan with a loan-to
value ratio of no more than 70% at the date of grant. As at 29
February 2024, the overall weighted average loan-to-value ratio of
the Group's loan portfolio is managed at around 58.2%.
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The Group also establishes standard procedures and the mortgage
department is responsible for ongoing monitoring of loan
recoverability, which includes the repayment status and a quarterly
review on the market value of the underlying collateral, and loan
collection. During FY2025, approximately HK$41.7 million of the
impairment losses recognised on mortgage receivables was made.
It was mainly represented the impairment made on several first
mortgage loans (some of them represented a further impairment
on mortgage loans which had been impaired in FY2024) and
several subordinated mortgage loans. All these mortgage loans
are defaulted loans and the management had taken actions on
the respective borrowers. For details, please refer to the section
headed “Financial Review"” under Management Discussion and
Analysis.

Pawn loan business

For pawn loan business, the Group generates revenue from (i)
interest received from the provision of loans to corporate and
private individual customers, and (ii) upon loan default, the
potential gain/loss on the disposal of the respective collaterals
from the defaulted loan. The major category of collaterals we
received in pawn loan business are gold and jewelleries, diamond,
brand watches and consumer electronic products.

The Group establishes internal guidelines for the pawnshop staff
for granting each pawn loan. Customer identification, evaluation
of ownership of the collaterals and the valuation of the collaterals
are the major factors we consider before we grant our pawn loan.
The Group usually grants loans with a loan-to-value ratio ranging
from 50% to 85%, depending on the type of collateral and the
valuation made at the point of granting the loan. In addition,
approval is required to be obtained from management if the loan
amount is greater than HK$60,000 for each single transaction.

During FY2025, approximately HK$4.6 million of the impairment
losses recognised on pawn loan receivables was made. It
represented a further impairment made on the pawn loan
agreements (same pawn loan agreements impaired in FY2024).
For details, please refer to the section headed “Financial Review”
under Management Discussion and Analysis.

BEERR DN

AEETRIZERRF  MZBHBMREERENA

e BEEFEFRLREEBIRFERNTEE
TZEEEMUANRBHIRR -R_E-_AFTHFE
MELIZ B E SRR REREL A41,700,000%
Lo EETBERASE—RIBER (HFBoRERZ
S_NFMREFERENERIERERNE—TR
BE)R—SBRFEBERORE TEZSHBER
BEBERER BEEDHHABERARRITE 5
BE2MEEETwmAkOTA [BE0IE] —5-

27
REBME AREAOARARBATFE
REEFMBME  R)mERER AL EE/HEE
KEREBERYHEE RS, BRPEERA -
BAEREEREZGPRINEEZARDERRES
MIRE O mEFRIBEEETEM-

B B
i}
my S
e
5

AEBARETEIHRIENEBEAEERNAEIE
5le HMBEMHREERA  GEEEFLHFHOHEH -
ERVAERNFERERDNEESEERE-
AEEERERE  BESREBENDOEL  RE
50%-85% HIE A LBl - WH BN EREFEITHE - it
S MEBERZNERESHEEB60,0008 T - RIZAK
BEEEMRLE-

R-ZF-_RAFHBFE SHEKRAEERERRE
JE518494,600,000/8 7T - EL 15 5L A E & 515 % 1F H #9
E-DRE (R - - MEHRFRERENRE SN
BEAAR) - GRS F2HAERETREITEAT
[ F5oEE] —&fe

Annual Report 2025 —ZE - HE 4§



)lanagmnenl Discussion and ;\nall\'sis

The Group has a wide and diversify customer base. For mortgage
loan business, loan size of each loan ranges from approximately
HK$0.1 million to approximately HK$37.0 million during FY2025.
For pawn loan business, each pawn loan size ranges from
approximately HK$100 to approximately HK$8,000,000 during
FY2025. As at 28 February 2025, our loan portfolio was diversified
and approximately 6.5% (As at 29 February 2024: 4.8%) and
23.6% (As at 29 February 2024: 19.0%) of the total gross loan
receivables was due from the Group’s largest customer and the
five largest customers respectively.

Further information on the internal control and risk management
measures in relation to credit risk and other aforesaid financial
risk factors of the Group are elaborated in Note 27 “Financial
risk management and fair value” to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report.

Operational risk

Operational risk is defined as the risk of loss resulting from
inadequate or failed internal processes, human and system errors
or from external events. Responsibility for managing operational
risks basically rests with every function at departmental levels. Key
functions in the Group are guided by their standard operating
procedures, limits of authority and reporting framework.
Management will identify and assess key operational exposures
regularly so that appropriate risk response can be taken.

Market risk

Performance of the Group's business will be affected by various
market factors in Hong Kong, including but not limited to
economic conditions, valuation of the luxury goods and the overall
property market conditions in Hong Kong. A downturn in (i) the
economy, (ii) value of luxury goods, and/or (iii) property market in
Hong Kong may result not only in a decline in the number of real
estate and luxury goods transactions, which may limit the growth
of the Group’s pawn and mortgage loan portfolio, but also a
decline in the value of the underlying coallaterals in respect of the
Group's pawn and mortgage loans, which may increase the risk
of impairment of the Group’s mortgage loan portfolio or result in
loss on disposal if the pawn loan default.

For mortgage business, the Group has implemented policies to
carry out continuous monitoring of the property market and the
collateral value of the underlying mortgage loan portfolio so that
appropriate risk response can be taken.
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For pawn loan business, except for the internal guidelines for
granting the loan, monthly review and discussion between
management and pawnshop staff are made in order to ensure
everyone is kept updated on the trend of the luxury goods in the
market in order to mitigate the potential risks exposure.

Risk management

The Group has established and maintained sufficient risk
management procedures to identify and control various types of
risk within the organisation and the external environment with
active management participation and effective internal control
procedures in the best interest of the Group and its shareholders.
Details of its risk management system are elaborated on pages
41 to 66 under section “Corporate Governance Report” of this
annual report.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 28 February 2025, our Group had a total of 50 staff
(29 February 2024: 50). Total staff costs (including Directors’
emoluments) were approximately HK$33.8 million for FY2025
(FY2024: approximately HK$31.7 million). Remuneration is
determined with reference to market conditions and the
performance, qualifications and experience of each individual
employee. Bonus based on individual performance will be paid to
employees as recognition of and reward for their contributions.
Other benefits mainly include contributions to statutory mandatory
provident fund scheme to our Group’s employees in Hong Kong.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Company understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its employees, customers and other stakeholders
to meet its immediate and long-term goals. The Company will
continue to ensure effective communication and maintain good
relationship with each of its key stakeholders.

During FY2025, there was no material and significant dispute
between the Company and its employees, customers and/or other
stakeholders.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

On 12 March 2024, Oi Wah Mortgage Limited (“Oi Wah
Mortgage”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into the agreement with the PACM OW GP Il Limited,
pursuant to which Oi Wah Mortgage agreed to subscribe for
limited partnership interests in PACM OW Global Special Situation
Fund Il L.P. (“the Fund”) at the amount of HK$112,000,000.
For details of the subscription, please refer to the Company’s
announcements dated 12 March 2024 and 17 April 2024.

The investment objective of the Fund is to achieve long-term
capital appreciation through investment strategies including asset-
backed direct lending, non-performing debt acquisition, acquisition
financing, stretch senior financing, project financing, bridge
financing, and other debt related strategies. The geographic focus
is Hong Kong and overseas (especially in developed markets of
common law jurisdictions).

As at 28 February 2025, the Group has contributed approximately
HK$38.2 million to the Fund. The fair value of the Group’s
investment in the Fund amounted to approximately HK$40.4
million as at 28 February 2025, representing approximately 3.4%
of the Group’s total assets. For FY2025, the Group had, through
the Fund, received dividend of approximately HK$2.3 million.

The Group expects, through investing in the Fund, to generate
stable returns across various markets through a diversified
portfolio of overseas projects.

Save as disclosed above, our Group did not hold any significant
investments and did not engage in any material acquisitions or
disposals during FY2025.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The business activities of the Group were denominated in HKD.
The Directors did not consider the Group was exposed to any
significant foreign exchange risks during FY2025. As the impact
from foreign exchange exposure was minimal, the Directors were
of the view that no hedging against foreign currency exposure
was necessary. In view of the operational needs, the Group will
continue to monitor the foreign currency exposure from time to
time and take necessary actions to minimise the exchange related
risks.
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FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
AND CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group does not have
any present plans for material investments and capital assets.

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, the global economy is anticipated to continue its
moderate recovery, while macroeconomic policy uncertainties are
expected to persist. The Directors believe that the Hong Kong
property market will experience cautious trajectory. To inject
impetus into the profit growth, the Group strategically partnered
with PACM Group to establish a fund which marked our entry into
the real estate private credit institutional investment management
sector. We will proactively explore expansion opportunities in
developed markets and maintain prudent investment oversight
to mitigate market risks and maximize returns for investors and
shareholders.

In order to further enhance customer experience and maintain
robust operational profitability, the Group will continue to
review strategic shop locations and explore potential acquisition
opportunities within the established pawn businesses. These
initiatives align with our long term strategy to strengthen our
market-leading position and ensure sustainable long-term growth
amid evolving industry dynamics.
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The Board is pleased to submit this report of the Directors
together with the audited financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 28 February 2025.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group are providing secured financing business in
Hong Kong, including pawn loans and mortgage loans.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 28 February 2025 and
the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 78
to 176 of this annual report.

CASH FLOW POSITION

The cash flow position of the Group for the year ended 28
February 2025 is set out and analysed in the consolidated
statement of cash flows set out on pages 82 to 83 of this annual
report.

DIVIDEND

At our Board meeting held on Tuesday, 27 May 2025 (the “Board
Meeting”), our Directors recommended the payment of a final
dividend (the “Final Dividend”) of HK0.81 cents per ordinary
share, together with the interim dividend of HKO0.64 cents per
share declared and paid during FY2025, represent 49.94% of
the profit attributable to the shareholders (“Shareholders”) for
FY2025.

The Final Dividend is subject to approval by the Shareholders at
the AGM and will be paid on Wednesday, 21 August 2025 to the
Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
our Company at the close of business on Friday, 8 August 2025.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to determine the identity of our Shareholders who are
entitled to attend and vote at the AGM, all duly completed
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with our Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar,
Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited at 2103B, 21/F., 148
Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong, no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Friday, 25 July 2025. The register of members of our Company will
be closed from Monday, 28 July 2025 to Thursday, 31 July 2025,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will
be registered.

In order to establish the identity of the Shareholders of our
Company who are entitled to the Final Dividend, all duly
completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with our Company’s Hong Kong
branch share registrar, Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited
at 2103B, 21/F, 148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong, no
later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 5 August 2025. The register
of members of our Company will be closed from Wednesday, 6
August 2025 to Friday, 8 August 2025, both days inclusive, during
which no transfer of shares will be registered.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past five financial years is set out on pages 5 to 8 of this
annual report.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profit attributable to shareholders, before dividends, of HK$55.9
million (2024: HK$86.4 million) has been transferred to reserves.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 28 February 2025, the aggregate amount of the distributable
reserves of the Company was approximately HK$274.8 million
(2024: approximately HK$290.3 million).

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and note
26 to the consolidated financial statements.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements of plant and equipment of the Group
for the year ended 28 February 2025 are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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DONATIONS

The Group made charitable donation of approximately HK$0.2
million during FY2025.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in Company’s share capital for the
year ended 28 February 2025 are set out in note 26(c) to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 28 February
2025 and up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chan Chart Man (passed away on 16 July 2024)

Ms. Chan Mei Fong

Ms. Chan Ying Yu

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion
Mr. Ng Siu Hong

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lam On Tai
Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert
Dr. Yip Ngai

Pursuant to Article 108 of the articles of association of the
Company (“Articles of Association”) and code provision B.2.2
of the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix C1 to the
Listing Rules, one-third of the Directors will retire by rotation at
the annual general meeting of the Company and will be eligible
for re-election at that meeting. Accordingly, Mr. Chan Kai Ho
Edward, Mr. Ng Siu Hong and Mr. Lam On Tai will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

Details of the Directors standing for re-election at the AGM are
set out in the circular sent to the Shareholders of the Company
together with this annual report.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS'
AND SHORT POSITIONS

UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 28 February 2025, so far as is known to the Directors or
chief executives of the Company, the following persons other than
a Director or chief executive of the Company had an interest or a
short position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
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INTERESTS FERRAKROKRMEBERG ZERZR
IN SHARES AND %2

section 336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"):

RZE-_RAF-_A-+N B BEEXARTEE1T
BABFRTA AR BRIEES KSR ([#%F
RHEHREI]) E336FABETHFE 2 ERMATREE A
TAL(BEBFRARREZTHRABRIN RARF]
&t RABBERGO P HEEERSAE

Approximate
percentage of

Number of shareholding
Name of Shareholder Capacity ordinary shares (Note 2)
BaERas T
REETE,/ 1% 1% LimRER (fizt2)
Kwan Lik Holding Limited Beneficial interest 1,348,263,024 70.06
(Note 1) (f#iZ1) ey £
Kwan Lik (BVI) Limited (Note 1) (Hfi#1) Interest in a controlled corporation 1,348,263,024 70.06
REEEE 2 B
TMF (Cayman) Limited (Note 1) (ffi£1) Trustee 1,348,263,024 70.06
(Note 3) (H1iE3) XA
Ms. Chan Nga Yu (Note 3) (Note 5) Discretionary trust interests 1,348,263,024 70.06
BRI+ (MaE3) (ME5) 5 ETER
Interest held jointly with another person 53,477,564 2.78
i A R RRE 2
Ms. Mui Hang Sin (Note 3) (Note 5) Discretionary trust interests 1,348,263,024 70.06
walt (HaF3) (Krits5) WEETER
Interest held jointly with another person 53,477,564 2.78
Bty A RIFFA 2 R
Great Roc Capital Limited (Note 4) (#77#4)  Beneficial interest 191,842,029 9.97
EniEn
Mr. Yan Kam Cheong (Note 4) Interest in a controlled corporation 191,842,029 9.97

RES KL (Hit4)

Notes:

NREEE L s

B3

1. The 1,348,263,024 shares is held by Kwan Lik Holding Limited, 1.
which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Kwan Lik (BVI) Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of TMF (Cayman) Limited.

2. There were 1,924,308,406 shares of the Company in issue as at 28 2.

February 2025.

3. These 1,348,263,024 shares were owned by a discretionary trust 3.
whose trustee, TMF (Cayman) Limited, indirectly owns the entire
issued share capital of Kwan Lik Holding Limited. Ms. Chan Nga
Yu, Ms. Mui Hang Sin, Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, the late Mr. Chan
Chart Man, Ms. Chan Mei Fong, Ms. Chan Ying Yu and Mr. Chan
Kai Kow Macksion are the discretionary beneficiaries of the trust.
Such shares represented the same interests and were therefore

duplicated between them.

Kwan Lik Holding Limited#%7% 1,348,263,024% % {7 °
Kwan Lik Holding Limited/&Kwan Lik (BVI) Limited
ZZ2EWEB2AT  MKwan Lik (BVI) LimitedBIATMF
(Cayman) Limitedz 2 &MBA G -

RZEBE-_RAF-_A-_+NB AREE %
1,924,308,406f% f% 15 °

#%1,348,263,024R IR 1D BB —IEIIEE-tHA - MZE
2 ZFEATMF (Cayman) LimitedE & Kwan Lik
Holding Limited,z 2 &8 2 1T - FRIEHI 2L £+ - 18
Bzt BREEEE BRRXGE (BB -BRES
T+ BREBMZTEREREEAZEAZBERE
A ZERMBAERER  WEEFE -
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4. Great Roc Capital Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Yan Kam Cheong
who is the substantial Shareholder of the Company.

5. Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, Ms. Chan Mei Fong, Ms. Chan Ying
Yu, Ms. Chan Nga Yu and Ms. Mui Hang Sin are parties to an
agreement covered by section 317 of the SFO, therefore, pursuant
to the provisions of the SFO, each of them is deemed to be
interested in the shares of the Company owned by the other parties
to the agreement.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 28 February 2025, there was no
other person so far known to the Directors or chief executives of
the Company, other than the Directors or chief executives of the
Company as having an interest or a short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register,
whose record is required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS" INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 28 February 2025, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive of the Company and their respective
associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which he was taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO); or were required pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO
to be entered in the register referred to therein; or were required
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange, are set out below:
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Interest in the shares of the Company

Approximate
percentage of

Number of shareholding

Name of Director Nature of interest ordinary shares (Note 2)
AR B DL
EEUH HEmEE TERER (KraE2)
Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward (Note 1) (Note 3) Discretionary trust interests 1,348,263,024 70.06
BRE A (Kat1) (BaE3) BB E R
Beneficial interest 53,477,564 2.78
B
Ms. Chan Mei Fong (Note 1) (Note 3) Discretionary trust interests 1,348,263,024 70.06
PREF 22+ (KaF1) (K1:E3) RiEE TR
Interest held jointly with another person 53,477,564 2.78
Hith A HFIRE 2w
Ms. Chan Ying Yu (Note 1) (Note 3)  Discretionary trust interests 1,348,263,024 70.06
FREm AT (K1) (BFE3) 5 EEER
Interest held jointly with another person 53,477,564 2.78
Bt A HFRA 2R
Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion (Note 1) Discretionary trust interests 1,348,263,024 70.06

BRECERSE A4 (Afat1) BB E R

Notes: Bt

1. These 1,348,263,024 shares were owned by a discretionary trust 1.  3%1,348,263,024& & i —BRISEEHESR - MZiE
whose trustee, TMF (Cayman) Limited, indirectly owns the entire L2 ZFEATMF (Cayman) Limited@ 5 %A Kwan Lik
issued share capital of Kwan Lik Holding Limited. Ms. Chan Nga Holding Limited,z 2 &8 1T « FRIEE 22 + - 16
Yu, Ms. Mui Hang Sin, Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, the late Mr. Chan Bl BRI EE BRSO E (B ~BES
Chart Man, Ms. Chan Mei Fong, Ms. Chan Ying Yu and Mr. Chan T+ BEEZ T RERERE ARSI BIES %
Kai Kow Macksion are the discretionary beneficiaries of the trust. A ZERMDBERER  WEEFTE-
Such shares represented the same interests and were therefore
duplicated between them.

2. There were 1,924,308,406 shares of the Company inissue as at28 2. R-_ZT-_AF - A -+ B  ARAE #F1T
February 2025. 1,924,308,406% % 15 °

3. Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, Ms. Chan Mei Fong, Ms. Chan Ying 3. BRI A REFLZ L BERLZLT BRifmrtk
Yu, Ms. Chan Nga Yu and Ms. Mui Hang Sin are parties to an BHIZEABSFRBEGRG TEI7THFTREN T
agreement covered by section 317 of the SFO, therefore, pursuant EEIHTT Bt RIBEH MEEEAIMG AR
to the provisions of the SFO, each of them is deemed to be RREBENBEMITOFAEBNRRFRNDT =
interested in the shares of the Company owned by the other parties B e
to the agreement.

Save as disclosed above, as at 28 February 2025, none of the KB EXFIIEEEN R_ZE_AF_A=-+N\H =

Directors and chief executives of the Company or their respective
associates had any interests and short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which he was taken or deemed to

ERARBEBTRABXEES B ZBHEABRER
AR HALAEBAE (E8 R EHFRAEHRGIFEXV
#B) 2 B - AR RESFTHERERE F MR
ERBIEXVERE 7R FE 8D BAME AR A MBI Z

T s AR (BRREES MR R AR FRX
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have under such provisions of the SFO); or were required pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO to be entered in the register referred to
therein; or were required pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended 28
February 2025 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate; and none of the Directors,
or their spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right to
subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised any
such right during the year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section “Continuing Connected
Transactions” below and in note 29 under “Material Related
Party Transactions” in the consolidated financial statements,
no other contracts of significance between the Group or any
of its subsidiaries and any controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

There were also no contracts of significance for the provision of
services to the Group or any of its subsidiaries by any controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries subsisting at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section “Continuing Connected
Transactions” below and in note 29 under “Material Related
Party Transactions” to the consolidated financial statements, no
other transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in
relation to the Group's business to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries or associates was a party and in which any director
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

DIRECTORS’
BUSINESS
During the year under review, no Director has interests in any
business which directly or indirectly competes, or is likely to
compete with the business of the Group.

INTERESTS IN COMPETING
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Board has the general power of determining the Directors’
remuneration, subject to authorisation of the Shareholders at
the annual general meeting each year. The remuneration of the
executive Directors is subject to review by the remuneration
committee, and their remuneration is determined with reference
including but not limited to salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors.
As for the non-executive Directors and the independent non-
executive Directors, their remuneration is determined by the
Board upon recommendation from the remuneration committee.
Currently, the Group does not have any long-term incentive
scheme for the Directors. Details of the emoluments of the
Directors are set out in note 10 and the five highest paid
individuals are set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a term of three years and shall continue
thereafter unless terminated in accordance with the terms of the
service agreements.

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years and shall continue thereafter
unless terminated in accordance with the terms of the letters of
appointment.

Saved as disclosed herein, no Director proposed for re-election
at the AGM has a service contract with members of the Group
that is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

Other than the Directors’ service contracts and letters of
appointment, no contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
Company’s business were entered into or existed during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During FY2025, the Company repurchased a total of 2,928,000
shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange at the aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$0.6 million (before expenses).

All the repurchased shares were cancelled during FY2025.

EEEH
BERERSTFARRAFASG2EE E2CHE—
MENETESHTFMN - NTESZ2HFWNERTFHNEZE
SR MESZHEMNHLELE (BREETRR)JE
m? AT AR ES T 2R B EmE
EoRMIERTEBRBUPTESME  FSE2H
Mo mEEeRBRIEMEZESe s HEERMET -8
RAERTETAEHEENRRERAE - ES LA
HEEHWA L2 EHMFB D B EH ARSI HREM
10N FfIEE1T -

EEZRBEEL

EHRTEFCRARFTLRGWHE SB=F =
BREEAN BEEREBERBWEZIGERTARLER

1o

XiFﬁLﬁ%%&ﬁi#iﬂﬁ%%EiﬁizﬁﬁT;.Ti;d%
T RU=F ERESHEBEN BEEREBZRAESEZ
R T ARL LRI -

BRAEIFIEEN ZERBRFEFAS LEREL
ZEEMEEANEEN SRR AKE AR
—FRARIEMBBELREE CRERERIN) 2R
BHe

BEEEN

RERNRI S OREIE LN F RS T RIFE
EAARAARLBRTAEH LB OER RITHD
ane

BE HESERAQATZ LEHmES
RZE_RFHBRFE  ARF ALK EX600,000
B (HBRAEAIA) REBEXMERARREH
2,928,000k - FRBEEBORHENR _E_RHF
BB RS o

Annual Report 2025 —ZE - HE 4§



-
Report of the Directors
EEERE

Particulars of the repurchases are as follows: BEHAEE ZFBWT
Aggregate
Number Purchase price per Consideration
of shares share (before
Month repurchased Highest Lowest expenses)
A& 2iEE BREBEE wBRE
iidvip 4= B& BI& (HRRBAZAT)
(HK$) (HK$) (HK$'000)
(Er) (&r) (F#7T)
October 2024 —ZENF+A 1,984,000 $0.221 $0.215 427
November 2024 —EmF+—A 944,000 $0.217 $0.215 204
Total #Et 2,928,000 631

The above share repurchases were made with a view to stabilise
the price per share of the Company, as the management of the
Company considered that the market price of the shares might
not be able to truly reflect the value of the Company’s shares and
the Company'’s prospects.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
securities during FY2025. As at 28 February 2025, the Company
did not have any treasury shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis to existing Shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the revenue from rendering of
services attributable to the major customers of the Group during
the financial year is as follows:

RRARREEERARMN ZTSEMRUEERR
RARF BN EEBRARRFR R EARDER
TIRRREAR R BB B MIEDL

B EXFEEEIN AR SETAMBRARNRZ
“hFPRFEREES HEXERARAR ZEM
BE-N_E-_AF_A-+N\B AQGLEES
ERETRD °

BrRBERE

AR R4 TR AN A S B 2 BB R D19 AT B R A
DEBERRARE ZHREL AP H RSB ERR
192 M 5EHE B -

FTERFRHEER

WABBERE - ARHALE T EE B EREREH
Bl AR

2025

—EB-HEF

The largest customer BAEF 3.5%
Five largest customers in aggregate hRE PG 13.3%
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At no time during the year ended 28 February 2025 had the
Directors, their close associates or any shareholder of the
Company (to the best of the knowledge of the Directors, owns
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
interest in these major customers.

The Group had no supplier due to its nature of principle business
activities.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at 27 May 2025,
the Company maintains the prescribed percentage of public float
under the Listing Rules.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Kwan Lik Holding Limited, Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, Mr. Chan
Chart Man, Ms. Chan Ying Yu, Ms. Chan Mei Fong, Ms. Chan
Nga Yu and Ms. Mui Hang Sin entered into a deed of non-
competition (the “"Deed of Non-competition”) in favour of
the Company on 21 February 2013 pursuant to which they have
undertaken to the Company (for itself and for the benefit of its
subsidiaries) that it or he or she would not, and would procure
that its or his or her associates (other than any member of our
Group) would not, directly or indirectly, carry on, participate or be
interested or engaged in or acquire or hold (in each case whether
as a shareholder, partner, principal, agent, director, employee or
otherwise) any business which is or may be in competition with
the current businesses of the Group during the restricted period.

Ms. Chan Nga Yu, Ms. Mui Hang Sin, Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, the
late Mr. Chan Chart Man, Ms. Chan Mei Fong, Ms. Chan Ying Yu and
Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion are the beneficiaries of a discretionary trust
whose trustee, TMF (Cayman) Limited, indirectly owns the entire issued
share capital of Kwan Lik Holding Limited, the controlling shareholder of
the Company.

An annual confirmation has been received from each of the
parties to the Deed of Non-competition on compliance with each
of their respective undertaking thereunder.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
compliance with the Deed of Non-competition by the parties to
the Deed of Non-competition and confirmed that the Deed of
Non-competition is fully complied with and duly enforced during
the year ended 28 February 2025 and up to the date of this
report.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group had conducted the following continuing connected
transactions (the “Continuing Connected Transactions”) during
the year ended 28 February 2025:

Tenancy agreements

(i)  On 12 June 2023, for the purpose of operating one of our
pawnshops, Hing Wah Pawnshop Credit Limited (“Hing
Wah"), an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a tenancy agreement (“2023 Hing
Wah Tenancy Agreement”) with Kwan Chart (Holding)
Company Limited (“Kwan Chart Holding”), which is
indirectly wholly-owned by a family trust (the “Chan Family
Trust”) of Mr. Chan Chart Man (a then executive Director)
(“Mr. Chan”), the beneficiaries of which were Mr. Chan
and his family members. Pursuant to the 2023 Hing Wah
Tenancy Agreement, Kwan Chart Holding shall lease a
premises (“Hing Wah Pawnshop”) to Hing Wah HK for
a term of one year from 8 June 2023 to 7 June 2024 at a
monthly rent of HK$80,000 (exclusive of rates, management
fees and utility fees) and pay a monthly management fee of
HK$3,300 (subject to a maximum 30% upward adjustment).
For the purpose of renewing the 2023 Hing Wah Tenancy
Agreement, Hing Wah and Kwan Chart Holding entered
into another tenancy agreement on 31 May 2024 (“2024
Hing Wah Tenancy Agreement”) in respect of High Wah
Pawnshop for a term of one year from 8 June 2024 to
7 June 2025 on substantially the same terms (including
the same rent, and management fee with 30% upward
adjustment).

(i) On 12 June 2023, for the purpose of operating one of
our pawnshops, Wai Wah Pawnshop Credit Limited (“Wai
Wah"), an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into a tenancy agreement (“2023 Wai
Wah Tenancy Agreement”) with Mr. Chan. Pursuant to the
2023 Wai Wah Tenancy Agreement, Mr. Chan shall lease a
premises (“Wai Wah Pawnshop”) to Wai Wah for a term
of one year from 8 June 2023 to 7 June 2024 at a monthly
rent of HK$90,000 (exclusive of rates, management fees
and utility fees). For the purpose of renewing the 2023 Wai
Wah Tenancy Agreement, Wai Wah and Kwan Chart Holding
entered into another tenancy agreement on 31 May 2024
(72024 Wai Wah Tenancy Agreement”) in respect of Wai
Wah Pawnshop for a term of one year from 8 June 2024 to
7 June 2025 on substantially the same terms (including the
same rent).
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On 12 June 2023, for the purpose of operating our head
office, Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Limited (“Oi Wah")
entered into a tenancy agreement (“2023 Oi Wah Tenancy
Agreement”) with Kwan Chart Estate Company Limited
("Kwan Chart Estate”), which is indirectly wholly owned by
the Chan Family Trust. Pursuant to the 2023 Oi Wah Tenancy
Agreement, Kwan Chart Estate shall lease a premises (“Head
Office”) to Oi Wah for a term of one year from 31 May
2023 to 30 May 2024 at a monthly rent of HK$52,000
(inclusive of government rates and government rent). For the
purpose of renewing the 2023 Oi Wah Tenancy Agreement,
Oi Wah and Kwan Chart Holding entered into another
tenancy agreement on 31 May 2024 (“2024 Oi Wah
Tenancy Agreement”) in respect of the Head Office for a
term of one year from 31 May 2024 to 30 May 2025 at a
monthly rent of HK$48,000.

On 30 January 2024, for the purpose of operating one of
our pawnshops, Oi Wah entered into a tenancy agreement
(“2024 Full Honour Tenancy Agreement”) with Full
Honour Corporation Limited (“Full Honour"”), which is
indirectly wholly-owned by Kwan Lik Trust whose trustee,
TMF (Cayman) Limited, was a substantial Shareholder.
Kwan Lik Trust was a discretionary trust and the objects of
which included Mr. Chan, Ms. Mui Hang Sin (a substantial
Shareholder), Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward (executive Director
and substantial Shareholder), Ms. Chan Mei Fong (executive
Director and substantial Shareholder), Ms. Chan Ying Yu
(executive Director and substantial Shareholder), Mr. Chan
Kai Kow Macksion (non-executive Director and substantial
Shareholder) and Ms. Chan Nga Yu (an executive director
of Oi Wah HK and substantial Shareholder). Pursuant to the
2024 Full Honour Tenancy Agreement, Full Honour shall
lease a premises (“Full Honour Pawnshop”) to Oi Wah
for a term of one year from 1 February 2024 to 31 January
2025 at a monthly rent of HK$70,000 with a one-month
rent-free period from 1 February 2024 to 29 February 2024.
For the purpose of renewing the 2024 Full Honour Tenancy
Agreement, Oi Wah and Full Honour entered into another
tenancy agreement on 28 January 2025 (“2025 Full Honour
Tenancy Agreement”) in respect of Full Honour Pawnshop
for a term of one year from 1 February 2025 to 31 January
2026 at a monthly rent of HK$70,000.

(iii)

(iv)
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Each of Mr. Chan, Kwan Chart Holding, Kwan Chart Estate and
Full Honour was a connected person of the Company when the
relevant transaction was entered into, accordingly the transactions
contemplated under the tenancy agreements set out above
constituted continuing connected transactions of the Group under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied
with the relevant requirements in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. For further details, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 31 May 2024 and 28
January 2025.

Annual review of the Continuing Connected Transactions

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and
confirmed that the Continuing Connected Transactions set out
above have been entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course
of business of the Group; (ii) on normal commercial terms or
better; and (iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
engaged SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, auditor of the Company (the
“Auditor”) to report on the continuing connected transactions
of the Group. The Auditor has issued their unqualified letter
confirming that nothing has come to its attention that cause it to
bring to the attention of the Board pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules.

The related party transactions disclosed in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements (other than the Continuing
Connected Transactions disclosed above) constituted fully-
exempt connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules and were fully exempt from the reporting, annual review,
announcement and shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with
the requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules (where applicable).

Reference is made to the Company’s annual report for the year
ended 29 February 2024 published on 26 June 2024 (the “2024
Annual Report”). The significant related party transactions
disclosed under note 28 to the consolidated financial statements
of the 2024 Annual Report constituted fully-exempt continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and
the Company had complied with the requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules (where applicable).
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TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Appropriate Directors’ liability insurance has been arranged to
indemnify the Directors for liabilities arising out of corporate
activities. The coverage and the sum insured under the policy are
reviewed annually. Further, the Company’s Articles of Association
provide that Directors are entitled to be indemnified out of the
Company’s assets against claims from third parties in respect of
certain liabilities.

The Company has taken out and maintained appropriate insurance
cover in respect of potential legal actions against its Directors and
officers.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Additional information of business review is set out on pages 10
to 25 under the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” of this annual report, which forms part of this report of
the Directors.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group continues to keep itself updated over the requirement
of the relevant laws and regulations applicable to it to ensure
compliance. To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information
and belief after having made all reasonable enquiries, the Directors
are not aware of any non-compliance in any material respect with
the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the Group’s business and operations for the year ended 28
February 2025.

Details of the Company's compliance with the code provisions in
the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix C1 to the
Listing Rules are set out in the corporate governance report of this
report.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to operate in compliance with the
applicable environmental laws as well as protecting the
environment by minimising the negative impact of the Group’s
existing business activities on the environment and complying with
the applicable environmental laws and regulations.

The Company’s compliance with the relevant provisions as set out
in the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide in
Appendix C2 of the Listing Rules for the year ended 28 February
2025 are set out in the environmental, social and governance
report which is to be issued within four months after the end of
the year ended 28 February 2025. The Group will provide the
report to its Shareholders by electronic means.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There was no important or significant event that affects the
business of the Group subsequent to 28 February 2025.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 28 February 2025 have been audited by SHINEWING (HK)
CPA Limited and a resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint SHINEWING
(HK) CPA Limited as auditor of the Company. The auditor of the
Company has not changed in the preceding three years.

By order of the Board

Chan Kai Ho Edward
Chairman

Hong Kong,
27 May 2025
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Board and management are committed to upholding the
highest standards of corporate governance. We continuously
review and enhance our governance framework to ensure proper
oversight of business activities and decision-making processes.
Accordingly, the Company has applied the principles, and adopted
the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
"Code Provisions”) contained in Part 2 of Appendix C1 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Throughout FY2025, our Company complied with the Code
Provisions, save for the deviation from Code Provision C.2.1 which
is explained below.

Code Provision C.2.1 requires that the roles of the chairman and
the chief executive to be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward (“Mr. Edward
Chan”), an executive Director, currently holds both positions. Mr.
Chan has been the key leadership figure of our Group and has
been primarily involved in the formulation of business strategies
and determination of the overall direction of our Group. He
has also been chiefly responsible for our Group’s operations
as he directly supervises other executive Directors and senior
management of our Group. Taking into account the continuation
of the implementation of our Group’s business plans, our Directors
(including the independent non-executive Directors) consider
that Mr. Chan is the best candidate for both positions and the
present arrangements are beneficial and in the best interests of
our Company and its shareholders (the “Shareholders” or “our
Shareholders”) as a whole.

The Directors will review our Company’s corporate governance
policies and compliance with the Code Provisions from time to
time.

DIRECTORS
The Board

The Board, led by the chairman of the Company, is responsible
for leadership and control of the Company and overseeing the
Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and performance. The
Board has delegated to the senior management of the Company
the authority and responsibility for the day-to-day management
and operation of the Group. In addition, the Board has established
Board committees and has delegated to these Board committees
various responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of
reference.
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The Board reserved its decision for all major matters of the
Company, including: approving and monitoring all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those
that may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of Directors and other significant financial and
operational matters.

Daily management and administration functions are delegated to
the management. The Board delegated various responsibilities to
the senior management of the Company. These responsibilities
include implementing decisions of the Board, directing and
coordinating day-to-day operation and management of the
Company in accordance with the management strategies and
plans approved by the Board, formulating and monitoring the
operation and production plans and budgets, and supervising and
monitoring the control systems.

For the year ended 28 February 2025, the Board held four formal
meetings. Attendance of individual Directors at the Board meeting
for the year ended 28 February 2025 is as follows:

EEERE
RERMBERKEER BERBNES -

REIMBBEERHRRE BREILE
MBREEHE M

RiEEERS BEARS (FHRAEESEMNEE
R2RZ) MBER ZREEZREMERMBRE

BEH-

E.EEJ"EﬁTa/EEE AR EERTRIE-BEFER
FTAARGAEEREREEME HEEEBENTE
$¢'§Zﬁb{ CRBEEE IR BIERE REEIHER
RBRARRRZ BEEENEE : GIFT REREENR
HEFEIREE  AREBMEREERL -

BE-_T-_AF_A-TN\HLEFE EFSCE1T
MAEAEH -BE_T-_AF _A_t/N\HLLF
E-EREEHFEEEFEER BN

Name of Director EEps Board Meeting  Annual General Meeting
Exgel BRRBEFAE

Executive Directors: HITEE:

Mr. Edward Chan (Note 1) BRRAS S (BfatT)

(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) (EEFTHAEZ) 4/4 11
Mr. Chan Chart Man (passed away on 16 July BREX 4 (ER —ZF -/ 1/4 0/1
2024) (Note 1) FAFNAREH) (Mt

1)
Ms. Chan Ying Yu (Note 1) BEmit (A1) 4/4 1”1
Ms. Chan Mei Fong (Note 1) BREF L (Hat1) 4/4 171
Non-executive Directors: FHITEE:
Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion (Note 1) BREABRACAE (Bt 1) 4/4 11
Mr. Ng Siu Hong hipExE 4/4 1/1
Independent non-executive Directors: BUFHITESE
Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert R L 4/4 171
Dr. Yip Ngai ERET 4/4 1/1
Mr. Lam On Tai MERFTE 4/4 11
Note: Hist -

1. Mr. Edward Chan, Ms. Chan Ying Yu, Ms. Chan Mei Fong and Mr,
Chan Kai Kow Macksion are siblings. Mr. Chan Chart Man is their
father.
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For the year ended 28 February 2025, apart from the meetings
of the Board, consent/approval from the Board had also been
obtained by written resolutions on a number of matters.

For the year ended 28 February 2025, one general meeting of the
Company was held.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code Provision C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

Mr. Edward Chan, an executive Director, currently holds both the
positions of chairman and chief executive officer. Mr. Edward
Chan has been the key leadership figure of the Group, who has
been primarily involved in formulation of business strategies and
determination of the overall direction of the Group. He has also
been chiefly responsible for the Group’s operations as he directly
supervises other executive Directors and senior management
of the Group. Taking into account the continuation of the
implementation of the Group’s business plans, the Directors
(including the independent non-executive Directors) consider that
Mr. Edward Chan is the best candidate for both positions and the
present arrangements are beneficial and in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole.
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Board Composition

Currently, the Board comprises eight Directors, including three
executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The composition of the
Board during FY2025 and up to the date of this report is as
follows:

Exg24AM

ExefiRd/\REFEN BRE=-2HTESE —
BAFPTEFER BB LFATEF R-_FT_0F
PBRFENEEAREEN EFSAMMT

Membership of Board Committee(s)
EEZEENE

Executive Directors:

HITEE -

Mr. Edward Chan (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
BREA ST (LB FITEAEE)

Mr. Chan Chart Man (passed away on 16 July 2024)
BRI (R-FE = FE+ A+ NHEEH)

Ms. Chan Ying Yu

PR 23 22+

Ms. Chan Mei Fong

PREF 2+

Non-executive Directors:
FHHITESE

Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion
BRERIR 5 4

Mr. Ng Siu Hong
hEBREE

Independent non-executive Directors:
BUHFBITEE -

Mr. Lam On Tai

MR EE

Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert
RIREEL

Dr. Yip Ngai
EREL
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Member of Remuneration Committee
FMEEEXE

Member of Nomination Committee
REZEEKE

Chairman of Remuneration Committee

YWEEEER

Member of Audit Committee
BEZEBEGNKE

Member of Nomination Committee
REEZEEKE

Chairman of Nomination Committee
RELZEGERE

Member of Audit Committee
BEZEBEGKE

Member of Remuneration Committee
FMEEEXE

Chairman of Audit Committee
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Pursuant to Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, every board of
directors of a listed issuer must include at least three independent
non-executive directors. In addition, pursuant to Rules 3.10A and
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, every listed issuer is required to have
such number of independent non-executive directors representing
at least one-third of the Board, and at least one of whom must
have appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise. Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert
was admitted as an associate of The Chartered Association
of Certified Accountants (currently known as Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants) in February 1987 and became
an associate of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants (currently
known as HKICPA) in September 1988.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed
the independence of all the independent non-executive Directors
and considered that all the independent non-executive Directors
are independent.

The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 67 to 70
of this annual report. Save as disclosed on pages 67 to 70 of
this annual report, the Board members do not have any family,
financial, business or other relevant relationship with each other.

The list of Directors has been published on the website of the
Company and the website of the Stock Exchange, and is disclosed
in all corporate communications issued by the Company pursuant
to the Listing Rules from time to time.

MECHANISMS REGARDING
VIEWS TO THE BOARD
The Company has established mechanisms as detailed below to

ensure that a strong independent element on, and independent
views and input are available to the Board.

INDEPENDENT

(i) Composition of the Board and Board Committees

- The Board endeavours to ensure the appointment of
at least three independent non-executive directors
(“INEDs"”) and at least one-third of its members being
INEDs (or such higher threshold as may be required by
the Listing Rules from time to time).

- Apart from complying with the requirements prescribed
by the Listing Rules as to the composition of certain
Board committees, INEDs will be appointed to other
Board committees as far as practicable to ensure
independent views are available.
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(ii) Independence Assessment

- The Nomination Committee strictly adheres to the
Group's nomination policy and the independence
assessment criteria as set out in the Listing Rules with

regards to the nomination and appointment of INEDs.

(iii) Compensation

- No equity-based remuneration with performance-
related elements will be granted to INEDs as this may
lead to bias in their decision-making and compromise
their objectivity and independence.

(iv) Board Decision Making

- The Directors (including INEDs) upon reasonable
request, may seek independent professional advice at
the Company’s expense, to assist the performance of
their duties.

- The Directors (including INEDs) shall not vote or be
counted in the quorum on any board resolution
approving any contract or arrangement in which such
Director has a conflict of interest.

- The chairmen of the Board shall at least annually hold
meetings with the INEDs without the presence of other
Directors to discuss major issues and any concerns.

The implementation and effectiveness of such mechanism was
reviewed on an annual basis. The Board considers that such
mechanism has been implemented properly and effectively during
the Relevant Period.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company, and each of the non-executive Directors
and independent non-executive Directors has signed a letter of
appointment with the Company. Such term is for an initial term
of three years commencing from the Listing Date and is subject to
the re-appointment of each of the Directors by the Company at
an annual general meeting upon retirement.

The Articles of Association of the Company provide that any
Director appointed by the Board (i) to fill a casual vacancy in
the Board shall hold office only until the next following general
meeting of the Company and shall be subject to re-election at
such meeting; and (ii) as an addition to the Board shall hold office
until the next annual general meeting of the Company and shall
then be eligible for re-election.
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In addition, every Director should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. At every annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being, or if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, the number nearest
to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation
according to Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association of the
Company.

Non-executive Directors

Each of our non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years and
shall continue thereafter unless terminated in accordance with the
terms of the letters of appointment.

Responsibilities of Directors

All the Directors received an induction on appointment to
ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operation
of the Group and full awareness of director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements. The Directors will also be updated from time to
time on the business development and operation plans of the
Company.

The management, consisting of the executive Directors along with
other senior management, is delegated with responsibilities for
implementing the strategy and direction as adopted by the Board
from time to time, and conducting the day-to-day operations
of the Group. Executive Directors and senior management meet
regularly to review the performance of the businesses of the
Group as a whole, co-ordinate overall resources and make financial
and operational decisions. The Board also gives clear directions as
to their powers of management including circumstances where
management should report back, and will review the delegation
arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure that they remain
appropriate to the needs of the Group.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith,
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the
interests of the Company and its Shareholders at all times.

During the year, a meeting of the Chairman and the independent
non-executive Directors without the presence of other executive
Directors was held to discuss the matters that they wish to raise.
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In compliance with Code Provision C.1.4, the Company will
arrange for, and provide funds for, all the Directors to participate
in continuous professional development organised in the form of
in-house training, seminars or other appropriate courses to keep
them refresh of their knowledge, skill and understanding of the
Group and its business or to update their skills and knowledge on
the latest development or changes in the relevant statutes, the
Listing Rules and corporate governance practices. The Company
will also update the Directors of any material changes in the
Listing Rules and corporate governance practices from time to
time.

The individual training record of each Director received for the
year ended 28 February 2025 is summarised below:

BUFTFAEXEC 4 AATREYRBERS
BEESMBETLRR  HRTANBEY - Tt
EREMEE R BEETEREAE A
AR E R R LR B S EARER - LR
IR G EERE R BN RERE DA ESRIUAN
7T 2 AT S A T A« AR AT 3 AR
M ETRAR R EABRL EAEARD 2 5
aHi -

BE_ZE-_AF A1+ N\HIFE SEFMESX
Z ARSI st an T -

Attending or participating in seminars/conferences/

Names of Directors

EEnA

corporate events or reading regulatory updates/
journals relating to director’s duties
HESSMHANE, & LEITHR
MECHEEREZRNESEA BT

Executive Directors

HiTEF

Mr. Edward Chan

BRENZ ST 4

Mr. Chan Chart Man (passed away on 16 July 2024)
BREN A (RZFEZFE-+E A+ NARE)

Ms. Chan Ying Yu

PREH X+

Ms. Chan Mei Fong

BREF 2+

Non-executive Directors
FENITEE

Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion
PRI IR &

Mr. Ng Siu Hong
HABRT A

Independent non-executive Directors
BUFHTEE

Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert

RIEE L

Dr. Yip Ngai

EREL

Mr. Lam On Tai

ML FTEE
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS ESETESRS

The Company has adopted the standard set out in Appendix C3
(Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers) (the “Model Code”) to the Listing Rules, in relation to the
dealings in securities of the Company by the Directors.

Having made specific enquiries with all Directors, each Director
has confirmed that he/she has complied with the standard set out
in the Model Code throughout FY2025 and up to the date of this
report.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of the Company was established on
19 February 2013 with effect from the Listing Date with specific
written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules.
With the adoption of the board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) to comply with the Code Provisions, the terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee were revised on 23
May 2014. According to the Board Diversity Policy, the Board
should be composed of directors with diversed skills, knowledge,
gender, age, cultural and educational background or professional
experience. The Board will review such measurable objectives
from time to time to ensure their appropriateness and assess the
progress made towards achieving those objectives. The Nomination
Committee considered the Board composition was in compliance
with the Board Diversity Policy.

The existing members of the Nomination Committee include Dr.
Leung Shiu Ki Albert and Mr. Lam On Tai, both are independent
non-executive Directors, and Mr. Edward Chan, an executive
Director. Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include,
amongst other things:

(i)  to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and to make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the corporate strategy;

(i) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members
of the Board and select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorship;
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(iii) to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and

(iv) to consider and make recommendations to the Board
regarding the re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and the
Chief Executive.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on
the website of the Company and the website of the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during FY2025.
During the meeting, the Nomination Committee proposed to
the Board to re-elect the retiring Directors, namely Mr. Edward
Chan, Mr. Ng Siu Hong and Mr. Lam On Tai, at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. The Nomination Committee reviewed
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors
and the structure, size and diversity of the Board. Please refer to
the table below for the attendance record of the meetings of the
Nomination Committee during the year ended 28 February 2025:
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REFGZRE BREZT  TRIIEENE
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Directors

E=

Attendance/

Number of Meetings held
HEBITEBRRE

Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert (Chairman of the Nomination Committee)
PREIEL: (FEEZE2TE)

Mr. Edward Chan

PR ST

Mr. Lam On Tai

ML RFEA

During FY2025, the Nomination Committee has performed the
following work:

1. reviewed the structure, size and composition (including skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board;

2. discussed and recommended to the Board the re-
appointment of Directors;

3. reviewed and assessed the independence of independent
non-executive Directors of the Company; and

4.  reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
diversity policy and nomination policy adopted.
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Group has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) which specifies the procedures, process and criteria of
the nomination of Directors.

Selection criteria for nomination and appointment of
Directors

When making any recommendations in relation to the
appointment of any proposed candidate to the Board or re-
appointment of any existing member(s) of the Board, the
Nomination Committee shall consider, but without limitation, the
following factors when evaluating the suitability of the proposed
candidate:

° competence, experience, skills, expertise, education and
professional qualifications, background and other personal
attributes of the candidate that can best complement and
expand the skill set and expertise of the Board as a whole;

o reputation for integrity;

o availability of the candidate, as to whether the candidate
can devote sufficient time and effort to properly discharge
his duties as a Director; and

. other factors as the Nomination Committee or the Board
may deem relevant.

If the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an independent
non-executive director, he or she must comply with the
independence requirements under the Listing Rules. Such
candidate shall be independent in judgment and character, and
shall be able to act in the best interests of the Shareholders.

Nomination procedure and process

The Nomination Policy sets out the procedure and process in
relation to the nomination of Directors as follows:

° members of the Nomination Committee or the Board shall
identify, nominate and invite suitable candidates;

o the Nomination Committee shall determine the suitable
candidate for appointment in accordance with the selection
criteria set out in the Nomination Policy and the Board
Diversity Policy;
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. in the context of re-appointment of retiring Directors, e REFRTRIEER IRRZE2BEG LT

the Nomination Committee shall review and evaluate the
candidate’s overall performance and contributions, and
make recommendations to the Board and/or Shareholders
for consideration in respect of his/her re-election in general
meetings; and

o for any individual that is nominated by a Shareholder
for election as a director in the general meeting of the
Company, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board
shall evaluate such candidate with reference to the criteria
stipulated above to determine whether such candidate is
qualified for directorship.

The Nomination Policy is subject to review by the Board from
time to time to ensure its effectiveness and compliance with good
corporate governance practice and regulatory requirements.

DIVERSITY POLICY

The board diversity policy of the Company became effective in
August 2013. When the Company designs the Board composition,
it will consider the Board’s diversity from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service, perspectives and insights to be brought to
the Board, skills and experience, and any other factors that the
Board may consider relevant and applicable from time to time. All
Board appointments will be based on merit, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, with due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Nomination Committee of the Board has set measurable
objectives based on key areas including gender, age, cultural and
educational background and professional experience to implement
the board diversity policy. The Nomination Committee will
review the board diversity policy as appropriate; and review the
measurable objectives that the Board has set for implementing the
board diversity policy, and the progress on achieving the objectives
on an annual basis, to ensure its continued effectiveness from
time to time.

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BEMEEEERER AT

BIREAZBERALAR  WRLZIREARK
RAGLEEMNESSR SBRREL KRR
& AHEERE &

o HMEMERREENAAFBRAGL2ES
EZEMALTTE REEEGRREFEH
2R EXPTRIERIFHEZIREA - UEEZXIRE
ARBRERELE=S-

RABRRALESTE TR - ABERETZA R
EAERMERERERIEEER

% AL R

ARANEFERESZTEBRRER —_T—=F/\A4L
Mo ARBREESFEREMAAR  BZITHEEE
Exenzalt BRESRRMER - Fi& - XHE
HEBSS Bk BELR W ABREEFH-
KErESeNBMNERLE REEgR URES
SRR TR RAMEEERANENEMRE -MBE
EZRZENRIBAAES RBEBELZ BRE
AN BEEREETERBZITLHELE

E=ZeRLZEGCRBEIE T E BN F
B XLEHEESREXLR REVHEAR
NEREFTEREZTEER REZESHIKE
ERNEFEREZ TR L eEFERERS
SREMEFTEXNBZTIEBRMRENAIGER RN
EREENER  BERETZEM-



. y

(]()rpora te Governance Report
TEEERE

The Board targets to achieve gender diversity on the Board,
which shall not be lower than the Listing Rules’ requirement. The
Board is committed to further improving gender diversity as and
when suitable Director candidates are identified. Currently, there
are six male and two female Board members, which meet the
requirements under the Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee
is of the view that the Board has the combination of diversity
and balance and is suitable for the business of the Group. Going
forward, the Board and the Nomination Committee are committed
to take opportunities that may arise to increase the ratio of female
Board members towards greater gender parity (including without
limitation building of a pool of potential successors to the Board
that is adequately diverse).

The Company implements a diversified employment policy. It
provides women with equal employment opportunities, ensures
equal pay for male and female employees for equal work, and
provides women with gender-appropriate physical and mental
health facilities and career development plans. As at 28 February
2025, the ratio of female employees of the Company was 20%.
With its diversified employment policy and practices, the Company
will continue to strive towards gender equality in the workforce
with a target of achieving a greater gender parity.

For further details about how the Company achieves gender
diversity, please refer to the Company’s 2025 Environmental, Social
and Governance Report.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Company was established on
19 February 2013 with effect from the Listing Date with specific
written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules.
The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure
of all remuneration of the Directors and senior management,
determine (on delegated responsibilities) on behalf of the Board
the specific remuneration packages and conditions of employment
for the executive Directors and senior management, assess
performance of the executive Directors and approve the terms of
executive Directors’ service contracts. The existing members of the
Remuneration Committee include Mr. Lam On Tai and Dr. Leung
Shiu Ki Albert, both are independent non-executive Directors, and
Mr. Edward Chan, an executive Director. Mr. Lam On Tai is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on the website of the Company and the website of the
Stock Exchange.
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The Remuneration Committee held two meeting during FY2025.
During the meeting, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the
Directors’ salaries and other allowances and the remuneration
of the senior management and assessment system. Please refer
to the table below for the attendance record of the meeting of
the Remuneration Committee during the year ended 28 February
2025:

FHNEREERN _FT_AFVBRFEAERITMAE
o FTMEEER S LRMESH M S EAERA K
BREEBFMEEZNE - TREINEFNEES
E_RF_A-TN\HUEFELEFHZEE SR
FOER -

Attendance/
Directors Number of Meeting held
= HEBITERRE
Mr. Lam On Tai (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
MRREE (FNZESEE) 2/2
Mr. Edward Chan
PRETZR ST A4 22
Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert
ZIKHIEL 2/2

During FY2025, the Remuneration Committee has performed the
following work:

1. reviewed and recommended to the Board on the
remuneration packages of executive Directors and senior
management based on their performance;

2. reviewed and recommended to the Board on the Group's
remuneration policy;

3.  reviewed and recommended to the Board the terms of letter
of appointment of independent non-executive Directors; and

4. reviewed and recommended to the Board the level of
remuneration for independent non-executive Directors
and ensure that their level of remuneration are linked
to their contribution in terms of time commitment and
responsibilities undertaken.

5. assessed performance of executive Directors and approved
the terms of executive Directors’ service contracts.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in Note 10 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The remuneration payable to Directors will depend on the
skills, knowledge, involvement in the Company’s affairs and the
performance of each Director, and to the profitability of the
Company and prevailing market conditions during the year.
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REMUNERATION OF THE MEMBERS OF THE
SENIOR MANAGEMENT BY BAND

Pursuant to paragraph E.1.5 of the Code Provisions, the
remuneration of the members of the senior management (FY2025:

EREEERERBEES D 2 H M

RETARXFEENSR SREEEKE (ZT-A
PBEE: ME (K —2R T _WFLARE) )

two (of which one left in September 2024)) by band during R-T-AFHFRFEREES] D 2 FHEMEFI0T -
FY2025 is set out as follows:

Number of

individuals
Remuneration band E0 Enl= A
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 02 1,000,000 7T 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001%& £ 1,500,000/ 7T 1
Audit Committee EREEE

The Audit Committee of the Company was established on 19
February 2013 with effect from the Listing Date with specific
written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules.
The primary duties of the Audit Committee are, amongst other
things, to review and supervise the financial reporting process
and the internal control systems of the Group; to propose
the appointment or removal of the external auditors and the
effectiveness of the audit process; to discuss with the external
auditor on the nature and scope of the audit work; to review
and supervise the Group’s financial controls, internal control
and risk management systems and their implementation; and to
review the arrangements for employees to raise concerns about
financial reporting improprieties. The existing members of the
Audit Committee comprise Dr. Yip Ngai, Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert
and Mr. Lam On Tai, all of whom are independent non-executive
Directors. Dr. Yip Ngai is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

This annual report has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available
on the website of the Company and the website of the Stock
Exchange.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during FY2025. During
these meetings, the Audit Committee confirmed the appointment
of SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited and fixed its remuneration, and
reviewed the risk management system and the procedures of
internal control of the Group. The Audit Committee was of the
view that the procedures of internal control of the Group were
effective. The Audit Committee also reviewed the interim and
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annual results of the Group for the financial year and the auditors’
report prepared by the external auditors in relation to accounting
matters and any material findings during the audit. The Audit

HEMRE - BRLECREEMUBEHRREBREFTE
EHEHRIEZEEN AT YEIFERHAEE - X
HINEENEBE-_E-_AFE_A=-+N\BILEELE

Committee was of the opinion that such financial statements and EZZE & &% 206
report complied with the applicable accounting policy standards
and requirements and that adequate disclosures have been made.
Please refer to the table below for the attendance record of the
meetings of the Audit Committee during the year ended 28
February 2025:

Attendance/
Directors Number of Meetings held
Bx HiEBITERRE
Dr. Yip Ngai (Chairman of the Audit Committee)
EREL (FREEELE) 3/3
Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert
ZICHEE L 3/3
Mr. Lam On Tai
M REE 3/3
Corporate Governance Function EERB AL
The Board is responsible for and its terms of reference include, EZEFEBEREBESHELE (AP EIE) HEF R

amongst other things, the development and review of the
policies and practices on corporate governance of the Group and
monitoring the compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, and reviewing
the corporate governance compliance with the Code Provisions
and disclosure in the annual report.

During FY2025, the Board has performed the corporate
governance duties in accordance with its terms of reference.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

Financial results of the Group are announced in a timely manner
in accordance with all statutory requirements, particularly the
timeframe stipulated in Rules 13.49(1) and (6) of the Listing Rules.

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
28 February 2025. Currently, the Company’s external auditors are
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited (the “Auditors”).
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For the year ended 28 February 2025, the fees paid or payable by
the Company to the Auditors for audit and non-audit services is
as follow:

BE_ZT-_RAF A+ N\BLEFE AR aHEZEH
NIEZBIRBE NS BN ZEBA 2 ERNT

HK'000
FET
Audit services B 720
Non-audit services FEBZ RS
Interim review services o EAER B AR TS 250
Total Bt 970
The statement of the Auditors about their reporting responsibilities  ZEEIFEEH AN EBGE VB HREREB 2ARET
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group is set out FT{EH Z BRAEMNARFIRE71E77E 2 B ZEENR
in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 71 to 77 of this ¢
annual report.
Risk Management and Internal Controls [ B B T A R B
The Board recognizes its responsibility for maintaining an adequate EZEZSMEBHAFSERBENCERBRERE LA

and sound enterprise risk management and internal control
system and through the Audit Committee and, if necessary, an
external firm of qualified accountants to provide internal control
services, conducts reviews on the effectiveness of these systems
at least annually, covering material controls, including financial,
operational, compliance and strategic risk control functions. The
Board understands that such systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

During the year under review, the Board, through the Audit
Committee, conducted annual review of both design and
implementation effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group, covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls,
with a view to ensuring that resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group's
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions as
well as those relating to the Company’s ESG performance and
reporting are adequate. In this respect, the Audit Committee
communicates any material issues identified to the Board.
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During the year under review, the Company also appointed
an independent professional consultancy firm, BT Corporate
Governance Limited ("BTCGL") to:

o assist in identifying and assessing the risks of the Group
through a series of workshops and interviews; and

o independently perform internal control review and assess
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems.

The results of the independent review and assessment were
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board. Moreover,
improvements in internal control and risk management measures
as recommended by BTCGL to enhance the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and mitigate risks of the
Group were adopted by the Board. Based on the findings and
recommendations of BTCGL as well as the comment (if any) of the
Audit Committee, the Board considered the internal control and
risk management systems effective and adequate.

Our Enterprise Risk Management Framework

The Group reviewed its enterprise risk management framework
during the year ended 28 February 2025. While the Board has the
overall responsibility to ensure that sound and effective internal
controls are maintained, management is responsible for designing
and implementing an internal control system to manage all kinds
of risks faced by the Group.

Through the risk identification and assessment processes, risks
are identified, assessed, prioritized and allocated treatments. Our
risk management framework follows the COSO Enterprise Risk
Management — Integrated Framework, which allows the Board
and management to manage the risks of the Group effectively.
The Group has set up a risk management mechanism which
includes an internal control environment and proper segregation
of duties among the senior management executives. Through
regular management meetings with the participation of the
executives of various departments, management of the Group
are able to perform risk identification, risk assessment, and risk
management. The Board also receives regular reports through the
Audit Committee that oversights risk management and internal
audit functions.
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Principal Risks FZEE
In FY2025, the following principal risks of the Group were RI-ZE-ABRFE AEBHRIUATEZRAE
identified and classified into strategic risks, operational risks, EDIEARKERK - ZERE UHERR XA RE

financial risks and compliance risks.

o
PR

Risk Areas Principal Risks

LB # EERR

Compliance Risks Risk of non-compliance with the updated ESG reporting requirements
ERAR BREEFESGHRERENER

i) Risk of over-estimate of the value of mortgage properties

ii) Risk of downturn of the real estate market in Hong Kong
iii) Default risk under the condition of economic downturn
iv) Risk of cash shortage due to significant financial difficulty of the borrowers

iv) HAERALIREA BN ST L IRE 28 sk E R

Operational Risks (
(
(
(

SERME (i) BEZBMEEENERR
(i) BEEMEDSHEX 2 ER
(iiil) &B TATAVR T RZ KRR
(

Financial Risks No significant risk identified

B 75 LB WEHRBEARR

Strategic Risk No significant risk identified

SR b RS W N

Our Risk Control Mechanism

The Group adopts a “three-layer” corporate governance

structure with operational management and controls performed
by operations management, coupled with risk management
monitoring carried out by the finance team and independent
internal audit outsourced to and conducted by BTCGL. The Group
maintains a risk register to keep track of all identified major risks
of the Group. The risk register provides the Board, the Audit
Committee, and management with a profile of its major risks and
records management’s action taken to mitigate the relevant risks.
Each risk is evaluated at least annually based on its likelihood of
occurrence and potential impact upon the Group. The risk register
is updated by management as the risk owners with addition of
new risks and/or removal of existing risks, if applicable, at least
annually, after the annual risk evaluation has been performed. This
review process can ensure that the Group proactively manages
the risks faced by it in the sense that all risk related parties have
access to the risk register and are aware of and alert to those
risks in their area of responsibility so that they can take follow-up
action in an efficient manner.
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The Group’s risk management activities are performed by the
management on an ongoing process. The effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management framework will be evaluated at least
annually, and periodic management meetings are held to update
the progress of risk monitoring efforts. The management is
committed to ensure that risk management forms part of the daily
business operation processes in order to align risk management
with corporate goals in an effective manner.

The Directors have reviewed the need for an internal audit
function and are of the view that in light of the size, nature and
complexity of the business of the Group, it would be more cost
effective to appoint external independent professionals to perform
internal audit function for the Group in order to meet its needs.

The Company will continue to engage external independent
professionals to review the Group's system of internal controls
and risk management annually and further enhance the Group’s
internal control and risk management systems as appropriate.

The Group has established internal control procedures for the
handling and dissemination of inside information in order to
comply with Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules as well as Part XIVA
of the SFO. The internal control mechanism includes information
flow and reporting processes, confidentiality arrangements,
disclosure procedures, and staff training arrangements, etc.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

In general, the Board oversees the Company’s strategic
development and determines the objectives, strategies and policies
of the Group. The Board also monitors and controls operating
and financial performance and sets appropriate policies for risk
management in pursuit of the Group’s strategic objectives. The
Board delegates the implementation of strategies and day-to-day
operation of the Group to the management.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

We are committed to conducting business in compliance with all
applicable laws and regulations and the highest ethical standards.
We promise to conduct our business with professionalism,
honesty, and integrity in all business transactions and relationships
and prohibit any activities that adversely affect the integrity and
reputation of the Company. Creating a fair, transparent, and
honest work and business environment is our goal. We have
zero tolerance for bribery, extortion, and corruption. We require
every loan transaction we make, as well as every Director, senior
management and employee to comply with it.

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BEMEEEERER AT

AEENRREREHHEEEBHELT ARER
LEFHEERAREEERRT AN LERRITE
Bem UEFERRERTENERBER BEER
NNHERREREIEEK B EEKEEREN—D
NEEBRERARREAaEEXAR-

EECEANNELRBENTEZ YARR BER
AEBEXBORE HEREMREE  RENEEL
BEATAREBERTAREZBEEAREERTES
FARAY &t o

RRBIEHEBZIEINEBILEEX AT AGF R AE
Bz AREENRERERRS  ANE-FRARE
ErnEE R ERER RS (ER) -

AEBCBEIE N EMARE L HIR] AR ERER -
BT EmRRIFE13E A RE S B EMIEXIVA
#R e MRPE RS BIEERRAEARTE  RER
HEBEREFREIRIITHS -

EEgZRE

—BME EFREEAQAZABEREREELRE
Bz RE RERRE EFETERRIHEER
BIRE - WHIEEE 2 AR E BB AR
EEZRBER EETRTERENTAEEAR
REEAFEEEH M -

RES
BREBNEETHRBEBRERLAIIMZEREER
ENBERTREER - RIOEFEMERNER 5 R
BHRUEE BEMEENRNEEER WHEILE
MHEARBNBREMBERXTNEENEE - 8IE
—ERF ERAMBENTIERERREZRMOE
ReRFHHE BRRESTRETTR - HME
KRMETHNE-RERRS UREB-—REE 5
REBENEEBHETH



(,]()rp()ra te Governance Report
TEEERE

Inside Information

The Company has set up an insider information policy (the
“Disclosure Policy”) to ensure that the Company shall be in strict
compliance with the disclosure obligation of inside information,
that inside information remains confidential until the disclosure of
such information is appropriately approved, and the dissemination
of such information is efficiently and consistently made. The
Company acknowledges its obligations under Chapter 13 of
the Listing Rules and the principles of inside information as set
forth in the Securities and Futures Ordinance. The Disclosure
Policy stipulated responsibilities, guidelines and logistics in the
assessment, approval and dissemination of inside information,
strictly prohibited unauthorized use of confidential information
and established procedures for responding to external enquires or
rumours.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheng Yiu Hang, the company secretary appointed by the
Board and an employee of the Company, in the opinion of the
Board, possesses the necessary qualification and experience, and is
capable of performing the functions of the company secretary. The
Company will provide fund for Mr. Cheng to take not less than
15 hours of appropriate professional training in each financial year
as required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. During the year
ended 28 February 2025, Mr. Cheng had taken not less than 15
hours of relevant professional training.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the "Dividend
Policy”). Under the Dividend Policy, in circumstances that the
Group is profitable and without affecting the normal operations
and business of the Group, the Company may consider declaring
and paying dividends to its Shareholders.

When considering whether to declare any dividends and
determining the dividend amount, the Board will take into
consideration, inter alia, the following factors: (i) the financial
position of the Group; (ii) the capital and debt level of the Group;
(iii) the general market conditions; (iv) any cash requirements for
any future development plans of the Group; (v) any restrictions on
dividend payouts imposed by any of the Group’s lenders; and (vi)
any other relevant factors that the Board may deem appropriate.

The payment of the dividends by the Company will also be subject
to any restrictions imposed by the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands as well as the articles of association of the Company.
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The Board endeavors to strike a balance between the
Shareholders’ interests and prudent capital management with
a sustainable dividend policy. The Board will from time to time
review the dividend policy and may exercise at its absolute and
sole discretion to update, amend, and/or modify the Dividend
Policy at any time as the Board deems fit and necessary. There is
no assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular amount
for any specific reporting period.

No arrangement has been made between the Company and a
shareholder under which a shareholder has waived or agreed to
waive any dividends.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

Effective Communication

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining a clear,
timely and effective communication with the Shareholders
and investors of the Company. The Board also recognizes that
effective communication with the Company’s investors is critical
in establishing investor confidence and to attract new investors.
Therefore, the Group is committed to maintaining a high degree
of transparency and has in place a shareholders’ communication
policy to ensure the Shareholders and the investors of the
Company will receive accurate, clear, comprehensive and timely
information of the Group through the publication of annual
reports, interim reports, announcements and circulars. The
Company also publishes all corporate communications on the
website of the Company.

In respect of each matter to be considered at the annual general
meetings and extraordinary general meetings, including the re-
election of Directors, a separate resolution will be proposed by the
Chairman.

Pursuant to Code Provision F.2.2, the Chairman of the Board, the
chairman of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee, or in their absence, another member of
the relevant committee or an appointed representative, will attend
the forthcoming annual general meeting to answer questions of
Shareholders.

Pursuant to Code Provision F.2.2, the Company will invite
representatives of the Auditors to attend the forthcoming annual
general meeting to answer Shareholders’ questions about the
conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditors’
report, the accounting policies and auditor independence.
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Shareholders’ Rights IR SRAEF|

1. Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an 1. REZERFEHIASZER
Extraordinary General Meeting
Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association of the BREBEARDNFEBERZMAIE 64K REFFHAK
Company, extraordinary general meetings shall be convened SHELT BTN TRESXEREHALET D
on the requisition of one or more Shareholders holding, at the BEARRBIRAF+H 2 —WIREE (BEKR—
date of voting rights (on one vote per share basis) in the share E)MREERT AR - BEERKEANEEAER
deposit of the requisition, in aggregate at least one tenth of EEERARAZARMERD  MBERES
the capital of the Company. Such requisition shall be made in SHAMRERFIAEARIEGFERRNETAN
writing to the Board or the company secretary of the Company FRFE - FAANSERNEXEBEREMER
for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting NEIT - MRNIERERKE21BAN - EF2KRE48
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business FZAE  BIEXERATAIBITURAKARE
specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within ARG MEXERATEEFTSARAEEFAAE
two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 MABEAMMARYERAR A MIERENRK
days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such ATERE -
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself/herself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

2.  Procedures for Raising Enquiries 2. RUEBHAZER

Shareholders may direct their queries about their
shareholdings, share transfer, registration and payment
of dividend to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar, Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited:

Address: 2103B, 21/F, 148 Electric Road
North Point
Hong Kong
Email: srinfo.hk@boardroomlimited.com
Tel: (852) 21531688
Fax: (852) 30205058

Shareholders may raise enquiries in respect of the Company
at the following designated contact, correspondence address,
email address and enquiry hotlines of the Company:

Attention: Mr. Cheng Yiu Hang
(Company Secretary)

Address: Rooms 2302-2303, Kwan Chart Tower,
No. 6 Tonnochy Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong

Email: brian.cheng@oiwah.com.hk

Tel: (852) 28332002

Fax: (852) 28919831
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The Company aims to promote and maintain an effective
communication with Shareholders and investors (both individuals
and institutions) to ensure that the Group's information is
disseminated to Shareholders and potential investors in a timely
manner and enable them to have a clear assessment of the
Group's performance.

Extensive information on the Group's activities and financial
position will be disclosed in the annual reports, interim reports,
announcements, circulars and other corporate communications
which will be sent to Shareholders and/or published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the
Company (www.pawnshop.com.hk).

Shareholders may make enquiries with the Company through
channels including (i) Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar of the
Company, Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited, for enquiries
on shareholdings; and (ii) Company Secretary of the Company for
direct questions, request for publicly available information and
provision of comments and suggestions.

An annual general meeting of the Company was held on 7
August 2024 at which Directors have attended by person to meet
the Shareholders, answer their enquiries, and to understand their
views.

During FY2025, the Board has reviewed the implementation and
effectiveness of the shareholders’ communication policy. As there
are multiple channels of communication and engagement in place
as detailed above, the Board considered that the shareholders’
communication policy effective.
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3. Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at
Shareholders’ Meetings

(i)

(ii)

Proposal for election of a person other than a Director
as a Director:

Pursuant to Article 113 of the Articles of Association,
a Shareholder who wishes to propose a person other
than a retiring Director for election to the office of
Director at any general meeting should lodge (i) notice
in writing of the intention to propose that person for
election as a Director; and (ii) notice in writing by that
person of his willingness to be elected, at either (a) the
head office of the Company in Hong Kong at Rooms
2302-2303, Kwan Chart Tower, No. 6 Tonnochy Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong, or (b) the registration office
of the Company in Hong Kong at 2103B, 21/F, 148
Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong. The period
for lodgment of the notices mentioned above will
commence no earlier than the day after the despatch
of the notice of the general meeting appointed for
such election and end no later than seven days prior
to the date of such general meeting and the minimum
length of the period during which such notices to the
Company may be given will be at least seven days.

Other proposals:

If a Shareholder wishes to make other proposals (the
“Proposal(s)”) at a general meeting, he/she may
lodge a written request, duly signed, at the head office
of the Company in Hong Kong at Rooms 2302-2303,
Kwan Chart Tower, No. 6 Tonnochy Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong marked for the attention of the Company
Secretary.

The identity of the Shareholder and his/her request
will be verified with the Company’s Hong Kong share
registrar and upon confirmation by the share registrar
that the request is proper and in order, and is made
by a Shareholder, the Board will in its sole discretion
decide whether the Proposal may be included in the
agenda for the general meeting to be set out in the
notice of meeting.
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The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders
for consideration of the Proposal raised by the
Shareholder concerned at the general meeting varies
according to the nature of the Proposal as follows:

(M

Notice of not less than 21 clear days and not
less than 20 clear business days in writing if the
Proposal requires approval in an annual general
meeting of the Company.

Notice of not less than 21 clear days and not
less than 10 clear business days in writing if the
Proposal requires approval by way of a special
resolution in an extraordinary general meeting of
the Company.

Notice of not less than 14 clear days and not
less than 10 clear business days in writing if the
Proposal requires approval by way of an ordinary
resolution in an extraordinary general meeting of
the Company.

Constitutional Documents

During the year ended 28 February 2025, there was no change in
the Articles of Association of the Company.

A copy of the Articles of Association of the Company is available
on the website of the Stock Exchange and the website of the

Company.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward (BREXZ), aged 53, is our chairman,
executive Director and chief executive officer. He is also a director
of all the subsidiaries within the Group and the authorised
representative of the Company. Mr. Chan joined our Group in
2000 and is responsible for our Group’s overall management,
strategic planning and business development. He has over 23
years of experience in business management and pawn loan
business. Mr. Chan is currently the chairman of The Hong Kong
and Kowloon Pawnbrokers’ Association Limited (&hiR¥pe
BBRA7]) and honorary chairman of Macau General Chamber
of Pawnbrokers (BFIE MM E). Mr. Chan has been the
Vice Chairman of Hong Kong General Chamber of Property
Finance Limited since March 2014. Mr. Chan obtained a degree
of Bachelor of Engineering in Civil Engineering from the City
University, London, United Kingdom in July 1994. Mr. Chan is the
brother of Ms. Chan Mei Fong, Ms. Chan Ying Yu and Mr. Chan
Kai Kow Macksion, all of whom are our Directors.

Ms. Chan Mei Fong (FR335), aged 55, is our executive Director
and chief operating officer. Ms Chan is also a director of all the
subsidiaries within the Group. Ms. Chan joined our Group in
2007 and is responsible for the overall operations of our Group's
business. Ms. Chan obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in Town
and Country Planning from the University of the West of England,
Bristol, United Kingdom in September 1996. Ms. Chan also
obtained a diploma in Gemmology and Gem Diamond diploma
from The Gemmological Association and Gem Testing Laboratory
of Great Britain in January 2006 and January 2007, respectively.
Ms. Chan is a fellow of The Gemmological Association of Great
Britain. Ms. Chan is the sister of Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, Ms.
Chan Ying Yu and Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion, all of whom are
our Directors.

Ms. Chan Ying Yu (BRZHI), aged 59, is our executive Director.
She is also a director of all the subsidiaries within the Group
and the authorised representative of the Company. Ms. Chan
joined our Group in 2000 and is responsible for overseeing our
administration and human resources matters. Ms. Chan obtained a
Bachelor of Science degree in Hotel and Restaurant Management
from the Middlesex University, United Kingdom in July 1995
and was elected as an associate of the Hotel and Catering
International Management Association in October 1995. Ms. Chan
is the sister of Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, Ms. Chan Mei Fong and
Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion, all of whom are our Directors.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kai Kow Macksion (FRE(3R), aged 69, was appointed
as our non-executive Director on 19 February 2013. Mr. Chan is
a lawyer with 38 years of experience in general practice. He has
passed solicitor qualifying examinations in Hong Kong and was
admitted as a Solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong in March
1984 and has been a partner in Chow C.L. & Macksion Chan
since 2001. Mr. Chan obtained a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Pure
Mathematics from The University of Calgary, Canada in June 1978.
Mr. Chan is the brother of Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, Ms. Chan
Mei Fong and Ms. Chan Ying Yu, all of whom are our Directors.

Mr. Ng Siu Hong ({R#8 &), aged 44, was appointed as our non-
executive Director on 1 August 2019. Mr. Ng has over 20 years of
experience in financial investment and business management. He
currently serves as a responsible officer and managing director of
Quester Securities Limited, a licensed corporation which is entitled
to conduct type 1 (dealing in securities) and type 4 (advising on
securities) and regulated activities under the SFO. Prior to joining
Quester Securities Limited, Mr. Ng acted as Managing Director
of Quester Capital Asset Management Limited from May 2021
to September 2024, Managing Director of Elstone Securities
Limited from May 2021 to May 2023 and Managing Director of
Kingkey Securities Group Limited from May 2013 to April 2021.
Mr. Ng had also served at Account Manager at UOB Kay Hian
(Hong Kong) Limited from October 2007 to May 2008, and served
as vice president at Phillip Securities (Hong Kong) Limited from
June 2008 to April 2013. He was awarded a Bachelor’'s degree
in Economics and Finance from City University of Hong Kong in
2002 and an Executive Master of Business Administration degree
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2019.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lam On Tai (%% %), aged 53, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 1 April 2017. He has more
than 27 years of experience in banking and securities industry, in
which over 24 years of experience was accumulated in advising
on corporate finance relating to various listing and restructuring
transactions. Mr. Lam currently serves as the managing director of
Red Solar Capital Limited (412 &ZAREGRAF]). Mr Lam received
his diploma in general business management from the Lingnan
College ((8FI&3F%) (now known as the Lingnan University (58
KE) in Hong Kong in November 1994, and his master's degree
in business administration from the University of Sheffield in
the United Kingdom in December 1996. He also obtained his
bachelor’'s degree in laws from the University of Wolverhampton
in the United Kingdom in July 1998 through a distance learning
course.

Dr. Leung Shiu Ki Albert (£Jk#), aged 76, was appointed as
our independent non-executive Director on 19 February 2013.
Dr. Leung was an assistant vice president in Citicorp International
Limited from 1987 to 1992. Dr. Leung was admitted as an
associate of The Chartered Association of Certified Accountants
(now known as Association of Chartered Certified Accountants) in
February 1987 and became an associate of the Hong Kong Society
of Accountants (now known as HKICPA) in September 1988. Dr.
Leung obtained a Doctorate degree of Philosophy in Economics
from Shanghai University of Finance and Economics in September
2007, a Master degree of Business Administration from Brunel
University, United Kingdom in December 1985 and a Diploma in
Management Studies from The Polytechnic of Central London,
United Kingdom in October 1983.

Dr. Yip Ngai (%), aged 51, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 19 February 2013. Dr. Yip is a
jewellery appraiser and valuation expert and has over 30 years of
experience in jewellery and art industry. Dr. Yip became a fellow
of the HKICPA in May 2012. He has also been appointed as a
specialist by the Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic
& Vocational Qualifications since July 2011 and as a technical
advisor (watch and jewellery) by the Employees Retraining Board
since September 2013. Dr. Yip obtained a Doctorate degree of
business administration from the EU Business School, Switzerland
in May 2011, a Master degree of Business Administration from the
Federation University Australia in December 2008 and a Bachelor
of Business (Accounting) degree from the Monash University,
Australia in November 1999. Dr. Yip obtained a diploma in
Gemmology from The Gemmological Association and Gem Testing
Laboratory of Great Britain in October 1994.

BIUFHITES

MBERKE S35 R —tFNA—HEZTA
REBEBUIATES BRBRITRBSFTEES
B2 AP RAEBELZELMREARSIHD
EMEREEREBEE2AF L5 - A EBRIET
EREABRAREETBLE -MEER— NN
Fr—RAEEANGEEER REEmARE)IH
ERXE TR —ANAANFET+ ARG RENER
%K B (University of Sheffield) L& B8+ 24 o
BHRR—ANN\FLAEBREREREINERE
R 75)%E L E K2 (University of Wolverhampton)
EREB LB

RkEEL Tom RZE—=E_A+NBEZE
TAAEEBIERNTES - 2ELT LR —ANE
FE-NNA_FETEEEEER AR ZHIER R
H-2BEIR - NANEEFE_AEZEMABHFLARE
R ggE YR—NANANFENLAKAEESS
fiAee8 Z2BEITR_ZEZT+F N ARE LB
WABREKESHEFLELA - R—ANRF
+ = ARBERMERNEAKZ(Brunel University)s8
B ITHERBEITEMERA-ANZE+ ARGHR
B s B P RIE T BB (The Polytechnic of Central
London)#8 & 2 B IR 23R -

ERBEL S R =ZF-_ATNHEZE
ABAREEBYIINTES -EFLTAKRTETME
HEER RABERBWTEHRBBBEIOF 2L
BoEBEIN - T-—ERAKABSEHIAS
MEFEE - BB _T——FLAEEZTAT
BEMABREERTIERZERRBEZE—=FN
AREZAEEEBFIRERRKEERITE
M-EBHtR -T——FR ANSHEETEBINEZER
(EU Business School)#%# v TrREIEIE L2y -
RZZZT)N\F 4 = AES RN FH K2 (Federation
University Australia)i8% 2 TR E R8T 247 -
UER—AAAF+—ADRBRENZHHKH KRS
(Monash University) 8% 2 i (&5H) B2 LBy -
ERIR - NAAUNF+ARNGARELS2heNne
AR ERERECERER-

Annual Report 2025 —ZE - HE 4§



Directors and Senior Management
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Cheng Yiu Hang (¥5#E#), aged 42, is our chief financial
officer and company secretary. He joined our Group in June 2012
and is responsible for overseeing the financial, accounting and
secretarial affairs of our Group. Prior to joining our Group, Mr.
Cheng worked at KPMG from 2006 to 2012 and his last position
was assistant manager. Mr. Cheng was registered as a certified
public accountant and a certified public accountant (practising) of
the HKICPA in January 2010 and September 2012, respectively.
Mr. Cheng obtained a Bachelor of Business Administration in
Accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong in November
2006.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheng Yiu Hang (ZF#1) is our company secretary.
Biographical details of Mr. Cheng are set out under the paragraph
headed “Senior Management” in this section.
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SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
17/F, Chubb Tower, Windsor House,
311 Gloucester Road,

R AR &

BEXPH(ER)EMNEHABRAT
HEMEEE LT E3115%
EZRELZEASABI7IE

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

TO THE MEMBERS OF Ol WAH PAWNSHOP CREDIT HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Oi Wah
Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 78 to 176, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 28 February 2025, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 28 February 2025, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Impairment of loan receivables at amortised cost

Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 101 to 106.

The key audit matter

As at 28 February 2025, the Group’s loan receivables at
amortised cost amounted to approximately HK$717.1
million.

The determination of loss allowances using the expected
credit loss (“ECL") model is subject to a number of key
parameters and assumptions, including the identification
of loss stages, estimates of probability of default, loss
given default, exposures at default, discount rate,
adjustments for forward-looking information and
other adjustment factors including value of collaterals.
Management judgement is involved in the selection of
those parameters and the application of the assumptions.

We identified the impairment of loan receivables at
amortised cost as a key audit matter because of the
complexity of the inherent uncertainty and management
judgement involved in determining impairment allowances
and because of its significance to the financial results and
the total assets of the Group.

BERRERERERARF

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the impairment of loan
receivables at amortised cost included the following:

o understanding the ECL model used by the Group;

o evaluating the reasonableness of critical assumptions
and methods applied in the ECL model;

o recalculating the amount of ECL allowance using
the ECL model based on the above parameters and
assumptions and test the completeness and accuracy
of selection of input data used in the ECL model on
a sampling basis;

o assessing the forecast cash flows for credit-impaired
loan receivables by understanding and evaluating the
viability of the Group's recovery plans and evaluating
the timing and means of realisation of collateral; and

o evaluating the presentation and disclosures on the
impairment of loan receivables at amortised cost in
the consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report, but does not include
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS OF THE
COMPANY AND AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors of the Company
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion, solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and our agreed terms of engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.
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Independent \uditor’s Report
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s
directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business units within the
Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the Group
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and review of the audit work performed for
purposes of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguard applied.
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From the matters communicated with audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Wong Hon Kei, Anthony.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Hon Kei, Anthony

Practising Certificate Number: P0O5591

Hong Kong
27 May 2025
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
rEBEEREMEEEBAR

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #EZ—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\BILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7051 7R )

Notes 2025 2024
k=3 —E-RHF —ZTomE
$'000 $'000
Tt Tz
Revenue &3 5 164,295 179,307
Other income, gains or losses HAA - Wz sk B8 7 11,754 4,730
Operating income BEIRA 176,049 184,037
Other operating expenses B 8(c) (61,106) (59,499)
Impairment losses recognised on loan IR E R ER 2 REEE
receivables 17 (46,311) (15,126)
Profit from operations F il 68,632 109,412
Finance costs & R A 8(a) (3,917) (6,130)
Profit before taxation BRE AT R 8 64,715 103,282
Income tax Frig i 9 (8,807) (16,835)
Profit and total comprehensive PR R PEAE F IR R R
income for the year attributable to ZHEKAEEE
shareholders 55,908 86,447
Earnings per share (in HK cents) - BRER (Bl) —EXK
basic and diluted s 12 2.9 45

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BEREMEEEERER AT



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e IR R

As at 28 February 2025 R=ZE=HF=-H=+/\H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA 7T517R )

Notes 2025 2024
B sE —EC-REF —EUF
$'000 $'000
T T+t
Non-current assets FRBEE
Plant and equipment B K& 13 2,773 3,019
Right-of-use assets CREEE 14 22,163 13,210
Interest in an associate i N PR = 15 - =
Financial assets at fair value through profit & AFEFAEZRZ
or loss EREE 16 40,356 =
Loan receivables BN E 17 27,636 36,699
Other receivables H b e W FRIE 19 2,535 1,740
Deferred tax assets FIEFIAE = 18 5,305 2,408
100,768 57,076
Current assets RBEE
Repossessed assets KU B & 9,575 13,875
Loan receivables JEE TR 17 848,448 937,230
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E A e B RIE 19 6,463 9,925
Tax recoverable AU e F 1A 2,111 =
Cash and cash equivalents BeNIBEEEY 20 215,655 170,600
1,082,252 1,131,630
Current liabilities HREBEE
Accruals and other payables JEETE A M E b R FRIA 22 4,378 4,906
Bank loans and overdrafts SRITER MBS 21 - 10,000
Loans from the immediate holding HEBEZERARZER
company 24 47,500 47,500
Lease liabilities HEAE 14 7,867 6,772
Debt securities issued BETEBES 25 - 25,991
Tax payable e FLIE - 6,642
59,745 101,811
Net current assets REEEFE 1,022,507 1,029,819
Total assets less current liabilities BEEAGBRARBAERS 1,123,275 1,086,895
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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As at 28 February 2025 R=ZE=RF=A=+/\H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7051 7R )
Notes 2025 2024
B —E-RE —ZTpuF
$'000 $'000
T T+t

Non-current liability FRBAE

Lease liabilities HEBE 14 15,297 7,213
NET ASSETS EERE 1,107,978 1,079,682

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARR#E 26
Capital [N 19,243 19,272
Reserves @ 1,088,735 1,060,410
TOTAL EQUITY BB 1,107,978 1,079,682

The consolidated financial statements on pages 78 to 176 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27
May 2025 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward
FBRENER ST
Director

EF
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Ms. Chan Ying Yu
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Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 28 February 2025 #Z—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 T3 7R )
Capital
Share Capital ~ redemption Other  Retained
Notes Share capital  premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
fitz k& ROEE  ERRE EARERE  HtRE  REEA a5t
$'000 §'000 $'000 $'000 §'000 $'000 §'000
T r T T r T T
At 1 March 2023 RZEZ=E=f-R 19,272 14,303 44,963 2,112 12,001 937,394 1,030,045
Profit and total comprehensive income for ~ EREFIR2AMAAE
the year - - - - - 86,447 86,447
Final dividends approved in respect of the 5 HEFBHETRER
previous year and paid during the year RS RERE 26(b) - = = - = (16,767) (16,767)
Interim dividends declared and paid during ~ RERNERRERZ
the year HERE 26(0) = = = - - (20,043) (20,043)
At 29 February 2024 and 1 March 2024 ~ R=Z-IE-A=F/1H
R=E-mE=f-H 19,212 14,303 44,963 2,112 12,001 987,031 1,079,682
Profit and total comprehensive income for  FREFIR2EMAEE
the year - - - - - 55,908 55,908
Repurchase and cancellation of shares RG] 26(0) (29) (631) - 29 - - (631)
Final dividends approved in respect of the 5 HESEHETNER
previous year and paid during the year R REARE 26(h) - - - - - (14,647)  (14,647)
Interim dividends declared and paid during ~ PNEREERRERZ
the year mERE 26(h) - (12,334) - - - - (12,334)
At 28 February 2025 R-2-RF-A=t/\A 19,203 138 44963 241 1001 108292 1,107,978

Annual Report 2025 —E - HE 4§



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HERERER

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #E =T =RAF A=+ N\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA THI7R )

2025 2024
—E-REF —ZEJO4F
$'000 $'000
Fi Fr
Operating activities R
Profit before taxation B 758 A1 5 ) 64,715 103,282
Adjustments for: NP S IBEL TR -
Depreciation of plant and equipment TS R i5 2 ST 921 802
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRREEZIE 7,578 8,720
Bank interest income RATA B A (5,105) (1,830)
Dividend income from financial assets BATEFABRmZ
at fair value through profit or loss EHMEEZKREBLA
("FVPL") ([BRAFEFTAR
@) (2,329) -
Finance costs BMEAR 3,917 6,130
Net losses (gains) on fair value changes LA EF AB®
of loan receivables at FVPL ZEWER 2 ATE
FE)EE (Wem ) F58 32 (16)
Gains on fair value changes of financial BRATEF ABRZ
assets at FVPL TRIEE AT EE
Bla (2,175) -
Impairment losses recognised on loan BN E TR
receivables REEE 46,311 15,126
Operating cash flows before changes EEESHHAI 2 RERSE
in working capital mE 113,865 132,214
Decrease (increase) in repossessed assets L e & Em A (1) 4,300 (3,649)
Decrease (increase) in loan receivables FEU E ROR A (380) 51,502 (35,809)
Decrease (increase) in trade and other B 5 Rk E M W GRIE R
receivables (1) 2,824 (862)
Decrease in accruals and other payables FETE A % E Ath FE (T IR
Ve (267) (351)
Cash generated from operations EBMEES 172,224 91,543
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid ERNBBFEH (20,457) (19,464)
Net cash generated from operating REXBBRSTH
activities 151,767 72,079

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BERE¥EEEIERER AR
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For the year ended 28 February 2025 #E =T =RAF A=+ N\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA 7T517R )

Notes 2025 2024
BiaE —EC-REF —EUF
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Investing activities REEK
Purchases of financial assets at FVPL BERAFEFAERZ
eREE (38,181) =
Payment for purchase of plant and BEMRE M&E 2 RIE
equipment (675) (1,785)
Dividend received from financial assets at ~ #ZAFEFFAEBZTZ
FVPL SREEDRRE 2,172 =
Bank interest received B UEERTT I B 5,105 1,830
Net cash (used in) generated from BREXEK (FTH) FI8RE
investing activities BE (31,579) 45
Financing activities RLE K
Repayments of debt securities BEEKES (26,000) (12,000)
Dividends paid EARRE 26(b) (26,981) (36,810)
Repayments of bank loans BERITERK (10,000) =
Finance costs paid BRI E KA (3,351) (5,406)
Repayments of principal on lease liabilities (EEHEABIAE (7.352) (8,766)
Repayments of interest on lease liabilites — {EEAEBEZFIE (818) (929)
Payment for purchase of own shares R B FixD 2508 26(c) (631) =
Net cash used in financing activities RMEXKFMARSFEE (75,133) (63,911)
Net increase in cash and cash HeRBEESEEYILINFEE
equivalents 45,055 8,213
Cash and cash equivalents at the FOZRERASEEY
beginning of year 170,600 162,387
Cash and cash equivalents at the end FRZEERBELEZEY
of year 215,655 170,600

—E-AEER



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR R M RE

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #E =T =RAF A=+ N\HILFE

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holding

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA THI7R )

GENERAL INFORMATION

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and is listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

The Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively
referred to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in
secured financing business in Hong Kong, including pawn
loans and mortgage loans. Details of the principal activities
of the Company'’s subsidiaries are set out in note 34.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) consider
the immediate parent and ultimate controlling party of the
Group to be Kwan Lik Holding Limited, which is incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI"), and TMF (Cayman)
Ltd. as trustee of a discretionary trust for the benefit of Mr.
Chan Kai Ho Edward, Ms. Chan Ying Yu, Ms. Chan Mei
Fong, Ms. Chan Nga Yu, Ms. Mui Hang Sin and Mr. Chan
Kai Kow Macksion, which is incorporated in the Cayman
Islands, respectively. These entities do not produce financial
statements available for public use.

The Company’s registered office is located at Windward
3, Regatta Office Park, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-
1108, Cayman Islands and its head office and principal place
of business in Hong Kong is located at Rooms 2302-2303,
Kwan Chart Tower, No. 6 Tonnochy Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HKD" or
also the functional currency of the Company, and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand ($'000) except when
otherwise indicated.

s Limited BEMEEEIZERERAA

1.

— &R
BEMXEEZREARAR (1R8] EHS
BHEEMAY  UREBHERZMERAR
([BE3RAr ) EAR B e

RARREWMBAR (ATHME[HE®E])E
ERBENFEAEARE (BERAZTERRR
BEMER) X - ARFMB AR Z X BEK
FBENMIEE34

AREER ([EE)RR AEEZEEBER
AIREBRERTDAANREEBREZEHS ([ &
BELZE#HS ) FMAKZZKwan Lik Holding
Limited %X /A £ 85 &£ 2 TMF (Cayman)
Ltd. (BBREIZEE REBMZ T REF K
+ - BRAER 2 - SNl Z T R ERER IR ST A 2 A
mMERMIBELEZZEA) WEERBIW AR
SUIPFNRER 2 B

NA Rz FMEEA R Windward 3, Regatta
Office Park, P.O. Box 1350, Grand Cayman
KY1 1108, Cayman Islands * MH & BEHN =i

FELEMBUREBEFHEFBORER
7:?2302—23o3i

REMBmRIABT ([BR]) 25 ETAR
“HK$" or “$"), which is REZYEEER IR AEAEIN PIARES
HWBEREOTUE(TIT) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS R MR

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #Z—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 T3 7R )

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS(S)")

Application of amendments to HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first
time, the following amendments to Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA")
which are effective for the Group’s financial year beginning
on 1 March 2024:

Amendments to HKFRS Lease Liability in a Sale and
16 Leaseback

2.

FERFIEEMBHREER ([FE
PR EER ) REMBFT

FERE BB R EER ST

RAFE AEEEEREANTHEE S
Ng ([BEREHALAE ) BHAARAEEE -
T_ME=-A—BRBEZMBEEERZEE
FsmE 2R ([BRMBREE ) ZEFT

FEMEHREERE
165% 2 f&7]

ERERZHEERE

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as BB ENEIF e BEIEARBNIE
Current or Non-current and 13T MBI RBBRESES
the related amendments to W(ZEZZTF )2

Hong Kong Interpretation
5(2020) Presentation of

HERER - M %®
RZE2H -BXA

Financial Statements - HEAUBRIZE
Classification by the Borrower KB 2 &R TE 2R
of a Term Loan that Contains BERND A

a Repayment on Demand

Clause
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with S ENEIR e HMERBZIERDE
Covenants 1B57 &
Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements ERBSFERNETRR HENBRELH
and HKFRS 7 BB SRS 2R
FIHRZAEF]

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group's financial
performance and positions for the current and prior periods
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

RAFERATEMBREEMNZBITHAEK
EASMEEBERRZHBERERRAR R L
REGEMBBRRAEBREREEATE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #EZ—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\BILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7051 7R )

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS(S)”) (CONT'D)

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

2.

4 (
PR EER ) REMBET (&

CHEMENRERNHFIETEVBRELIR

HIEFT

REE R A NP2 B A B R A
Al AP BIRE LR R EERT

Amendments to HKAS Lack of Exchangeability’ BRGEERE215% R A RANE
21 pACH
HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in ERMBHRERNE HEHFZZIRE
Financial Statements® 185% 2
HKFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public ERUBHRERNE TALHKMEMZH
Accountability: Disclosures? 195% BAA]: #EE
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Contracts Referencing Nature- BERMBHREERE HKBEEAAEFLEERE
and HKFRS 7 dependent Electricity? RRBEBMERE TIRIE #?
A FE 7R MEFT
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Amendments to the Classification ERUBHRERNE 2@ T A HHER
and HKFRS 7 and Measurement of Financial SRR BB RE B 55T
Instruments? EBRIE TR ZER]
Amendments to HKFRS ~ Annual Improvements to HKFRS BEEUMBHRERAEG BEUBHREEAE
Accounting Standards Accounting Standards - FTERIZ(EET FTE R 2 F 2 2
Volume 112 —FE1152
Amendments to HKFRS  Sale or Contribution of Assets ERMBHRERNE REZHARZN A
10 and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its 1058 RE BT HEEPEZEA
Associate or Joint Venture* BIZE2855% 2 (55T BEHESL TE

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

! RZZB-RAF—A—HRXZRRABNFEHR

2025 L3

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 RZTZRNF—A— Bz &FEBNFE M
2026 L3

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 3 RZTZEF—A Bz BFEBNFE M
2027 L3

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to g 18 R B TE A AR TS B

be determined.

Except as described below, the Directors anticipate that the
application of other new and amendments to HKFRSs will
have no material impact on the results and the financial
position of the Group.

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BEREMEEEERER AT

BN XSl EETRE - BARMER AR
BREERNREERT TG E AN EEE R

BIRRAELEERTE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR R MR

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #Z—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 T3 7R )

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS(S)”) (CONT'D)

Impact on application of HKFRS 18 — Presentation and
Disclosure in Financial Statements

HKFRS 18 sets out requirements on presentation and
disclosures in financial statements and will replace HKAS 1
Presentation of Financial Statements. HKFRS 18 introduces
new requirements to present specified categories and
defined subtotals in the statement of profit or loss; provide
disclosures on management-defined performance measures
in the notes to the financial statements and improve
aggregation and disaggregation of information to be
disclosed in the financial statements. Minor amendments to
HKAS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows"” and HKAS 33 “Earnings
per Share” are also made.

HKFRS 18, and the consequential amendments to other
HKFRS Accounting Standards, will be effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027, with early
application permitted.

The application of HKFRS 18 is not expected to have material
impact on the financial position of the Group but is expected
to affect the presentation of the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income and statement of cash
flows and disclosures in the future financial statements. The
Group will continue to assess the impact of HKFRS 18 on
the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

2.

\\Wﬁ‘
oy
|_|
g —~

BB EER ) RHE

FEREBMBHRELNF 18R - MBERZ2
IR B &

FREVBHRELENE18RINEMBERERAZT
REEMRE  WHRKELSENE 1R
BRERWED - BAMBRELERNFE185E
BRTPEERIN2IRNFTERSIATHR
ECRERBRRMETFRETEREREN
REGTE UARBERMBHRRPEENA G
ROBER - BEGHEUFTHR [RERER]
KEBGHEFEIZN [BREMN | TMEEMNE
I

ERMBRELERNF 18R RHBELMBRELE
Algst B ZAEETER T _tF—A—
Bk KRB FEREEN  ELFFIRTE
m o

EREANHRELENZ1SRAHIEHAE
BMIRABREARTE RS EER
REMEEBARAMESRERNZINAR
REABHRER D OWE - AEEHFEFEE L
MR E LN F1SREAREER S MBRERM

B/ 48R
=%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R BB IRAR M

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #EZ—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\BILFE

Oi Wah Paw

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7051 7R )

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for loan receivables at FVPL
and financial assets at FVPL that are measured at fair values,
at the end of each reporting period.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods or services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants in the principal (or most
advantageous) market at the measurement date under
current market conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless
of whether that price is directly observable or estimated
using another valuation technique. Details of fair value
measurement are explained in the accounting policies set
out below.

The material accounting policies are set out below.

nshop Credit Holdings Limited BEREEEIERARAA

3.

EXRETBERER

REMERRDBEESSAMASEHZE
B R EER MR - ILIN  FRE B RE R
BRI FE S AR KRB B R HRBI TR E
AR o

REREHR - 7AW BERKRTIRIBE £ RKAE
EiRE - MR TEF ABRZ BKERRN
SR ATEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS R MR

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #Z—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 T3 7R )

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. EASHEFEER (&)

INFORMATION (CONT’'D)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the provision of services and disposal of repossessed
assets in the ordinary course of the Group's business.

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the
Group uses a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

o Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation.

The Group recognised revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to customers.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially same.

EFEaNWE
EAEENBREBBRETRERBERHER
W Bl & R - AERBERSRA D BRI -

RS RFHRS B RN EBEY
BRIRR S E RS 2 R B2
=R - ABT S - AREEH SRR
ez

. BB UHREPTUZAN

o  IR2:BRIGHWFZBHNEL

e IH3: EEXRHE

e ¥R BRHEIRECHTZIENE
£

o HB5:E (IRN) BERTHENERETRHE
RS

(IR BHEEETKE  EREBNE

EHREERIRBZ [EFHE] BETEPK
AR BIRER S

BHOREHE - RAEERLIRE (L—HAEM
HBRTE ) B — R IR BARR 2 RS sk R o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT TSR R MR

For the year ended 28 February 2025 H#E—ZE-FF - A -+ N\BIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7051 7R )

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. EASFHEEH (&)

INFORMATION (CONT’'D)

Revenue from contracts with customers (CONT'D)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

° The customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

° The Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced; or

o The Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct goods or service.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which
the Group expects to be entitled in a contract with a
customer, excludes amounts collected on behalf of third
parties.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Interest income

Interest income for all financial assets are recognised
as it accrues using the effective interest method. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset. For financial
assets measured at amortised cost that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied to
the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of
loss allowance) of the asset.

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BEREMEEEERER AT

EFEeWsE (&)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS R MR

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #Z—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A ITFI7R )

EXSTEEEN (&)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.
INFORMATION (CONT'D)

Revenue from contracts with customers (CONT'D) EEEHWE (&)
(i) Fee income (i) EAUA

(iii)

(iv)

Fee income is recognised when the corresponding
service is provide, except where the fee is charged
to cover the costs of a continuing service to, or risk
borne for, the customer, or is interest in nature. In
these cases, the fee is recognised as income in the
accounting period in which the costs or risk are
incurred or is accounted for as interest income.

Disposal of repossessed assets

Disposal gain or loss is recognised when the buyer of
the repossessed assets takes control of and accepts the
goods.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term.

(iii)

(iv)

BRI AR R AR RS B RERR - MM AT
YR B PR Y PR LA SR R [R) 35 P BRI A AR 75
ZRASBEFEEZERNZERER
SUHBERBRN - EHFBRT  ZEAR
EERASER 2 @t IR SKAS
ABRFIER BUA -

HEZ WO EE
HEREIBERNEREEELETERE

KW E R RERR o

HREHEZHTRA
REHEE T ZERRASRATIREEH
BMEZHRANEES BT AR BRRE

X7
Ao
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R BB IRAR M

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #EZ—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\BILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7051 7R )

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

INFORMATION (CONT’'D)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved where the Group has: (i) the power over
the investee; (ii) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and (iii) the ability to use
its power over the investee to affect the amount of the
Group's returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income of subsidiaries are attributed to shareholders of the
Company. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributed to shareholders of the Company.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BEREMEEEERER AT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS R MR

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #Z—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 T3 7R )

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. EASHEFEER (&)

INFORMATION (CONT’'D)

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated on the statement of
financial position of the Company at cost less accumulated
impairment loss.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control of those
policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method. Under the equity method, investments
in associates are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or
loss and other comprehensive income of the associates. If
the Group's share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's
net investment in the associate, the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
provided for, and a liability is recognised, only to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate.

If an associate uses accounting policies other than those
of the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances, adjustments are made to make the associate’s
accounting policies conform to those of the Group when
the associate’s financial statements are used by the Group in
applying the equity method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R BB IRAR M

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #EZ—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\BILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7051 7R )

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

INFORMATION (CONT’'D)

Investments in associates (CONT'D)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes
an associate. On acquisition of the investment, any excess of
the cost of acquisition over the Group's share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the associate
is recognised as goodwill and is included in the carrying
amount of the investment.

Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition,
after reassessment, is recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 36 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group's investment in an associate. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated to
any asset, including goodwill that forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised to the extent that the recoverable amount
of the net investment subsequently increases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR R MR

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #E =T =RAF A=+ N\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA 7T517R )

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

INFORMATION (CONT'D)
Investments in associates (CONT’'D)

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from
the date when the investment ceases to be an associate.
When the Group retains an interest in the former associate
and the retained interest is a financial asset, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that date
and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition in accordance with HKFRS 9. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate at the date
the equity method was discontinued, and the fair value of
any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of a
part interest in the associate is included in the determination
of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate on
the same basis as would be required if that associate had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore,
if a gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associate would be reclassified to profit or
loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or
loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the associate is
disposed of.

When an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or an investment in a joint venture
becomes an investment in an associate, the Group continues
to apply the equity method and does not remeasure the
retained interest.

When the Group’s ownership interest in an associate is
reduced, but the Group continues to apply the equity
method, the proportion of the gain or loss that had
previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest is reclassified
to profit or loss if that gain or loss would be required to be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.
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Wah Pawnshop Credit

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR R M RE

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #EZ—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\BILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7051 7R )

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

INFORMATION (CONT’'D)

Investments in associates (CONT'D)

Gains and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associate are recognised in consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate that are unrelated to the Group. The Group's
share in the associate’s gains or losses resulting from these
transactions is eliminated.

The Group applies HKFRS 9, including the impairment
requirements, to long-term interests in an associate to which
the equity method is not applied and which form part of
the net investment in the investee. In applying HKFRS 9 to
long-term interests, the Group does not take into account
adjustments to their carrying amount required by HKAS
28 (i.e. adjustments to the carrying amount of long -term
interests arising from the allocation of losses of the investee
or assessment of impairment in accordance with HKAS 28).

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value, except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS R MR

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #Z—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 T3 7R )

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. EASHEFEER (&)

INFORMATION (CONT’'D)
Financial instruments (CONT'D)
Financial assets

Financial assets represent loans receivables which mainly
comprise pawn loans and mortgage loans, trade and other
receivables and cash and cash equivalents. Pawn loans are
loans provided whereby personal property such as gold,
jewellery and diamonds, watches and consumer electronic
products are used as collateral for the security of the loans.
Mortgage loans are loans secured by real estates.

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured
in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) and FVPL.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group's business model for managing
them.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R BB IRAR M

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #EZ—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\BILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7051 7R )

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.
INFORMATION (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (CONT'D)
Financial assets (CONT'D)

Financial assets held by the Group are classified into one of
the following measurement categories:

. amortised cost, if the loan and receivable is held within
a business model whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows which
represent solely payments of principal and interest
("SPP1"”). Interest income from the loan and receivable
is calculated using the effective interest method;

° FVOCI - recycling, if the contractual cash flows of
the loan and receivable comprise solely payments
of principal and interest and the investment is held
within a business model whose objective is achieved
by both the collection of contractual cash flows and
selling the financial assets. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income, except
for the recognition in profit or loss of expected credit
losses or impairment gains or losses, interest income
(calculated using the effective interest method) and
foreign exchange gains and losses. When the loan and
receivable is derecognised, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income is recycled from equity to
profit or loss; or

. FVPL, if the loan and receivable does not meet the
criteria for being measured at amortised cost or FVOCI
(recycling). Changes in the fair value of the loan and
receivable (including interest) are recognised in profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR R MR

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #E =T =RAF A=+ N\HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 T3 7R )

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

INFORMATION (CONT'D)
Financial instruments (CONT'D)
Financial assets (CONT'D)

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the
Group considers the contractual terms of the instrument.
This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains
a contractual term that could change the timing or amount
of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this
condition. In making the assessment the Group considers:

o contingent events that would change the amount and
timing of cash flows;

. leverage features;
° prepayment and extension terms;

o terms that limit the Group's claim to cash flows from
specified assets (e.g. non-recourse loans); and

3 features that modify consideration of the time value of
money (e.g. periodical reset of interest rates).

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment.

(i)  Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and
of allocating interest income over the relevant period.

For financial assets, the effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
excluding expected credit losses, through the expected
life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the
debt instrument on initial recognition. For originated
credit-impaired financial assets, a credit-adjusted
effective interest rate is calculated by discounting the
estimated future cash flows, including expected credit
losses, to the amortised cost of the debt instrument on
initial recognition.

EXEEEESR (&)

ERTH (&)

THEE (&)

RN REERERTEEINAERAE
B AREEERETHE SRR BRI
TREERLTBESANEANRERNE IR
KB REE DT EZRIGI 2B KRG - IETT
AHEER - AEEEEE

BRBREREZSERRY I RAT
f

IR

REIANEEZRMBHETEE (NEER
REF)REREZGT R

ERESEREEER A (0T HE
BFE) -

KEEHA AR TR EE (EFTA)
HHERANIIRZ EBEERRRBERA X
SARTEX AIREHIRRE -

B AR BB RE
BRMEX B EEE TR 2B A R
ERBHES KRS WA LTI

REREEMS  BEEREMEE/EH LA
REEBRFFHE (WER) BEHE R
2 AREREBA (BREEKERME
PRIHBRE D 2 — e W ERRE
BoRZRAREMEESTE) (TR
EIRHBEEER) EREENRBERR
BEHRTAZREAEZFER - ERRERE
ERETREE REERBEIBERNX
TEBBEFTRRRERE (BEEHRE
EER) WRENREARBEE LA ZE
SHRCARETE

Annual Report 2025 —E - HE 4§



Oi

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR R M RE

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #EZ—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\BILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7051 7R )

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.
INFORMATION (CONT’'D)

Financial instruments (CONT'D)

Financial assets (CONT'D)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments) (CONT'D)
(i)  Amortised cost and effective interest method (CONT'D)

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount
at which the financial asset is measured at initial
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the
cumulative amortisation using the effective interest
method of any difference between that initial amount
and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss
allowance. The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset is the amortised cost of a financial asset before
adjusting for any loss allowance.

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for debt instruments measured
subsequently at amortised cost. For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If, in
subsequent reporting periods, the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is
included in the “Revenue” line item (note 5).

Financial assets at FVPL

Financial assets at FVPL are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or
losses recognised in profit or loss to the extent they are not
part of a designated hedging relationship. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any interest earned
on the financial asset and is included in the ‘other income,
gains or losses’ or “other operating expenses” line item. Fair
value is determined in the manner described in note 27(d).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS R MR

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #Z—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 T3 7R )

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. EASHEFEER (&)

INFORMATION (CONT’'D)
Financial instruments (CONT’D)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

Expected credit loss (“ECL") are a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the
following discount rates where the effect of discounting is
material:

o fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other receivables:
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition
or an approximation thereof;

. variable-rate financial assets: current effective interest
rate;

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is
the maximum contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R BB IRAR M

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #EZ—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\BILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7051 7R )

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

INFORMATION (CONT’'D)
Financial instruments (CONT'D)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (CONT’'D)

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account reasonable
and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort. This includes information about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

o 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date; and

o lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to
result from all possible default events over the expected
lives of the items to which the ECL model applies.

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit
losses on loan receivables (exclude pawn loans at FVPL)
that are measured at amortised cost. The amount of
expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the
respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The expected credit losses on these financial
assets are estimated using individual basis based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as
the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date,
including time value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increase in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS R MR

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #Z—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 T3 7R )

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. EASHEFEER (&)

INFORMATION (CONT’'D)
Financial instruments (CONT'D)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (CONT’'D)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting date with that assessed
at the date of initial recognition. In respect of the mortgage
loans and pawn loan receivables at amortised cost which
have been past due for less than 1 month, the amounts
mainly represent occasional delay in repayment and are not
an indication of significant deterioration of credit quality of
the mortgage loans and pawn loan receivables at amortised
cost. The Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking
information considered includes the future prospects of the
debtors’ repayment ability as well as consideration of various
external sources of actual and forecast economic information
that relate to the Group’s operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition:

o failure to make payments of principal or interest on
their contractually due dates;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in a
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating (if
available);

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R BB IRAR M

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #EZ—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\BILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7051 7R )

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

INFORMATION (CONT’'D)
Financial instruments (CONT'D)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (CONT’'D)

Significant increase in credit risk (CONT'D)

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective basis.
When the assessment is performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics, such as past due status and credit risk
ratings.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined to
have low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk if i) the debt instrument
has a low risk of default, ii) the debtor has a strong capacity
to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term, and iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual
cash flow obligations.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is recognised
as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss for all financial
instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their
carrying amount through a loss allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS R MR

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #Z—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 T3 7R )

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. EASHEFEER (&)

INFORMATION (CONT’'D)
Financial instruments (CONT'D)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (CONT’'D)

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not recoverable:

o when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
debtor; or

o information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that a
default event occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay
its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realising security (if any is
held); or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days past due unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

o significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

. a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

o the disappearance of an active market for a security
because of financial difficulties of the debtor.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R BB IRAR M

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #EZ—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\BILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7051 7R )

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

INFORMATION (CONT’'D)
Financial instruments (CONT'D)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (CONT’'D)
Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written
off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when
the Group determines that the debtor does not have assets
or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.

Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function
of the probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure
at default. The assessment of the probability of default and
loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information as described above. As for the
exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented
by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date.

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as
the difference between all contractual cash flows that are
due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at the original effective interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the
previous reporting period, but determines at the current
reporting date that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no
longer met, the Group measures the loss allowance at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL at the current reporting
date, except for assets for which simplified approach was
used.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS R MR

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #Z—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 T3 7R )

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. EASHEFEER (&)

INFORMATION (CONT'D)
Financial instruments (CONT'D)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R BB IRAR M

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #EZ—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\BILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7051 7R )

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

INFORMATION (CONT'D)

Financial instruments (CONT'D)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (CONT'D)
Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not 1) contingent consideration
of an acquirer in a business combination, 2) held-for-trading,
or 3) designated as at FVPL, are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the amortised cost of a
financial liability.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS R MR

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #Z—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 T3 7R )

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. EASHEFEER (&)

INFORMATION (CONT’'D)

Leasing
Definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys a right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group as leasee

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease,
at inception of the contract. The Group recognises a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect
to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee, except
for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option). For these leases, the Group
recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date, the Group measures lease
liability at the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at that date. The lease payments are discounted
by using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If this rate
cannot be readily determined, the Group uses its incremental
borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability comprise fixed lease payments (including in-substance
fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using
the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying
amount to reflect the lease payments made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R BB IRAR M

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #EZ—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\BILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7051 7R )

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

INFORMATION (CONT'D)
Leasing (CONT’'D)

The Group as leasee (CONT'D)
Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of
the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or
before the commencement date and any initial direct costs,
less lease incentives received. Whenever the Group incurs
an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased
asset, restore the site on which it is located or restore the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease, a provision is recognised and
measured under HKAS 37 “Provision, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets”. The costs are included in the
related right-of-use asset, unless those costs are incurred to
produce inventories.

Rights-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. They are
depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful
life of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the
commencement date of the lease.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group applies HKAS 36 to determine whether a right-
of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any identified
impairment loss.
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oles to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Notes to the ( lidated F | Stat L

e ISR R MR

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #E =T =RAF A=+ N\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 T3 7R )

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

INFORMATION (CONT'D)
Leasing (CONT’'D)
Lease modification

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

o the consideration for the lease increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of
the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification.

The Group as lessor

The Group enters into lease agreements as a lessor. Leases
for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance or
operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

When a contract includes both lease and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 to allocate the
consideration under the contract to each component.

Sublease

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for
the head lease and the sublease as two separate contracts.
The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease, rather than by reference to the underlying asset. If
the head lease is a short-term lease to which the group
applies the exemption described above, the sublease shall be
classified as an operating lease.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Notes to the ( lidated F | Stat t

e ISR R M RE

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #EZ—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\BILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7051 7R )

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

INFORMATION (CONT’'D)

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment loss, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to allocate the cost of items
of plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. The recoverable amount of plant and
equipment, and right-of-use assets are estimated individually.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (the “CGU") to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual CGU, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of CGU for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR R MR

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #E =T =RAF A=+ N\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 T3 7R )

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

INFORMATION (CONT’D)

Impairment losses on plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets (CONT'D)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to
a CGU, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of CGU, including the carrying amounts of the corporate
assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group
of CGU, with the recoverable amount of the group of CGU.
In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
(if applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit or the group of CGU. The carrying amount of an asset
is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro
rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of CGU. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a CGU) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a CGU) in prior years. A reversal
of impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R BB IRAR M

For the year ended 28 February 2025 H#E—ZE-FF - A -+ N\BIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7051 7R )

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

INFORMATION (CONT’'D)

Repossessed assets

In the recovery of impaired loan receivables granted under
the Pawnbrokers Ordinance (Chapter 166 of the laws of
Hong Kong), the Group takes possession of the collateral
assets from the customers. This possession takes place once
a loan becomes overdue, subject to a grace period granted
at the discretion of the Group in certain cases.

Repossessed assets are initially recognised at the amortised
cost of the related outstanding loans on the date of
repossession, which is generally below the net realisable
value of the repossessed assets. Upon repossession of the
assets, the related loan receivables are derecognised from
the consolidated statement of financial position. Repossessed
assets are carried at the lower of the amount initially
recognised or net realisable value and are therefore written
down if and when the net realisable value falls to below the
carrying amount of the asset. The excess/shortfall of the net
proceeds over the carrying amount of the repossessed assets
is recognised as a gain/loss upon the disposal of the assets.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of financial position, cash and
bank balances comprise cash (i.e. cash on hand and demand
deposits) and cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are short-
term (generally with original maturity of three months or
less), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
to a known amount of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash equivalents
are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash
commitments rather for investment or other purposes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS R MR

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #Z—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 T3 7R )

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. EASHEFEER (&)

INFORMATION (CONT’'D)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditures expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR R M RE

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #E =T =RAF A=+ N\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA THI7R )

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

INFORMATION (CONT'D)
Taxation (CONT’'D)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit and at the time
of the transaction does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period. When different
tax rates apply to different levels of taxable income, deferred
tax assets and liabilities are measured using the average tax
rates that are expected to apply to the taxable income of
the periods in which the temporary differences are expected
to reverse.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS R MR

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #Z—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 T3 7R )

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. EASHEFEER (&)

INFORMATION (CONT’'D)
Taxation (CONT'D)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
in respect of salaries, annual bonus, paid annual leave and
the cost of non-monetary benefits in the period the related
service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee
benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related
service.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R BB IRAR M

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #EZ—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\BILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7051 7R )

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

INFORMATION (CONT’'D)
Employee benefits (CONT'D)
Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits are provided by the Group under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
as defined contribution schemes. The employer's monthly
contributions to the scheme are at a maximum of 5% of
each employee’s monthly salary, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of $30,000.

The cost of all these schemes is charged to profit or loss of
the Group for the year concerned and the assets of all these
schemes are held separately from those of the Group.

Long service payments

Certain of the Group's employees have completed the
required number of years of service to the Group in
order to be eligible for long service payments under the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance in the event of the
termination of their employment. The Group is liable to
make such payments in the event that such a termination
of employment meets the circumstances specified in the
Employment Ordinance.

A provision is recognised in respect of probable future long
service payments based on the best estimate of the probable
future outflow of resources which have been earned by the
employees from their service to the Group at the reporting
date.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS R MR

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #Z—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 T3 7R )

ﬁéfﬁkﬂiﬁﬂ ( mﬁ)

INFORMATION (CONT’'D)

Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(ii)

(ii)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group;

is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group's parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R BB IRAR M

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #EZ—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\BILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7051 7R )

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

INFORMATION (CONT’'D)
Related parties (CONT’'D)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial statements provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of businesses and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type of class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if
they share a majority of these criteria.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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oles to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Notes to the ( lidated F | Stat L

e ISR R MR

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #E =T =RAF A=+ N\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 T3 7R )

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

INFORMATION (CONT’D)

Fair value measurement

When measuring fair value, except for the net realisable
value of repossessed assets and leasing transactions,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the
asset or liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability
at the measurement date.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs. Specifically, the Group categorised the fair value
measurements into three levels, based on the characteristics
of inputs, as follows:

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest

level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable.

Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group determines
whether transfer occur between levels of the fair value
hierarchy for assets and liabilities which are measured at fair
value on recurring basis by reviewing their respective fair
value measurement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR R M RE

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #E =T =RAF A=+ N\HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA THI7R )

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about amounts
of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses reported and
disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following is the key assumption concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that has a significant risk of
resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets within the next financial year.

Impairment of loan receivables at amortised cost

The Group determines the impairment of loan receivables
at amortised cost based on assumptions about ECL. Key
parameters included the identification of loss stages, estimation
of probability of default, loss given default, exposures at default,
discount rate, adjustments for forward-looking information and
other adjustment factors including value of collaterals. At every
reporting date, the default rates are updated. Changes in these
assumptions and estimates could materially affect the result
of the assessment and it may be necessary to make additional
impairment charge to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

As at 28 February 2025, the carrying amount of loan
receivables at amortised cost was approximately HK$717.1
million (2024: HK$823.7 million). During the year ended 28
February 2025, an impairment loss of approximately HK$46.3
million (2024: HK$15.1 million) had been recognised. Among
that, the Group had written off approximately HK$29.0
million (2024: HK$1.1 million) expected credit loss as the
respective borrower was fail to pay its credit obligations to
the Group in full and the management determines that there
is no realistic prospect of recovery of such credit obligation.
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e ISR R MR

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #E =T =RAF A=+ N\HILFE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA 7T517R )

REVENUE 5. Uz
The principal activities of the Group are engaged in secured AEENEFEXEB AR BN ETEEARE
financing business in Hong Kong including pawn loans and (BB ERMIZBERER) ¥ -
mortgage loans.
Revenue represents interest income earned on pawn loans Weais g B R R\ E R SRR 52
and mortgage loans and results on disposal of repossessed WARRELKBEECEE  FN - BEHE
assets. The amount of each nature of business of revenue BHERERZBRSFEAT
recognised during the year is as follows:
2025 2024
—E-HE —EEFE
$'000 $'000
T 7T
Revenue from pawn loan business HE S RER 2 W=
— Interest income from pawn loan receivables ?E%W*'Jf/ﬁﬁr g 2 e
calculated using the effective interest HE G AEWA
method 8,496 9,477
— Interest income from pawn loan receivables —IZAF(ET ABzE 2 EUKL
at FVPL HEERZ M BWA 67,686 63,367
— Gain on disposal of repossessed assets —Hj%?%ﬂﬁl@ﬁﬁzl&m 11,141 6,715
87,323 79,559
Revenue from mortgage loan business RIBEAE T ER < Was
— Interest income from mortgage loan —IREERFERETE 2 B
receivables calculated using the effective RRERE T2 F2WA
interest method 76,972 99,748
164,295 179,307
Gain on disposal of repossessed assets is the revenue from HEKWDIEE NS IES S IEEHE 2R FE

contracts with customers within the scope of HKFRS 15
and the timing of recognition is at a point in time. The cost
of disposal of repossessed assets for the year ended 28
February 2025 amounted to approximately HK$56.3 million
(2024: approximately HK$58.3 million).

During the year ended 28 February 2025 and 29 February
2024, the Group's customer base was diversified and no
customer with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of
the Group’s revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R BB IRAR M

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #EZ—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\BILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7051 7R )

6. SEGMENT REPORTING 6. ZDEPEE
The Group has one reportable segment, which is the REEF—IBAIEHmH 30 AR EBRREE HK T
provision of secured financing business in Hong Kong, BE (RREREERMIEBEEAER) %% - H
including pawn loans and mortgage loans. Therefore, no It B 251 58N 230 BRI EE R
additional reportable segment and geographical information
have been presented.
7. OTHER INCOME, GAINS OR LOSSES 7. HBA - WEHER
2025 2024
—E-RE —ZE O
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Rental income AU A 1,217 1,796
Credit related fee income EEMHRBEZERKRA 234 935
Dividend income from financial assets at FVPL R AFEFABZ 2 & RVEE
Z B BUA 2,329 -
Bank interest income RITHEHA 5,105 1,830
Gains from changes in fair value of financial AT EFABZZERHEE
assets at FVPL 2 N FEE W E 2,175 =
Others HAt 694 169
11,754 4,730
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS R MR

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #Z—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 T3 7R )

8. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 8. PBRBATRF

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

BREBATE N IR, (FEA) A T IREER

2025 2024
—E_RHE —E-mE
$'000 $'000
Ft Tt
(a) Finance costs (a) RERZA
Interest on debt securities issued BETEEESHE 544 1,908
Interest on loans from the immediate BEEBERARZ
holding company BRFE 2,375 2,382
Interest on bank loans IRITEFF B 180 911
Interest on lease liabilities HEAERNE 818 929
3,917 6,130
(b) Staff costs (b) EIRA
Salaries and other benefits e RHMEF 23,878 21,737
Directors’ remuneration (Note 10) EEFHH (MFE10) 9,543 9,317
Contributions to Mandatory Provident BEIEATES
Fund (“MPF") ([mEe]) 2Hx 540 526
(Reversal of) charge for provision for (@) Mk = HR
long service payment AR5 & Bl (181) 109
33,780 31,689
(c) Other operating expenses () Hh&=m%
Premises and equipment expenses M REERX
excluding depreciation: (TBEFE) :
— rental of premises —MEHEE 4,310 3,417
— maintenance, repairs and others —RE B R EAM 1,176 1,186
5,486 4,603
Auditor’s remuneration Z BRI & 970 950
Depreciation of plant and equipment R K & T E 921 802
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEE 7,578 8,720
Advertising expenses BEHX 2,513 2,475
Bank charges R1TE M 2,116 2,218
Legal and professional fees EERBEER 2,213 2,865
Net losses (gains) on loan receivables at BAFEFFABREZ
FVPL W ER BE
(Wzs ) #58 32 (16)
Others Hith 5,497 5,193
21,840 23,207
61,106 59,499
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR R M RE

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #E =T =RAF A=+ N\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA THI7R )

INCOME TAX FRiGH
2025 2024
—E-RHEF —F_MF
$'000 $'000
T 7T
Hong Kong Profits Tax BERFEH
Provision for the year FNEE
— Current tax — BNEAR IR 11,691 19,114
Under-provision in respect of prior year BEFEEETRE 13 20
Deferred tax (Note 18) BB IE (FFEE18) (2,897) (2,299)
8,807 16,835
On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council RZZE—N\E=A=+—0 AL ESBEE"
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 = — tif/ﬁk (& pT) (%75)’?”%%#% ([

(the “Bill") which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and
was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2.0 million of profits of
qualifying corporation will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits
above HK$2.0 million will be taxed at 16.5%. For both
years, Hong Kong profits tax of the qualified entity of the
Group is calculated in accordance with the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime. The profits of other Group entities in Hong
Kong not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime will continue to be taxed at the flat rate of 16.5%.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any income tax in
the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BIEMEEEERER AT

_ﬁ

H2R]) S| AFBREMEH - (EHIERR=
T N\F=ZA= +)\El S BN AERE  WREH
EHNER REBEFSHEMEH 2 ERDE
E2,000,000/8 7T 2 4 A i 2 7 2 8.2 5 % 1 5 +
2,000,000 7T LA £ 2 I & 51 22 16.5 % 44
Fii o WElAé%%:%:‘&;‘fﬁAWIEFZE;%ﬂ’E%}%
HIRFIEREMAFIE - REERHFEFIEH
%ﬁ%&%lJéET%ZEME, B 2w M A iz
2 —FiR16.5%8F -

4
e /
\

fog

RERSEERRBRELEE ZDER MR
SEBANFESRE R REBRE IS BNER
FS®L



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS R MR

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #Z—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 T3 7R )

INCOME TAX (CONT'D) 9. FEMH (&])
The income tax for the year can be reconciled to the profit FAFGEREFRE B REMEEBKARZR
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or AL ME R

loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

2025 2024

—E-RHF —Z-F

$'000 $'000

Tt T

Profit before taxation BR 3% Bl A 64,715 103,282
Notional tax on profit before taxation, BRA% AR F 2 B 3= 118

calculated at applicable rates (FRERMEGTHE) 9,702 16,877

Tax effect of non-taxable income AR 2 BTG & (842) (302)

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TR AR B & 121 261

Utilisation of tax loss not recognised in FRABEFERERTIEEE

previous years (Note (i) (%)) (175) =

Under-provision in respect of prior year BAEFERENR 13 20

Statutory tax concession (Note (ii)) SEERIER R (M) (12) (21)

Income tax FTiSHt 8,807 16,835

Note: Bt -

i. At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused i. RIREBR - AEEARBATIEEE 174,000/
tax losses of HK$174,000 (2024: HK$1,236,000) available for T (ZZ =4 : 1,236,000 7T ) °] A VB4 64
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been R o AN G B M L 2 S S B R IR TR
recognised in respect of these losses. THEFE -

ii.  Statutory tax concession represented a reduction of Hong i. AEMBERE-Z-_N/ —T-_RFR=ZF
Kong Profits Tax for the year of assessment 2024/2025 and =/ R CUERBEREZEBNEGHINR
2023/2024 by 100%, subject to a ceiling of HK$1,500 and 100% ' ' _EBR 2 5l A&1,5007%8 7T & 3,000 7T

HK$3,000 respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #EZ—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\BILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7051 7R )

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the

10. ESEHM

Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Year ended 28 February 2025

BE-_Z_AF_A-+NBLFE

EZHFHREFTEQAIGRHIEISI(MNERAE
(BREEENRER) ROIF2EEENT -

Salaries,
allowances and

Discretionary

Contributions

Directors’ fees other benefits bonuses to MPF Total
e 2R
EsHe 27 BERA BRSHN @t
$'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr T
Emoluments paid or receivable FtEENEEAATF]

in respect of directors’ REMBAR

services in connection with EBAHE RS

the management of the EXfIiEfE

affairs of the Company and W Z B4

its subsidiary undertakings
Executive directors TES
Chan Kai Ho Edward (Chief  FRRIZ (1TERE#)

Executive) - 1,856 4,322 18 6,196
Chan Ying Yu ) - 667 - 18 685
Chan Chart Man (note () PR3 (HIFE(G) ) - 597 - - 597
Chan Mei Fong S5 - 1,087 - 18 1,105
Emoluments paid or receivable  FLEAMAIETES

in respect of a person’s B IEEAT

services as a non-executive EZ50RS

director or independent AR ENRB

non-executive director, RARIEZ

whether of the Company HEKER 2 M

and its subsidiary

undertakings
Non-executive directors FHTES
Ng Siu Hong hiRE 192 - - - 192
Chan Kai Kow, Macksion BRAAER 192 - - - 192
Independent non-executive BIFHTES

directors
Lam On Tai Ve 192 - - - 192
Leung Shiu Ki Albert py[9: 192 - - - 192
Yip Ngai % 192 - - - 192
Total st 960 4,207 4322 54 9,543
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS R MR

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #Z—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 T3 7R )

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONT’'D)
Year ended 29 February 2024

10. EEFHM (&)
HE_Z-_NMF_A-+NBIFE

Salaries,

allowances and Discretionary  Contributions to

Directors’ fees  other benefits bonuses MPF Total
e 2R
EEok Hit WiEa BiES N #at
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tt T T T T
Emoluments paid or REENERE

receivable in respect ARaRE

of directors' services EYNGEY /S

in connection with the HEZRBE

management of the affairs XIS

of the Company and its Yoz e

subsidiary undertakings
Executive directors BTEE
Chan Kai Ho Edward (Chief ~ BREIZ (17H#

Executive) #) - 1,800 4,305 18 6,123
Chan Ying Yu BREH) - 644 - 18 662
Chan Chart Man (note (i)) B (FTRE(G)) = 504 = = 504
Chan Mei Fong B - 1,050 - 18 1,068
Emoluments paid or SEEAAFERTT

receivable in respect of ESYBHE

a person’s services as a WOIEZFM

non-executive director FRBARRAI

or independent non- HITB AR

executive director, whether SEYRET:!

of the Company and its FEWER 2 B

subsidiary undertakings
Non-executive directors FHTES
Ng Siu Hong hiaE 192 - - - 192
Chan Kai Kow, Macksion BRERER 192 = = = 192
Independent non-executive BIEHTEES

directors
Lam On Tai Mz % 192 - - - 192
Leung Shiu Ki Albert 2K 192 - - - 192
Yip Ngai 2% 192 - - - 192
Total @it 960 3,998 4,305 54 9,317
Note ():  Mr. Chan Chart Man passed away and ceased to be an B EEG) : PREEXEAEN T _MFELA+/SAEE

executive Director on 16 July 2024.

HRIBEERTES-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R BB IRAR M

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #EZ—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\BILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7051 7R )

10. ESHM (&

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONT'D)

The discretionary bonus for Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward is
determined by having regard to his performance and the
Group’s performance and profitability and the prevailing
market conditions.

Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward is also the chief executive of the
Company (the “Chief Executive”) and his emoluments
disclosed above include those for services rendered by him
as the Chief Executive.

No Directors has agreed with the Company to any
arrangement under which a director has waived or agreed to
waive any remuneration during both years.

During both years, there were no amounts paid or payable
by the Group to the Directors or any of the five highest paid
individuals as set out in note 11 below as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss

REMEREEZHBIEATIESER ZRRAR
REBZ XBERBAEENARIRITHNETE

REREENMBARA ZITHAE ([TTHAE
) MEXABEREFEZMEEREEREESE
TTERABEL P IR AR TS 2 B < o

RAEFER  BEESEARQBEXTAR
BE - MEEEREXFRBREEAHHN -

RMAEFEAR  AEEYEINRENTESTK
TXHENMAEEAARRSFHMA LKA
MER TSI R EMBLMBAREE R 2 RENK
TERBERBFE(E -

of office.
11. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOUMENTS 11. BEaHMA
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, TEEaRFMATHERE (ZSE_MNFE /W
two (2024: two) are directors of the Company whose B)BEARBEE  BEZHMRNE10HEE -
emoluments are disclosed in note 10. The aggregate of the MRTI=R(ZFNF: =%) AT 2HMEE
emoluments in respect of the remaining three (2024: three) s
are as follows:
2025 2024
—E_RE —Z=_OF
$'000 $'000
Ft T
Salaries and other benefits e REMEF 3,561 3,599
Contributions to MPF RIEE R 54 53
3,615 3,652

The emoluments of the above three (2024: three) individuals
with the highest emoluments are within the following bands:

F=%(ZZ2-mF: =R)RaFMALZ
FMEATEER

2025 2024

—E-RE —E_POE

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

A AZ

Nil — HK$1,000,000 £%1,000,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 — HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 8L E

1,500,0007% 7T 2 2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR
For the year ended 28 February 2025 #Z—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 T3 7R )
12. EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. BREF
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable A B R B AR E AR F TR R AT Uk
to shareholders of the Company is based on the following FE
data:
Earnings 27
2025 2024
—E-REF —TmEF
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Profit for the year attributable to shareholders 77 &) % 5 1 F Az 7
of the Company 55,908 86,447
Weighted average number of ordinary share HER 2 R H
2025 2024
—E-REF —TmEF
Number of Number of
shares shares
RBEE it €k B
‘000 ‘000
TR Tz
Issued ordinary shares at 1 March R=ZA—BZBEBTEER 1,927,236 1,927,236
Effect of purchase of own shares (Note 26(c) OB HBRH 22
(ii) (B 5E26(c)i) ) (953) =
Weighted average number of ordinary shares  F{EsTEFMIERZEF| 2 L@
for the proposes of basic earnings per R N S 15 25
share 1,926,283 1,927,236
The basic earnings per share and the diluted earnings per HAMREEEYED B TELE SRR U E
share are the same as there were no potential dilutive % EE AN 2 ) B2 7 R 28 2 R FE ) o

ordinary shares in issue during both years.
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e M RRMEE
For the year ended 28 February 2025 #EZ—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\BILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7051 7R )
13. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. BMERKME
Leasehold Furniture and
improvements fixtures Motor vehicles Total
HEMELE RAREE A& Fohy
$000 $'000 $000 $'000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
Cost: R
At 1 March 2023 RZEBE-=F=A
—A 5,288 3,756 2,740 11,784
Additions NE 1,545 240 = 1,785
At 29 February 2024 and 1 RZT Y4
March 2024 —A=+hB
e 12
=A—H 6,833 3,996 2,740 13,569
Additions NE 571 104 - 675
Written off HisH (732) (368) - (1,100)
At 28 February 2025 RZZE-_RHF_A
—+N\H 6,672 3,732 2,740 13,144
Accumulated depreciation: EFHITE:
At 1 March 2023 RZBE-=F=A
—A 4,137 3,481 2,130 9,748
Charge for the year FAZH 425 187 190 802
At 29 February 2024 and 1 i Slitfi==
March 2024 ZRZ=+AH
St 2
=A—H 4,562 3,668 2,320 10,550
Charge for the year FAZH 663 110 148 921
Written off g8 (732) (368) - (1,100)
At 28 February 2025 RZZ-RFE_A
—+NH 4,493 3,410 2,468 10,371
Carrying values: BRMEE :
At 28 February 2025 e S s |
—+\H 2,179 322 272 2,773
At 29 February 2024 RZZTZNFE A
—+NH 2,271 328 420 3,019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS R MR

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #Z—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 T3 7R )

13. BMERRE (&

13. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT'D)

The above items of plant and equipment are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
assets, as follows:

EiimERZEREREEGTERAFHAR
BERERFTENT

Leasehold improvements ~ Over the shorter of term of the HEWMERE FAEHSF (UARE
lease or 5 years ERE)

Furniture and fixtures 5 years REAREE 54

Motor vehicles 5 years B 54

As at 28 February 2025, the gross carrying amount of
fully depreciated leasehold improvements, furniture
and fixtures, and motor vehicles that are still in use
amounted to approximately HK$3,967,000, HK$3,201,000
and HK$1,998,000 respectively (29 February 2024:
HK$3,776,000, HK$2,769,000 and HK$1,508,000
respectively).

RZE_RAF_A-+N\B ERENENEE
MERE RARKEBEURDEFRANTE 2
IRMEAAE D BI# 43,967,000 7T ~ 3,201,000
L% 1,998,0008 L (ZE—WMF A=+
B:%55l4&3,776,000/8 7T ~ 2,769,000/8 7t &
1,508,000/ 7T ) °

14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 14. FRAESERHEERE
LIABILITIES

(i) Right-of-use assets (i) FHESE
2025 2024
—E-HF —EEF
$'000 $'000
T T
Leased properties — buildings HEWME-—BF 22,163 13,210

The Group has lease arrangements for leased
properties. The lease terms are generally ranged from
one to seven years with fixed lease payments.

Additions to the right-of-use assets for the year
ended 28 February 2025 amounted to approximately
HK$11.2 million (2024: approximately HK$7.2 million),
due to the entering into new lease agreements and
the remaining HK$5.3 million (2024: nil) due to
modifications of existing leases for building.

During the year ended 28 February 2025, extension
options are included in the lease of buildings. Certain
periods covered by extension options were included in
these lease terms as the Group was reasonably certain
to exercise the option.

AEBEREEDRELEE L - HEH K
NF—2tF WAXNEEHETE-

BE-_Z-_RE_A-+t/N\BI-EENFEHE
BENEHA11,200,00087T (ZE-ME: 4
7,200,000 70) ' RERF A E R - Mek
75,300,000/ 7C (ZZ =04 : &) Al HIMER
BEEFHLTEK -

RBEZT-_RF_RA=+N\BILFE EEY
MEFBSERRERE ARNAKERREERK
SITEZEERE  AEHEERIRENE D
HIFE 2 st AHEHIRA -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #EZ—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\BILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7051 7R )

14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE

LIABILITIES (CONT’'D)
(i) Right-of-use assets (CONT'D)

During the years ended 28 February 2025 and 29
February 2024, the Group has subleased part of the
leased properties. The Group has classified the sublease
as operating lease. During the year ended 28 February HE -
2025, the Group recognised rental income from
subleasing right-of-use assets of approximately HK$1.2
million (2024: approximately HK$1.8 million).

(ii) Lease liabilities

14. FRAEEEREERE (&)

(i) EREEE (&)
BHE_Z_HAF_A-+tNHEZ=-Z_/H
F_A-+NBLEFE  AEBEHHEE
AHE %% NEBDBEH AL E KL

TR -_A-F+NBLHF

Fﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁ%z*ﬂ%

A #91,200,0008 7T ( ZZF = U4 : 4

1,800,000/ 7T ) °

(i) HEAE

2025 2024
—E-REF —TmF
$'000 $'000
Tr T
Current mE 7,867 6,772
Non-current IERED 15,297 7,213
23,164 13,985
Amounts payable under lease liabilities HESERE T ZEMNHE
2025 2024
ZEBCRHF —F_MF
$'000 $'000
Tr T
Within one year —FRA 7.867 6,772
After one year but within two years —FIREBRFA 6,635 4,326
After two years but within five years MEREBRFA 6,255 2,887
After five years hF& 2,407 =
23,164 13,985
Less: Amount due for settlement within B R AREEE 2
12 months (shown under current F|EAFIE (PR RB AR
liabilities) AT) (7.867) (6,772)
Amount due for settlement after 12 1218 A& 455
months 2 EFoR 15,297 7,213

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BEREMEEEERER AT




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS R MR

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #Z—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 T3 7R )

14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (CONT'D)

(iii) Amounts recognised in profit or loss

(iv)

(v)

14. FREEEREERE (&

(i) REZEAZEH

2025 2024
—E-RE —Z e
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Depreciation of right-of-use assets — CREEERE - HEME
leased properties 7,578 8,720
Interest on lease liabilities HEEEZAE 818 929
Expense relating to short-term leases ERARHHEEZHAXZ 4,310 3,417
Income from subleasing right-of-use HEGERAREE KA
assets (1,217) (1,796)
Others (iv) Hft

As at 28 February 2025 and 29 February 2024, the
Group had no committed lease agreements not yet
commenced.

During the year ended 28 February 2025, the total
cash outflow for leases amounted to approximately
HK$12.5 million (2024: approximately HK$13.1
million).

Restrictions or covenants on leases

As at 28 February 2025, lease liabilities of
approximately HK$23,164,000 were recognised
with related right-of-use assets of approximately
HK$22,163,000 (2024: lease liabilities of approximately
HK$13,985,000 and related right-of-use assets of
approximately HK$13,210,000). The lease agreements
do not impose any covenants other than the security
interests in the leased assets that are held by the
lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

(v)

RIE-_RAF A -+ N\BR-_ZT_NF
Z“AZt+NB AEEXERRIBHER
HEW -

REBEE—_ZE_AF_A-+N\HIEFE"
HEZR& R ARE4 412,500,000 T
(== P04 : 913,100,000/ 7T ) °

&R e 25
R-E-—RE-_A=-+)/\B EHBRAHEE
B154923,164,00058 7T - £ & AHREE A
HEEE#X22,163,0008 0 ( — T P4
FHE B E413,985,00058 7T K AR FE# F #E
EE#)13,210,000870) © B B A AT
HEEEMNERERIN HEHET Ei
INER R - HEEETS B IERERAE
#ﬁ o
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otes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #E =T =RAF A=+ N\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A ITFI/R )

15. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 15. BE QAR 2 S

2025 2024
—E-RE —ZTpOF
$°000 $'000
T T
Costs of investment in an associate (Note) Bt N AR E RS (P EE) - =
Note: On 26 October 2023, the Group acquired 49% interest ek RZZE_=F+ A=+ B AEBEWEPACM
in PACM OW GP Il Limited, which is incorporated in OW GP Il Limited (ERAR S B S M)
Cayman Islands, at a consideration of USD49 (equivalent to 49% M)  REAR49FET (HERL382
approximately HK$382) and accounted for the investment as TC) Wt ARBEE R B 218 E - 2Bt & RAal 2 E

an associate. The principal activity of the associate is fund BEEAESEI

management.

16. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 16. BAFESAEBRISRHEE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2025 2024

—ECRE ZEUF

$'000 $'000

Frx Tt

Unlisted fund investment IELEMESKE 40,356 =

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BEREMEEEERER AT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n‘li\

BB IRRMEE

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #Z—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 T3 7R )

LOAN RECEIVABLES

17. BEIRER

2025 2024
—E-RF —E M
$'000 $'000
T 7T

Loan receivables at amortised cost: REBHENATEZRNER:
— Pawn loans —HEER 43,233 42,045
— Accrued interests of pawn loans —HEEHEFTFE 1,026 1,079
Pawn loan receivables M E B R 44,259 43,124

Less: Impairment allowance on pawn loans — & : 885 B FORE BE —

Stage 3 F3MEER (8,328) (3,701)
Net pawn loan receivables rHAEERF®E 35931 39,423
— Mortgage loans —RBERER 670,722 769,499
— Accrued interests of mortgage loans —IRIBEIRE R TR 22,514 25,095

693,236 794,594
Less: Impairment allowance on mortgage R B B FORE RS —

loans — Stage 3 FIPEER (22,970) (10,330)
Net mortgage loan receivables JEBHR B R S FOFE 670,266 784,264
— Corporate loan —EEK 10,000 =
— Accrued interest of corporate loan —EERZETHE 910 =
Net corporate loan receivable rgexERF®E 0 10910 =
Total net loan receivables at amortised cost REERAGTEZ

FEW EOF 5 717,107 823,687
Loan receivables at FVPL: BAFETTABREZZ

EWER:
Pawn loans HEE® 158,977 150,242
Total net loan receivables BB EEEE 876,084 973,929
Current portion included under current assets  ZIA R ENEEE 2 BNEIEE (848,448) (937,230)
Amounts due after one year included under  FIRIERBEEE NA—F14

non-current assets T EAFRR 27,636 36,699
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SRE I HRRMIEE

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #EZ—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\BILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7051 7R )

17. LOAN RECEIVABLES (CONT'D) 17. BIRER (&)

In determining the expected credit losses for loan receivables,
the Directors have determined using a number of key
parameters and assumptions, including the identification of
loss stages, estimates of probability of default, loss given
default, exposures at default, discount rate, adjustments for

REERKERCAREEEERR EFCRTE
ERZHEBR2HRER SEBERER
RETEAM R  BOELZER - BORR
REIRE - AEREEER BN R BEREMD

forward-looking information, value of collateral and other
adjustment factors.

RMEFER - ¥ b RKE R Z E1E R AEE AT
IR E 2 EABRRLBEEREE) -

There has been no material change in the estimation
techniques or significant assumptions made during both
years in assessing the loss allowance for loan receivables.

Movement in impairment losses B 5 18 2 B
Expected credit loss
EHEERSSE
2025 2024
—E-RE —ZE O
Stage 3 Stage 3
HEIRER FIEER
$'000 $'000
Fr F7
At 1 March R=RA—H 14,031 -
Impairment losses recognised on profit or loss A EZEHER 2 H{EEE
— Pawn loan —HEEN 4,627 4,796
— Mortgage loan —RIBERER 41,684 10,330
60,342 15,126
Written off i 58
— Pawn loan —HEER - (1,095)
— Mortgage loan — IR ER (29,044) =
At 28 February/29 February R=ZA=+NB/
—A=-+AhB 31,298 14,031

During the year ended 28 February 2025, the Group had
provided approximately HK$46.3 million (2024: HK$15.1
million) expected credit loss as the borrowers were unlikely
to pay their credit obligations to the Group in full. Among
that, the Group had written off approximately HK$29.0
million (2024: HK$1.1 million) expected credit loss as the
respective borrower was fail to pay its credit obligations to
the Group in full and the management determines that there
is no realistic prospect of recovery of such credit obligation.

BE_Z-_AF_A-+N\BILLEE BHE
RATKAEMAEERR I FEEEERR
REB D 5HE446,300,000/8 7T ( ZF U4 :
15,100,000/ 70 ) 2 TBHAEEEE - E/F AR
BRARERNAEERSSINEEEES A
ERERAEBEERBYEETR K RE -
AREEE i §H4929,000,00078 7 ( —F — U4 :
1,100,000 7T ) 2 FEEAE EE1E -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS R MR

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #Z—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 T3 7R )

17. LOAN RECEIVABLES (CONT'D) 17. BIRER (&)
Ageing analysis BRiR 2 AT
Ageing analysis of the gross amount of loan receivables is ERAHPHBEREBTENREERE R
prepared based on contractual due date and not net of loss WERBRE 2 REDITAT :
allowance as follows:
Pawn Corporate
loans at loan at
amortised Pawn loans  Mortgage  amortised
cost at FVPL loans cost Total
R BATE R
HAEz FtAB#HEZ BBEE REHEZ
HEEX HEER B EEWR st
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T Tr T
28 February 2025 “E-RECR
—+NH
Not past due I 4% 460 5 34,583 155,349 386,577 576,509
Less than 1 month past due BHIR1EA 578 2,086 69,610 72,274
1 to less than 3 months past due  #HI1{EAZE
DR3MEA - 948 43,920 44,868
3 to less than 6 months past due  BHI3EAZE
Dr6fE A - 594 2,615 10,910 14,119
6 months to 1 year past due A AE1F - - 35,698 35,698
Over 1 year past due B ELA L 9,098 - 154,816 163,914
44,259 158,977 693,236 10,910 907,382
Pawn loans at Pawn loans at
amortised cost FVPL  Mortgage loans Total
RE S BAFE
A2 B iR
2 EEER ZEEER BEX f@Et
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
29 February 2024 “ENEZA
—thH
Not past due Rig ekt 25,797 145,138 411,942 582,877
Less than 1 month past due BEIDREA 426 3,608 128,577 132,611
1 to less than 3 months past BHIEAZE
due DIR3MEA 3,074 1,168 26,546 30,788
3 to less than 6 months past ~ BHBEAZE
due D6{E A - 328 125,784 126,112
6 months to 1 year past due BEEAZ1E 13,827 = - 13,827
Over 1 year past due BEEIUE = = 101,745 101,745
43,124 150,242 794,594 987,960
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R BB IRAR M

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #EZ—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\BILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7051 7R )

17. LOAN RECEIVABLES (CONT’D)

Ageing analysis (CONT'D)

As at 28 February 2025 and 29 February 2024, of these
loan receivables at amortised cost which had been past due
for one month or above, except for several loan receivables
at amortised cost amounted to approximately HK$148.3
million (2024: HK$151.9 million) on which an allowance for
expected credit loss amounting of approximately HK$60.3
million (2024: HK$15.1 million) had been recognised, the
respective valuations of the collaterals can fully cover the
outstanding balances of these loans at the end of reporting
periods. Among those impaired loan receivables at amortised
cost, the Group had written off approximately HK$29.0
million (2024: HK$1.1 million) expected credit loss as the
borrowers are fail to pay their credit obligations to the
Group in full. In respect of the loan receivables at amortised
cost which have been past due for less than 1 month, the
amounts mainly represent occasional delay in repayment and
are not an indication of significant credit deterioration of
credit quality of these loan receivables at amortised cost.

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BEREMEEEERER AT

17. BRER (&)

BRI D AT (48)

RZE—RAF-_A-Z+NARZZ_MF=
AZ+NB - tFmE—E Ak A £z iR #
AR ERE T BRE RS TR HEKRD
FEUW B 49148,300,000/ 7T ( —ZZF — P4 :
151,900,000 7T ) R BAEEBERELD
60,300,000/87C ( —Z — P04 : 15,100,000/
)N REEHR HifmSsa zHERIN
BEEEREERZREELH  WECDRE
LEIEK AR EKRERT - ARERAKRER
AEERSZHHEEER  AKEEMELY
29,000,000/ 7T ( —ZZ —PY4F : 1,100,000/ 7T )
ZTBHEEBE @B R B A 2 IREE SRR AR
HEKER T EEHNBRLEEERMTES - I
PRI FREHEKANBERERCEEEER
BEEERL-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #Z—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\HILFE

e ISR R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 T3 7R )

18. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

The followings are the major deferred tax assets recognised

18.

EERIEEE

TIRRMEFEEREBZRERBEER

and movements thereon during both years: HE5):
The related
depreciation
in excess of Impairment
depreciation losses on loan
allowances receivables Others Total
BHTERAE ERER
ZEBITE Z B E 8 Hit st
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Tr Fr Tr
At 1 March 2023 R_T—=F=
H—H 68 - 41 109
(Charge) credit to profit or  (F1E& ) st AfBzE
loss (Note 9) (KtEE9) (12) 2,315 (4) 2,299
At 29 February 2024 and 1 RZZ U4
March 2024 —A=t+hAH
R ZZF_F
=H—H 56 2,315 37 2,408
Credit (charge) to profit or A (FBR) Bz
loss (Note 9) (F$5E9) 52 2,849 (4) 2,897
At 28 February 2025 R-B_hE
—A=+NH 108 5,164 33 5,305

Annual Report 2025 —E - HE 4§



Trade receivables are due within 60 days from the date
of billing. All of the trade and other receivables are not
impaired as the expected loss rate is close to zero and
expected to be recovered within one year.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables presented based on
invoice date which approximate to the respective revenue
recognition dates at the end of the reporting period is as
follows:

' “‘-‘\
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M RRMEE
For the year ended 28 February 2025 #EZ—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\BILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7051 7R )
19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. ES R HMWEWRIE

2025 2024
—E-RE —EFF
$'000 $'000
F Tt

Non-current JEBNER
Others HAh 2,535 1,740

Current BO &R

Trade receivables B 5 e WA 1,098 1,728
Deposits and payments in advance e RIBNFEIA 5,106 8,095
Others HAth 259 102
6,463 9,925

B RYGRIEBRE R BET60RAEH - i
REHMERXOTE  BMABEES REMRUK
TR ARRBE » WM —FRYKE -

ERBmERARS W aER BHRE2%ER
2D 2 B 5 R IRZ BRI DT a0 T

2025 2024

—E-RE —E-pOF

$'000 $'000

Fx Tt

0-60 days 0E60K 1,098 1,728

Trade receivables that were not past due relate to a wide
range of customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BEREMEEEERER AT

TEAMZESRYFAES ZWETHED
R EFAR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR R MR

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #Z—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 T3 7R )

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include short-term bank deposits
for the purpose of meeting the Group’s short term cash
commitment, which carry interest at prevailing market rates
ranging from 3.0% to 4.0% as at 28 February 2025 (2024:
3.7% to 4.5%).

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents include the following:

20.

HERBEEEY
ReERREEEVRERARHEAEEEH
BEAENERRETER R E_AF A
Z+NBENF3.0%E4.0%HIRITHIB A =X
SR (T _MF 1 3.7%%4.5%) °

mEARERERNE BeMReSEDERE
AT&R:

2025 2024

—E-RE —ZE U4

$'000 $'000

ST Tt

Cash on hand FERE 7,350 7,487

Cash at banks RITIRE 208,305 163,113
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated R4RA MR EKR ZIRE K

statement of financial position HEeZEEY 215,655 170,600

Cash at bank carries interest at prevailing market rates for
both years.

Details of impairment assessment of bank balances are set
out in note 27(a).

MEFE ZRITRSRBTTIHSM KL -

RITREBRRREEFITERHEE27() -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #EZ—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\BILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7051 7R )

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONT'D) 20. RERREZEY (&)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing REEBMEE2EBHE:

activities:

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities TR AEBREBE T BEER 25
from financing activities, including both cash and non- B BEPEERENFRCEE REBHME
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are EzBEREEREENIRRRLREHRN
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will FEREREXRSHERKEMEFTDH 2REM
be, classified in the consolidated statement of cash flow as 22 8E-

cash flows from financing activities.

Loans
from the
immediate Debt
Lease holding securities Accrued
Bank loans liabilities company issued interest Total
ERER 556
RITER HEEE ARZER ERES AR @t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T T
At 1 March 2024 R-B-RF
=A—-H 10,000 13,985 47,500 25,991 284 97,760
Changes from financing cash ~ RERERELHE
flows 229 (10,000) (8,170) - (26,000) (3.351) (47,521)
Non-cash changes FREED
New lease arrangements EERH
(Note 30(a)) (PiEE30()) - 11,252 - - - 11,252
Lease modification HEBH
(Note 30(b)) (FE30(b)) 5,279 - - - 5,279
Finance costs incurred BEEZRBERAR - 818 - 9 3,090 3,917
At 28 February 2025 R=B-RfF
—A=tNAH - 23,164 47,500 - 23 70,687

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BEREMEEEERER AT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR R MR

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #Z—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A ITFI7R )

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONT'D)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities: (CONT'D)

20. RERREEEY (&)

METHAEE2EEHR: ()

Loans from
the immediate
Lease holding Debt securities Accrued
Bank loans liabilities company issued interest Total
HEER BE1T
BITERK MEARE ARZER B ES ERTFIE et
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr T T T T Fr
At 1 March 2023 R-B=-=%
=fA—H 10,000 15,540 47,500 37,966 514 111,520
Changes from financing cash RERERELHE
flows ZE5) - (9,695) = (12,000) (5,406) (27,101)
Non-cash changes FREEH
New lease arrangements SR
(Note 30(a)) (K3zE30(a)) = 7,211 = = = 7,211
Finance costs incurred BELZBERA = 929 = 25 5,176 6,130
At 29 February 2024 RZB-WF
—A=thH 10,000 13,985 47,500 25,991 284 97,760
21. BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS 21. RITERREX
The details of the bank loans and overdrafts were as follows: RTERREZHFBOT
2025 2024
—E-RHE —EPUE
$'000 $'000
Fx Tz
Bank loans, secured (Note a) RTEF BEMA (MHsEa ) - 10,000
Total bank loans and overdrafts IRITER KRB BRE - 10,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR R M RE

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #E =T =RAF A=+ N\HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LA THI7R )

21. BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS (CONT'D)

Wah Pawnshop Credit Holding

Note:

(@  As at 29 February 2024, the total secured bank revolving
loan facilities of the lower of HK$145.0 million and a
certain percentage of the aggregate principal amount of
certain mortgage loan receivables of the subsidiaries which
are then sub-charged/submortgaged to the bank, the total
available secured bank revolving loan facility after taking into
consideration of the drawdown was HK$24.0 million. As at
29 February 2024, the loan facility was secured by certain
mortgage loan receivables for the Group with a carrying
value of approximately HK$261.2 million. As at 29 February
2024, the bank revolving loan carried floating interest rate of
three months Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR")
plus 3.50% per annum and one month HIBOR plus 4% per
annum.

During the year ended 28 February 2025, the secured bank
loans are fully repaid. One of the secured bank revolving
loan facility amounted to HK$20.0 million was expired in
May 2024. For the remaining secured bank revolving loan
facility amounted to HK$125.0 million, the Group applied for
voluntary cancellation in February 2025 and was agreed by
the bank.

As at 28 February 2025, except for the bank facilities
mentioned in note (a) above, the subsidiaries of the Group
also obtained unsecured bank loan and bank overdraft
facilities of HK$40.5 million (29 February 2024: HK60.5
million). As at 28 February 2025, the unsecured bank loans
and bank overdrafts facilities carried floating interest rate at
prime rate plus 0.25% to prime rate plus 1.5% per annum
with repayment on demand clause (29 February 2024: prime
rate minus 0.75% to prime rate plus 1.5% per annum
with repayment on demand clause). As at the end of the
reporting period, the Group has an aggregate amount of
approximately HK$40.5 million (29 February 2024: HK$60.5
million) undrawn unsecured bank loan and bank overdraft
facilities carried floating interest rate and expiring within one
year.

During the years, the Group had fulfilled all the financial
covenants, if any, under the Group’s banking facilities and
all banking facilities were guaranteed by the Company and/
or secured by certain loan receivables held by the Group.

s Limited BEMEEEIZERERAA

21. tRITEF

AR FEZ (8]R)
Pt -

(@ R-ZE-_WFE-—F=+hnB BRBERET
EXEEBE 5145,000,000/8 T Mk ZSH B
ARIERE R, RRTIRITZE T RIKIEE
EREFACBBEZETEO P ZRES -
KT RBIRBGRIAR - AIE A2 BIKIRERR
TERRE#EH24,000,0008TL - R
—HEZA=+hB BEXBEHEAEBENLAS
261,200,000 7T 2 & T 72 5= [3 FE Ui 4 48 4K
ﬁﬁx{ﬁlﬂﬁ RZZ-WE-_A=1+hB " ER

BITERE=EAABBRITAERSE (rér’éﬁﬁ
TR%EFE]) MN3.50% 2 FEFFIER K —
%.SiﬁiﬁIE%ﬁ%bu4%25¥§b¢ﬂ$§+% °

HEZT-_AF-_A-+N\AILFE FHEHA
WITERCBHEERE AP —BHERRITE
IRE & 20,000,000 LER S F
FAAEH - MeA T EERBITRIRESRBE A
125 000,000 T  AEER T -_HF_HHA
EEFEE  WERITRE -

R=FE-_RAF=-A=+/\B B _EXHE@)FT
MEYERTTRVE SN AEE B A 7 JVES K
IRITERRIRITEL R E4L0,500,0008 7T (=
Z_PF - A =+71.H :60,500,000%7C) ° A
—E-RAF-A-+/)\B ERFRTERNE
TEIBMEENTREREFEN.25% E&E
BRI EM 5% FBEFERGTE - WHFRE
KEZEER (ZEZNFZAZFT B ENT
REEFERK0.75% ZHEBBFEIM1.5% 2%
FFFIERFE - W IR ERERIER) - IR
HHR  AREZFHMNEGGTE 2 BEART
ERMIBITESBME BT A#40,500,0007 7T
—E_FE-HA=—1+AH:60,500,000%7T)
AR BN —FREIE -

REFA AKEERTAKERITRER N
PrBEMKRE (INE) r MAARITRESHAA
REIR/ HARERE 2E T RKRERIELE
(ON



22. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

23.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR R MR

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #Z—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 T3 7R )

22. EErERAREMENRKIE

2025 2024

—EZRF —F_MF

$'000 $'000

Fr T

Accrued interest expenses FEET A BRI 23 284
Accrued expenses EErERRY 3,035 2,686
Provision for long services payment RERR S E 539 1,041
Other payable and deposit received HAb e 3B R B WEIR S 781 895
4,378 4,906

All of the accruals and other payables are expected to be
settled within one year or are repayable on demand.

OTHER LOANS

During the year ended 29 February 2024, the Group
obtained uncommitted secured revolving loan facilities from
an independent third party. The limit of the facilities is the
lower of HK$200.0 million and a certain percentage of
the aggregate principal amount of certain mortgage loan
receivables of the subsidiaries which are then sub-charged/
sub-mortgaged to the independent third party. The facilities
are interest-bearing at The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited (“HSBC") prime rate plus 3.875% per
annum and the tenor for the facilities is one year.

As at 29 February 2024, the available loan facilities after
taking into consideration of the drawdown was HK$52.0
million. These loan facilities were secured by certain
mortgage loan receivables for the Group with a carrying
value of approximately HK$65.0 million and there was no
outstanding balance of other loans.

During the year ended 28 February 2025, all uncommitted
secured revolving loan facilities were expired and no
outstanding balances of other loans.

23.

FrBRTERREMEMNRERRN —FRE
IBRIZERIEE -

HERK
HE_ZT-_NE-_A-+hBHILFE AEEA
— BB FE = RS E A KIRERE G
& - ARt & BR &8 4200,000,0005% 7T & 5% Bt
BRARERD X RIEFZEBLIE=AZ
ETRERKZBIEFERASBE L ETEDL
ZRIEE - ZSMERES LEELRITARA
A ([EL ) ZEEFENFE3.875%TE R
BMERBAE—F-

RZEZMNFE-AZ=+NH & RERIEK
I8 A B A 2 EFENE A52,000,000/8 7T - %%
BB AEBREEL A65,000,00078 7T
25T RIGZBIK e RERE R LM E R
HEAREEES-

REBEE-_ZE-_RFE_A-+N\BILEE FEE
AEFERBREFRMECOAREMERIL
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R BB IRAR M

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #EZ—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\BILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7051 7R )

24. LOANS FROM THE IMMEDIATE HOLDING

25.

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit

COMPANY

During the year ended 28 February 2025, the Group
obtained an unsecured revolving loan facility from the
immediate holding company with a facility limit of HK$200.0
million (2024: HK$200.0 million). The loans are unsecured,
interest-bearing at 5% per annum (2024: 5% per annum)
and repayable on demand.

As at 28 February 2025, the available loan facility
after taking into consideration of the drawdown was
approximately HK$152.5 million (2024: HK$152.5 million)
and the accrued interest payable as at 28 February 2025 was
approximately HK$23,000 (2024: HK$26,000).

DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED

24.

25. 2

EBEZERIBZERK

HE_T-_RAF_A-t+N\BIEFE ~EEAH
HEEZRARDS —E8ERBERENRE
&R %8 4200,000,0008 ¢ ( ZZF M4 :
200,000,000/87T) - ZEERAEKIF  1£5%
ZERR (T -PF 5% 2 FHR) FHELIE
TR(EE -

%:2:£¢—H—+AE KET R B R

I A BREERMELA152,500,00078
m(_? P04 : 152,500,000 7T) » M=
E-_RAF-_A-t+N\B EHEFHNELNAE
23,0000 (ZZ Z Y4 : 26,000/ L) °

TEBES

2025
—E-RF

2024
—T-mg
$'000 $'000

7 F7

Current mEh

During the year ended 29 February 2024, the debt securities
are unsecured, denominated in HKD, interest-bearing ranging
from 6% to 7% per annum with interest coupon being paid
semi-annually and will be matured between 2024 and 2025.
All debt securities issued are measured at amortised cost.

During the year ended 28 February 2025, the Group repaid

debt securities amounting to approximately HK$26.0 million
(2024: HK$12.0 million).

Holdings Limited BERZEEZERER DA

- 25,991

REEZZ-_NF-_A=+NALFE %ZZE
B H AEEE B TEHE BN T6%27%
ZEHRA BN EFFLIMN—REL AR

ToMFEE_T-_RFHEER - FECDETE
BRa 75 TR B SH A ARG &

HE-_Z-_RAF-_A-+N\HILFE AEER
R EHEEEBRESR426,000,0008 7T (==
— P4 :12,000,0005 7T ) ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS R MR

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #Z—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 T3 7R )

26. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(a)

26. EXR - #HERRE

Movement in equity (a) EZZEF
The reconciliation between the opening and REERE Em S K E 7 A7) B HR R 45
closing balances of each component of the Group's ﬁ%Zﬁﬁﬁﬁkﬁ’\\\ FEEREBER AR AF
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated e =B BANENEFER 2 EBFIE
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes NS
in the Company's individual components of equity
between the beginning and the end of the year are set
out below:
The Company EAT
Capital
Share redemption Retained
Notes  Share capital premium Other reserve reserve profits Total
Mt BA REEE Rt EARORE REER a3t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T S T S
At 1 March 2023 RZTZ%
=R-H 19,272 14,303 56,964 2,112 245,631 338,282
Profit and total comprehensive  FAEFIREE
income for the year LNt - - - - 10,218 10,218
Final dividends approved in St LEFERE
respect of the previous BRFARIESZ
year and paid during the RABRE
year 26(b) = = = = (16,767) (16,767)
Interim dividends declared ~ RERERRIEN
and paid during the year ZPHRE 26(b) - - - - (20,043) (20,043)
At 29 February 2024 and ~ R=F=HF=A
1 March 2024 =ThBER
—2-mE
=h-H 19,2712 14,303 56,964 2,112 219,039 311,690
Profit and total comprehensive  FREFIREE
income for the year LN - - - - 12,134 12,134
Repurchase and cancellation BB Rt S8k (A
of shares 26() (29) (631) - 29 - (631)
Final dividends approved in St LEFE#E
respect of the previous PRFRRRZ
year and paid during the RS
year 26(b) - - - - (14,647) (14,647)
Interim dividends declared ~ RFRERRIKH
and paid during the year ZTHRE 26(b) - (12,334) - - - (12,334)
At 28 February 2025 RZBZ1F
ZA=1NA 19,243 1,338 56,964 2,14 216,526 296,212
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For the year ended 28 February 2025 #EZ—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\BILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7051 7R )
26. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 26. EX - -ZERKRE (&)
(CONT'D)
(b) Dividends (b) KA
Dividends payment during the year: FRZFRRE
2025 2024
—E-RF —ZE_EF
$'000 $'000
T 7T
Dividends recognised as distribution MRERNERRDIRZIE -
during the year:
2025 Interim dividend — 0.64 cents (2024: —Z - RAEFRHKSE — iﬂﬁ
2024 interim dividend — 1.04 cents) 0.64Ml (Z==meF : =
per share Z-EFHREFR
1.0441l1) 12,334 20,043
2024 Final dividend - 0.76 cents (2024: T OERERE - !Hx
2023 final dividend — 0.87 cents) per 0.76M (ZZE =4 : —
share T =FREAKREER
0.871lli) 14,647 16,767
Subsequent to the end of reporting periods, a final WEHKRE EFCEEMEBE_T A
dividend of 0.81 cents per share (2024: 0.76 cents FZAZTNBLEEERNRBREGR
per share) in respect of the year ended 28 February 0.81fll (== =M+ : RO.761l) « BRF
2025 per share have been proposed by the Directors ARER R EER R AT A LRfER T AIE
and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the =

forthcoming annual general meeting.

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BEREMEEEERER AT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS R MR

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #Z—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 T3 7R )

26. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 26. X -#ERRKRE (&

(CONT'D)
(c) Share capital () E’&
(i) Authorised and issued share capital (i) ZEREEITEKRA
Nominal value
Number of of ordinary
Note Par value shares shares
B H{E R EE EEREE
$ '000 $'000
7T TR Fr
Authorised: EE
At 1 March 2023, 29 RZEZ=%F
February 2024, 1 March =H—8-
2024 and 28 February —EomE
2025 —A=+hA8:
ZEDF
=A—Bk
—T-RE
—A=t+\H 0.01 100,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRHE:
At 1 March 2023, 29 i S
February 2024 and 1 =A—A"
March 2024 e 1t : S
ZAZ+hBER
—T e
=H—H 0.01 1,927,236 19,272
Repurchase and cancellation  B& [ & s 853 (5
of shares 26(c)(ii) (2,928) (29)
At 28 February 2025 RZFZREF
—A=+NB 1,924,308 19,243
The holders of shares are entitled to receive BnEHE AERKERTREIR RS  WAEER
dividends as declared from time to time and are AARGZ ERBRBMOE—F - A KHEA
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the RAIZ FARBEHZE RSN -

Company. All shares rank equally with regard to
the Company’s residual assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #EZ—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\BILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7051 7R )

26. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 26. E&-#EEKE (&)
(CONT’D)

(c)

(i)

Share capital (CONT’D) () BAR(E&E)
Purchase of own shares (i) HEEE SR G
During the year ended 28 February 2025, the BEZZ-RF-_A=-+N\ALHF
Company repurchased 2,928,000 shares of the € AR RIREE R FTRN F0.215%
Company on The Stock Exchange with prices TLE0221 BT ZEBRERARA]
ranging from HK$0.215 to HK$0.221. The 2,928,000/ 17 gt itk F D E
total consideration paid for these shares was ZHBREX)A631,0008 7T ° FTA %
approximately HK$631,000. All these shares were ERHERZZEZRAF_A=F+N
cancelled by 28 February 2025. HaEdH -
For the year ended 28 February 2025 BHE_ZT-_RAF-_A=-+N\BLF
I3
Number of
ordinary
Month of shares Aggregate
repurchase BE A5 repurchased Par value  Purchase price per share  consideration
(=84
EERHE HE BREBEE BRE
(‘000) $ Highest Lowest ($'000)
(FR) 7 B -4 (F7)
October 2024 —ECmE
+A 1,984 0.01 $0.221 $0.215 427
November 2024 —TF
+—A 944 0.01 $0.217 $0.215 204
Total @t 2,928 631

Pursuant to section 37(3) of the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands, the issued share capital of
the Company was reduced by the nominal value
of the repurchased shares. Pursuant to 37(4) of
the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands, an
amount equivalent to the par value of the shares
cancelled of approximately HK$29,000 was
transferred from share premium to the capital
redemption reserve. The payments for purchase
of own shares with approximately HK$631,000
were charged to share premium.

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BEREMEEEERER AT

BERSEEAREEI73)E
RARZBETRATIRZE B DK
MZEEFEER BEREHSA
ALEE37(4)IE BrEERHOEELD
29,0008 L2 EESEEBR M &
BEEREEAAELNFEE RBEEE S
B B At 2 49631,00058 72 B A% (D
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS R MR

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #Z—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 T3 7R )

26. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 26. E&-#EERKE (&)
(CONT’D)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Distributability of reserves

There is no section in the Companies Law
of the Cayman lIslands and the Company’s
memorandum and article of association governing
the distribution of reserves. At 28 February
2025, the aggregate amount of reserve available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company was approximately HK$274,828,000
(2024: HK$290,306,000), being the total amount
of share premium, other reserve and retained
profits.

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium account of the Company
may be applied for payment of distributions
or dividends to shareholders provided that
immediately following the date on which the
distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid,
the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business.

Capital reserve

On 5 February 2013, Oi Wah Holding Limited
entered into an agreement to acquire the
amounts due to shareholders by Oi Wah
Pawnshop Credit Limited totalling HK$44,963,406
by issuing 1,000 shares at HK$1.00, as fully-
paid shares, to three of the shareholders of the
Company. The acquisition has been reflected as
a reduction in the amounts due to shareholders
and a corresponding increase in capital reserve.

Other reserve

On 18 February 2013, the then shareholders
transferred the entire equity interest in Oi Wah
Holding Limited to the Company, in return,
the Company issue 9,999,999 shares, as fully-
paid shares to Kwan Lik Holding Limited as
the consideration. The difference between the
historical carrying value of equity acquired and
acquisition consideration is treated as an equity
movement and recorded in “Other reserve”.

(d)

MEZMEREN

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

BEZ TR REHE
HEHNESRARERANRG ZHEBE
BAMAEERMAAUTEREFED
EZBfi-MN—_TE-_RFE-_A=+N
B ARRE=RE 2 HD IR
EHEEEA) 274,828,000 7L (=&
— P04 : 290,306,000/ 7T )  BIR%
mE - EftfFEERREBSF 8
B o

R 17 =E

RERSHEREE  ANARZKRG
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT TSR R MR

For the year ended 28 February 2025 H#E—ZE-FF - A -+ N\BIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7051 7R )

26. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 26. E&-#EEKE (&)
(CONT’D)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (CONT'D)

(d) REZMEEREN (H)

(v) Capital redemption reserve (v) EXEEOfFE
Capital redemption reserve represents the EABERFEECBRERKROD 2@
nominal amount of the shares repurchased. B

(vi) Capital management (vi) BEXELE

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for its shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products commensurately with the level of risk and
by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.
The Group was not subject to external imposed
capital requirements, except for the loan covenants
attached to the interest-bearing borrowings.

The capital structure of the Group consists of
cash and cash equivalents net of bank loans,
other loans, loans from the immediate holding
company, debt securities issued and equity
attributable to shareholders of the Company,
comprising paid in capital and reserves.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a
balance between the higher shareholder returns
that might be possible with higher levels of
borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors capital with reference to its
debt position. The Group's strategy was to maintain
the equity and debt in a balanced position with
the debt equity ratio, being the Group's total
borrowings over its total equity, no more than
150%, and ensure there was adequate working
capital to repay its debt obligations. As at 28
February 2025 the Group and the Company’s debt
equity ratio were 4.3% (2024: 7.7%) and nil (2024:
11.5%) respectively. No change was made on the
Group's overall strategy.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS R MR

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #Z—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 T3 7R )

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 27. BB EKREER AFE

VALUE

Categories of financial instruments SMIAER
2025 2024
—E_RHE —EOF
$'000 $'000
Ft Tt
Financial assets EMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost (including BB ATEZ CREE
cash and cash equivalents) (BREREMREEEY) 940,468 1,001,964
Financial assets at FVPL BATFEFAERRZEREE 199,333 150,242
1,139,801 1,152,206
Financial liabilities sMaE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost HEEKAGTEZSRAE 51,339 87,356

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include loan
receivables, trade and other receivables, financial assets at
FVPL, cash and cash equivalents, accruals and other payables,
bank loans, loans from the immediate holding company and
debt securities issued. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

As the core business of the Group is engaged in secured
financing business in Hong Kong, including pawn loans and
mortgage loans, the main risks associated with its business
are credit risk and the need to maintain a fairly liquid
position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #EZ—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\BILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7051 7R )

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (CONT'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONT'D)

(a)

Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group's
counterparties default on their contractual obligations
resulting in financial losses to the Group. The Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations in
relation to each class of recognised financial assets
is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position. The
Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its loan
receivables. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
Group have established policies and systems for the
monitoring and control of credit risk.

The Group has developed and adopted a systematic
approach in running its business in an efficient way,
including the adoption of internal control procedures
for risk management purposes.

The Group manages its credit risk on a conservative
basis by evaluating its loan portfolio in relation of
quantitative risk/return criteria.

In relation to the pawn loan business, the Group
has adopted internal control procedures including
the identification and evaluation of ownership and
obtaining an accurate valuation of personal property.
The Group usually grants loans with a loan-to-value
ratio ranging from 50% - 85%, depending on the
type of collateral and the valuation is made at the
point of granting the loan. The maximum exposure of
the credit risk arising from pawn loan business at the
end of each reporting period is the carrying amount of
the pawn loan receivables as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR R MR

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #Z—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 T3 7R )

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 27.
VALUE (CONT'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONT'D)

(a) Credit risk management (CONT'D)

Different valuations are used for different types of
collaterals.

- Gold prices quoted from The Chinese Gold &
Silver Exchange Society

- Diamond prices quoted from latest Rapaport
Diamond Report

- Watches quoted from either retail listed prices or
parallel import wholesale prices

- Consumer electronic products quoted from
updated pricelists of second-hand consumer
electronic products

A customer is considered to have defaulted in
repayment of the pawn loan if they have not redeemed
the collateral or renewed the pawn loan by the end
of the term of the pawn loan. At the Group's sole
discretion, a grace period of up to six weeks may be
provided to customers after the end of the loan period
during which the Group may allow the customers to
renew the pawn loan and/or redeem the collateral.
The Group will take possession of the collateral if
the customer has not redeemed the collateral or
renewed the pawn loan by the end of the loan period
or the grace period provided. Repossessed assets are
accounted for in accordance with the accounting
policy as set out in note 3 and the carrying amount
of repossessed assets as at 28 February 2025 was
approximately HK$9,575,000 (2024: HK$13,875,000).
The Group will proceed to dispose the collateral within
a reasonable time after possession.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R BB IRAR M

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #EZ—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\BILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7051 7R )

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (CONT'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONT'D)

(a)

Credit risk management (CONT'D)

In relation to the mortgage loan business, the Group
has also adopted internal control procedures for the
identification and evaluation of the legal ownership
and accurate valuation of property. As a matter of
risk management, the Group usually grants loans with
a loan-to-value ratio of no more than 70% of the
value in the valuation report of the property, which
is generally lower than bank’s loan-to-value ratio for
mortgages which can be as high as 70%. In a few
cases if the customers request loans with the loan-
to-value ratio of over 70%, approval from the chief
executive officer is required. For the valuation of the
property, the Group will make reference to a third
party valuer and/or the internet valuation services
provided by banks in Hong Kong. The Group holds
collateral against loan receivables in the form of
mortgages over properties located in Hong Kong. The
Group considers that the credit risk arising from the
mortgage loan receivables is significantly mitigated by
the property held as collateral, with reference to the
estimated market value of the property at the grant
date. The Group may take possession of assets held
as collateral through court proceeding or voluntary
delivery of possession by the borrowers. It disposes the
property by auction once receiving the possession.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 28 February 2025 #E =T =RAF A=+ N\HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 T3 7R )

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 27.
VALUE (CONT'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONT’D)

(a) Credit risk management (CONT'D)

Management has overall responsibility for the Group's
credit policies and oversees the credit quality of the
Group's loan portfolio. In addition, management
reviews the recoverable amount of loan receivables
individually at each reporting date to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. For trade receivables, the Group has applied
the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the
loss allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group determines
the ECL by using individual basis, estimated based on
historical credit loss experience, as well as the general
economic conditions of the industry in which the
debtors operate. In this regard, management considers
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

For other non-traded related receivables, the Group has
assessed whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. If there has been
a significant increase in credit risk, the Group will
measure the loss allowance based on lifetime rather
than 12-month ECL.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer
and therefore significant concentrations of credit risk
primarily arise when the Group has significant exposure
to individual customers. At the end of the reporting
period, 6.5% (2024: 4.8%) and 23.6% (2024: 19.0%)
of the total loan receivables was due from the Group's
largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively.

Although most of the customers are from Hong Kong,
the concentration of credit risk is limited due to the
customer base is large and unrelated.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R BB IRAR M

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #EZ—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\BILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7051 7R )

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 27. BiEREER AFEE (&)

VALUE (CONT'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies SWMIEER (&)
(CONT'D)
(a) Credit risk management (CONT'D) (a) FEERBEEE (&)

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from loan
receivables are set out in note 17.

The Group has developed its processes for measuring
ECL including monitoring of credit risk, incorporation
of forward-looking information and the methodology
used to measure ECL. The Group has policies and
procedures in place to appropriately maintain the
models used to assess and measure ECL.

The Group's exposure to credit risk

The Group’s current credit risk framework comprises
the following categories:

ERASEEY B REKERMELEER
Rz EERBEERENME7 -

AEBECHRIRF A ERAEEESE

BREREERR WAREEER&A
Wt ERBEEBR 2L AEEFTA
KR R DAEE M55 A ARHE KA ETR
HEEEE BN -

A5 B E g 4915 B R
AEE BN EERRFRERBIEAT
1851

Basis for recognised

Category Description ECL
BRAAMEESEN
5l 58 B
Performing For financial assets where there has low risk of default or has not 12-month ECL
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and
that are not credit impaired (refer to as Stage 1)
B4 REA RSB VIRERURGEERBRAB ARG N BREERE 12@ARHEEER
WeREE (BFEIER)
Doubtful For financial assets where there has been a significant increase in Lifetime ECL — not

credit risk since initial recognition but that are not credit impaired credit impaired

(refer to as Stage 2)

17 5% BYGRHERUREERRARENEECEERENSHEE (BF2 2HEHEEBE-—&
FEER) SERE

Default Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired when one or more Lifetime ECL — credit
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash  impaired
flows of that asset have occurred (refer to as Stage 3)

) BRA-BRASEFHUEREENGTAKREREELETNY 2HRBEEEE-E
2 ZeREERTEAEERE (BFE3MER) BRE

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe financial Amount is written off
difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect of recovery

s FEBBETEHRARAREVGREAAEEWERCIHENER  MIEH0E

Al
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS R MR

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #Z—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\HILFE

VALUE (CONT'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(CONT'D)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 T3 7R )

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 27. BiIEBREER AFE (&

(a) Credit risk management (CONT'D)

(a)

The tables below detail the credit quality of the
Group’s financial assets as well as the Group's

TRMITAER (&)

FERBEE (#)
TREEEIREEFNARECREE
MEEERURAEEREEHNZAEER

maximum exposure to credit risk by credit rating Bz
grades.
Gross
Internal carrying Loss  Net carrying
At 28 February 2025 Notes credit rating  12-month or lifetime ECL amount  allowance amount
R=ZBZRE=A=+/\H Wi ABEETR NEARZHENEERSE REAE BiERE REFE
HK$ HK$ HK$
B B B
Loan receivables 17 Performing 12-month ECL 400,981 - 400,981
JEMRER B4 12MEREHREEER
Loan receivables 17 Doubtful Lifetime ECL (not credit impaired) 134,287 - 134,287
FEUETN HR PHRSBEEHE (BEERE)
Loan receivables 17 Default Lifetime ECL (credit impaired) 213,137 (31,298) 181,839
RWRE EN HEREEER (FERE)
Trade and other receivables 19 Performing Lifetime ECL (simplified approach) 7,706 - 7,706
85 REMEWHIR E# PHRSBEEERE (BLE)
Cash and cash equivalents 20 Performing 12-month ECL 215,655 - 215,655
RERHEEEY B4 R2EARREEER
971,766 (31,298) 940,468
Internal credit Gross carrying Net carrying
At 29 February 2024 Notes rating 12-month or lifetime ECL amount  Loss allowance amount
RZZEZEEZA=1+NhA Mz ABEETR 12EAR2ERREEER REAE BiEEE REFE
HK$ HK$ HK$
B BT BT
Loan receivables 17 Performing 12-month ECL 441,968 - 441,968
RWRET B4 2EAEREEER
Loan receivables 17 Doubtful Lifetime ECL (not credit impaired) 151,320 - 151,320
JEMRER R THRHEEER (BRERE)
Loan receivables 17 Default Lifetime ECL (credit impaired) 244,430 (14,031) 230,399
Y& EN PHRSBEERE (FEHE)
Trade and other receivables 19  Performing Lifetime ECL (simplified approach) 7,676 - 7,676
85 REMERHIR B4 HEREEER (BlLE)
Cash and cash equivalents 20 Performing 12-month ECL 170,600 - 170,600
ReRASEEY E#% 12EAEREEER
1,015,994 (14,031) 1,001,963

Annual Report 2025 —E - HE 4§



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #EZ—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\BILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7051 7R )

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (CONT'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONT'D)

(b)

Market risk management

The Group's activities expose it primarily to the
financial risks of changes in interest rate.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to certain loan receivables, loans from the
immediate holding company, debt securities issued and
lease liabilities which carried at fixed rates.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable rate mortgage loan
receivables, bank loans and cash at banks.

It is the Group’s policy to keep its certain of its
mortgage loan receivables and bank loans at floating
rate of interests so as to minimise the fair value
interest rate risk. The Group’s cash flow interest rate
risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of prime
rate, HIBOR and HSBC prime rate.

(i)  Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure of the Group
at the end of the reporting period. The analysis is
prepared assuming that the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 100
basis points (2024: 100 basis points) increase
or decrease is used when reporting interest rate
risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management'’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

At 28 February 2025, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 100 basis points
(2024: 100 basis points) in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, would have
decreased/increased the Group's profit after
tax by approximately HK$3,910,000 (2024:
HK$4,674,000).
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For the year ended 28 February 2025 #Z—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 T3 7R )

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 27.
VALUE (CONT'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONT'D)

(c) Liquidity risk management

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with loan/borrowing
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions and immediate
holding company to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and long-term. The Directors are satisfied
that the Group will be able to meet in full its financial
obligations as and when fall due in the foreseeable
future.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of
the Group's financial liabilities and lease liabilities,
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current
at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest
date the Group can be required to pay. The maturity
dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities are
based on the agreed repayment dates:

MEEREERAFE (&

TRMITAER (&)

(c)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R BB IRAR M

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #EZ—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\BILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7051 7R )

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 27.

VALUE (CONT'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

BHEREERQFE (&

TRMITAER (&)

(CONT'D)
(c) Liquidity risk management (CONT'D) (c) mBELEBRERE (&)
28 February 2025
ZEZRFZRAZTNA
Total
Within 1 More than 1  More than 2 contractual
year or on year but less years but less More than 5 undiscounted Carrying
demand than 2 years than 5 years years cash flow amount
MER 1H0E 264 L BORER
REXR BLm2E BHR5E SENE REREBAH FHE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Accruals and other [ESrERR
payables HiERFR 3,839 - - - 3,839 3,839
Loans from the immediate  EEER AR
holding company ZEX 49,875 - - - 49,875 47,500
53,714 - - - 53,714 51,339
Lease liabilities HERE 9,136 741 7,120 2,590 26,257 23,164
29 February 2024
“Z-ME-AZTAR
More than 1 year More than  Total contractual
Within 1 year or but less than 2 years but less undiscounted
on demand 2 years than 5 years cash flow  Carrying amount
MER EN 2E L BRREH
REX EYIVES BARSE  RERSLE RAE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T
Accruals and other payables  FEZTE &
Bt MR 3,865 - - 3,865 3,865
Bank loans RITER 11,228 - - 11,228 10,000
Loans from the immediate ~ EBERAF
holding company ZER 49,875 = = 49,875 47,500
Debt securities issued BETEKES 28,873 = = 28,873 25,991
93,841 - - 93,841 87,356
Lease liabilities BERE 8,981 4,643 3,039 16,663 13,985
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS R MR

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #Z—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 T3 7R )

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 27. i EMREER AFEE (&)

VALUE (CONT'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONT'D)

TRMITAER (&)

M T RN FlEE

(d) Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments (d)

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, grouped into Levels 1
to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is
observable in accordance with the Group's accounting

policy.

TRERREREMRERATENEZS
BTAZAIN BRAFERBARES
BRATEREZIEERSFIE3IMN-

28 February 2025
—B-HFZAZ+NH

Fair value Fair value measurements categorised into
AFE AFEFTELEAUTER
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
18R F28; E3R
$°000 $'000 $°000 $'000
T T T T
Recurring fair value KEEAFE
measurement FTE
Financial assets: SREE:
— Loan receivables at —ERFEFA
FVPL B BIRE
by 158,977 - - 158,977
— Financial assets at FVPL ~ —3Z A F{EFFA
Bazem
BE 40,356 - - 40,356
29 February 2024
“ZE-ME=ZA=+ANA
Fair value Fair value measurements categorised into
NSRE NHEAENERATER
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
E1 E2 E3R
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tt T v T
Recurring fair value KEEATE
measurement A=
Financial assets: SREE:
— Loan receivables at —ERAFEFA
FVPL B BRE
= 150,242 - - 150,242

There was no transfer between Level 1, 2 and 3 in

both years.

RWEFEE B4 F2RRFE3R 2 HBEE
o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #EZ—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\BILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A ITFI/R )

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (CONT'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(CONT'D)
(d) Fair value Measurement of Financial Instruments
(CONT'D)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

The fair value of the loan receivables at FVPL is
determined by discounting the contractual future
cash flows. The fair value measurement is negatively
correlated with the discount rate.

The fair value of the financial assets at FVPL is
determined by the net assets values of the unlisted
fund investment (with underlying assets and liabilities
measured at fair value) and adjusted by other factors
(e.g. the quality of collaterals, settlement patterns as
well as default history (if any)).

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BEREMEEEERER AT

27. BKEREER A AFE (E)

TRITAER (&)

(d)

EMT AN R FEE (F)

FEIMA T BOEN
BATE A B2 BREH 2 ATET
EBURANARRSREEE  ATVE
SHERMRE2 RN

BAFEFABRZEREEZAFET
REESZIFLIMESKRE (RABEE
RABEEAVEFE) CEEFEERE
WIZEMAER (PlERmcER  #E
BA MBS (A) ) ELAR-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS R MR

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #Z—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 T3 7R )

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 27. i EMREER AFEE (&)
VALUE (CONT’D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

TRMITAER (&)

(CONT’'D)
(d) Fair value Measurement of Financial Instruments (d) ZTEITEAAFETE (&)
(CONT'D)

FEIRA-FEEERER (B)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

(CONT'D)

The movement during the year in the balance of Level

3 fair value measurements is as follows:

EIMATEABRBRERNZED D

T

Financial assets Loan receivables

at FVPL at FVPL Total
BRAFEFA BRAFETA
BRvomEr BRZEWREX @at
$'000 $'000 $'000
ST SEbT Ft
At 1 March 2023 N-_E-_=%=H
—H - 141,455 141,455
Loans granted BENER - 570,664 570,664
Loans matured EREER - (561,893) (561,893)
Net gains recognised in RE B R EHAD
consolidated statement of Z2HEIRAKFER
profit or loss and other ZWEs R
comprehensive income - 16 16
At 29 February 2024 and 1 R-ZT -4
March 2024 ZAZThAEE
—ZENF
=—H—H - 150,242 150,242
Purchased EEE 38,181 - 38,181
Loans granted BEERER - 611,481 611,481
Loans matured BERIEER - (602,714) (602,714)
Net gains (losses) recognised REFEIEREREM
in consolidated statement Z2HEIRARER
of profit or loss and other Z Wz (EE)
comprehensive income FEE 2,175 (32) 2,143
At 28 February 2025 RZZE-_RAF=A
~—+\H 40,356 158,977 199,333
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #EZ—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\BILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7051 7R )

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BEREMEEEERER AT

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 27. MiKBRKBREER AFE (&
VALUE (CONT'D)
Financial risk management objectives and policies SWMIEER (&)
(CONT'D)
(d) Fair value Measurement of Financial Instruments (d) ZHTAWAFES (E)
(CONT'D)
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements E3R AT EGTELEX (B)
(CONT'D)
Included in the total gains or losses is amount of sk BB a8 152,175,000 T (=
HK$2,175,000 (2024: nil) that is attributable to the ToNE T meBEkEEREHR
change in unrealised gains or losses relating to financial RERATEA AN ERZEREEGAN
assets at FVPL held at the end of the reporting period. REBR RN EIBEE - R AT EFARE
Fair value gains on financial assets at FVPL are included wmZEMBEE AT ERED AR
in other income, gains or losses. A YaR s EsiE o
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of BEERE RWMEHRNEE P B@EKFR
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at BRI R eREERSRARZ
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements RMEHEEATETEEAER-
as at the end of the reporting periods are not
materially different from their fair values.
28. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 28. KEHERIE
The Group as lessor AEEERBEHAA
The group sub-leases out a number of properties under AEERBKEHESHLZEAME - HE2¥H
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period FHBREA—ERF MHEFIE—MNEENE
of one to five years, lease payments are usually increased at R LA URBETSEHES - HEHESEYE
the end of the lease term to reflect market rentals. None of HEFKIE
the leases includes variable lease payments.
As at 28 February 2025 and 29 February 2024, undiscounted RZE-_AF A+ N\BR=ZZT=-_MNE_H
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in ZH AR AEEER AR ER RN RS B A
place at the reporting date will be receivable by the Group EAZ T RHEERER N ARMBEHEERE
in future periods as follows: A
2025 2024
—E-RHF - UF
$'000 $'000
Fx Tt
Within one year —F R 1,114 2,013
After one year but within two years —FIREMFA 757 404
1,871 2,417




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS R MR

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #Z—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A ITFI7R )

29. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 29. EXBELRS

TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed Bt ERAUERREGCEMAEEZR SR
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the Eeroh NREBBERIM A TERBEARS

Group entered into the following material related party
transactions:

(a) Key management personnel remuneration () TEEEAESHM

2025 2024
$'000 $'000
Fr TIT
Salary and other benefits e REAMER 7,492 7,606
Discretionary bonuses B IEAT 4,322 4,305
Contributions to MPF WIS HR 83 90
11,897 12,001
The remuneration of directors of the Company and RRREZREZEFIEAB ZH BB &

key executives is determined by the remuneration ZEG2EMARREMZBEEE -

committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B R R AR M AT

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #EZ—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\BILFE

e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7051 7R )

29. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 29. EXEEARXS (&)
TRANSACTIONS (CONT’D)

(b)

Transactions with other related parties

During the year, the Group entered into transactions

(b) HEMBAELTZXS

9

FR-AKERERREBRESREEE

with related parties in the ordinary course of its AR 2RS0T
business as follows:
2025 2024
—E-REF —ZpFE
$'000 $'000
T T
Rental payments paid to RA &7 22 HE T
— Kwan Chart (Holding) Company Limited —ZR&EEBFRAH
(“Kwan Chart Holding") ([BEEEH]) 960 960
- Mr. Chan Chart Man* —BRE KA~ 1,166 1,080
— Kwan Chart Estate Company Limited —HREXEARRAA
("Kwan Chart Estate”) ([BEEX]) 539 633
— Full Honour Corporation Limited (“Full ~ —BEBAER AR ([EE])
Honour”) 840 -
— Max Firm Limited (“Max Firm") —BRERAR ([8x]) - =
Management fee incurred to HATETEENEEE
— Kwan Chart Holding —2XEE 40 40
Rental deposits placed with MUTERTFAZHSES
— Kwan Chart Holding —BREHE 160 160
— Mr. Chan Chart Man* — BRI+ 223 180
— Kwan Chart Estate —HREXE 96 110
— Full Honour —25% 140 140
— Max Firm —RE 120 =
Management fee deposit placed with HUATEFTFEAZ
ERERE
— Kwan Chart Estate —HREX 23 23

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BEREMEEEERER AT




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR R MR

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #E =T =RAF A=+ N\HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 T3 7R )

29. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 29. EXBEARE (&)
TRANSACTIONS (CONT’D)

(b)

Transactions with other related parties (CONT'D)

During the year ended 29 February 2024, the Group
entered into a 1-year short-term lease agreement in
respect of a property from Kwan Chart Holding, a
company with common beneficiary owners with the
Company and Mr. Chan Chart Man, a then director of
the Company. The monthly rental and the management
fee are HK$80,000 and HK$3,300 respectively. During
the year ended 28 February 2025, the Group renewed
the lease agreement for 1-year with the same terms.

During the year ended 29 February 2024, the Group
entered into a 1-year short-term lease agreement in
respect of a property from Mr. Chan Chart Man, a
then director of the Company. The monthly rental is
HK$90,000. During the year ended 28 February 2025,
the Group renewed the lease agreement for 1-year
with the same terms.

In addition, the Group entered into a 2-year lease
agreement during the year ended 28 February 2025 in
respect of another property from Mr. Chan Chart Man,
a then director of the Company. The monthly rental
is HK$21,500. During the year ended 28 February
2025, the Group made rental payment of HK$86,000.
The amount of the right-of-use assets at the initial
recognition is approximately HK$481,000. As at 28
February 2025, the carrying amount of such lease
liabilities is approximately $405,000.

During the year ended 29 February 2024, the Group
entered into a 1-year short-term lease agreement
in respect of a property from Kwan Chart Estate, a
company with common beneficiary owners with the
Company and Mr. Chan Chart Man, a then director of
the Company. The monthly rental is HK$52,000. During
the year ended 28 February 2025, the Group renewed
the lease agreement for 1-year with the monthly rental
decreased to HK$48,000.

(b)

BEEMEEA RS (&)
REEZT-_NEF-_A=+hBIFE -
AEERZXREE (—FEAQE KA
RAREEERR X EEHEREARZE
BBEANRAR) W —IHYFE L AE—F
WEPAEHERE - SAESREREED A
/£80,000/87L % 3,300 L - REBE-T
“RAF-_A-FTN\BLFE KEBEIZRHE
EEHEE AR —FHNHEE RS-

REBE-_E-_mME-_A=-+AHILEE
RNEBMBRENLE (KRRAIBFIESE)
W—EYMEI LA —FHNRBHEER
FH T AMES A90,00006 T  REE-T
—HAFE_A-+NBLEEFE  AEEEH
Bl EE A —FOHEERZ-

AN REBE-—ZE-_RE_-_A -+ /AL
FE - AEERMRERTE (KRR BIRE
EE NS EVEIVAEMENEE
Wik - T AL AE21,5008 7L REE—
TE_RE_A-_F+N\BILEFE AEEX
7 486,000/8 7T » A 125 R B {F F i
BESEAHL81,0008TT- R -H
F-AZF+N\B ZEHEAENEEE
A#3405,0007T

REBEE-ZE-_WE-_A=-+HBILEE "
AEERBREEE (—HMEXQFTEA
RAREEERR X EHE LR X =
BEANDRR) LA —FHEHEE
W% - & A A52,0008 7T - REE -
TE_RE_A-+tNBILEE AEE&E
BAR—FHNHERE SAESRE
48,000/ 7T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #EZ—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\BILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7051 7R )

29. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 29. EXBEAFRE (&)
TRANSACTIONS (CONT’D)

(b)

Transactions with other related parties (CONT'D)

During the year ended 29 February 2024, the Group
entered into a 1-year short-term lease agreement in
respect of a property from Full Honour, a company
with common beneficiary owners with the Company
and Mr. Chan Chart Man, a then director of the
Company. The monthly rental is HK$70,000 with a rent
free period for the first month of the lease agreement.
During the year ended 28 February 2025, the Group
renewed the lease agreement for 1-year with the same
term except for the rent-free period.

During the year ended 28 February 2025, the Group
entered into a 27 months lease agreement in respect
of a property from Max Firm, a company with common
beneficiary owners with the Company and Mr. Chan
Chart Man, a then director of the Company. The
monthly rental is HK$60,000 with a rent free period for
the preceding three months for the lease agreement.
The amount of the right-of-use assets at the initial
recognition is approximately HK$1,324,000. As at 28
February 2025, the carrying amount of such lease
liabilities is approximately $1,346,000.

* With the passing of Mr. Chan Chart Man on 16
July 2024, Mr. Chan Kai Ho Edward, the chief
executive of the Company, became the executor
of his will.

30. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

New lease arrangements

During the year ended 28 February 2025, the Group
entered into new arrangements in respect of leased
properties. Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of
approximately HK$11,252,000 (2024: approximately
HK$7,211,000) were recognised at the commencement
of the leases.

Lease modification

During the year ended 28 February 2025, the Group
entered into a modification in respect of a leased
property. Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
of approximately HK$5,279,000 (2024: nil) were
recognised at the date when the modification effective.

Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited BEREMEEEERER AT

(b)

HHEMBEAZRS (&)

REBE_ZE-_NE_A-+tHIBILEE -
REEBREE (—HEADQR) KA R
FTEERRNEEEHRBERZ TR A
RAR)) B —IBYERT L AH —F S H
HEWZ - FAMLA70,0008 0 AE
ENEAAEGHEBE RNEBEE=-Z_RF
ZAZTNBLEFE  AEEIREREK
(BReMEIN) EE AP —FRNHEE R -

REEZT-_RAF_A=-F+N\BLEFE"
NREE®RBS (—BHERARTRAR A
BIEEMRRNEEREERAZSHE
ARRR)W—EBMEI L A=+
AWM E Rz - &< 560,000
BREHERERENE="FAANGEH
H-ROTERNERAEEESEAD
1,324,000 - R-ZE-_FE-_A =1+
ZEHEAEMNEREERA1,346,000

gl m

* BEERRXEER T _NFLA
N Bt - ANA BT EFRR S
EEBRABHEBEENTA

30. TEFRERS

(a)

(b)

HEERH

BE_Z-_RAF_A-_+N\BHIFE K
CEERAEYWEIT T - FREEE
MHEEEEA11,252,0008 T (=T =M
F 497,211,000 7T ) E AT E AR

X7
7o

HEBR
BE_ZE-_AF_A=-_+tNBILFE"
AEBEEYET L —IBER] - F &
BENEEAGEAS5,279,0008 T (=
ZOF R ) PRI ERNE BIRER o



oles to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Notes to the ( lidated F | Stat L

e ISR R MR

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #E =T =RAF A=+ N\HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 T3 7R )

31. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates the MPF Scheme for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the schemes are
held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the
control of trustees. The Group contributes 5% of relevant
payroll costs, capped at HK$1,500 per month, to the MPF
Scheme, in which the contribution is matched by employees.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF
Scheme is to make the required contributions under the
Scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the
existing level of contribution and contribution payable in
future year.

The total cost charged to consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of approximately
HK$594,000 (2024: HK$580,000) represents contributions
payable to this scheme by the Group in respect of the
current accounting period.

Obligation to long service payments (“LSP”) under
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance

Pursuant to the Employment Ordinance, Chapter 57, the
Group has the obligation to pay LSP to employees in Hong
Kong under certain circumstances, subject to a minimum
of 5 years employment period, based on this formula: Last
monthly wages (before termination of employment) X
2/3 X Years of service. Last monthly wages are capped at
HK$22,500 while the amount of long service payment shall
not exceed HK$390,000. This obligation is accounted for as
a post-employment defined benefit plan.

Furthermore, the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance passed in 1995 permits the Group to utilise the
Group’s Mandatory Provident Fund contributions, plus/minus
any positive/negative returns thereof (collectively, the “Eligible
Offset Amount”), for the purpose of offsetting LSP payable
to an employee (the "“Offsetting Arrangement”).

31.

BB E

AEBABEENASAREER Y BM S
- EMEEBURARENERE BT
ANEBZESHE - AEBREWNIERAL
5% (A% A1,500/870 5 LR ) e 5t BI4t
- BE B ATIEH R - AR ER R RS B
EENEEAREBIELMBER - NRRF
B - SR HHIRR A SR T RERHERNE

SRR o

RER B I8 N E i 2 E U A KRB 2 AR AR LY
594,000/ 7T ( —Z —PU4 : 580,000/ 7T ) 54
EEAARS AR R %A E 2 K-

REEE (BRERA) RANRAEKE (IR
RE ) BB

REEE (BREGRD) F578 AEBEEK
REBERATRERAREE (RVERBASF)
XNRERE FEARALS &R —BEATE (K
IHEEAT) x 2/3 X RIBEFR - &KI1& A FH A
22,5008 TR LR MEARBESB|UTE
#838390,000/8 7T ° tE ARSI IVERERIR B E
@AETE -

MO —NARFERBN CRFIEATRE IR
By AFFAEEERANEENSHEATES M
ook REERIE &K (58 [EERS
HEER ) UEEENTREENERS (1K
FHZHE]) o

—ToRFER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R BB IRAR M

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #EZ—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\BILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7051 7R )

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME (CONT’'D)

Obligation to long service payments (“LSP”) under
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance (CONT’'D)

The Employment and Retirement Schemes Legislation
(Offsetting Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance 2022
(the “Amendment Ordinance”) was gazetted on 17
June 2022, which will eventually abolish the Offsetting
Arrangement. The Amendment Ordinance will come into
effect prospectively from 1 May 2025 (the “Transition
Date”). Under the Amendment Ordinance, the Eligible Offset
Amount after the Transition Date can only be applied to
offset the pre-Transition Date LSP obligation but no longer
eligible to offset the post-Transition Date LSP obligation.
Furthermore, the LSP obligations before the Transition Date
will be grandfathered and calculated based on the last
monthly wages immediately preceding the Transition Date.

The abolishment of this Offsetting Arrangement has no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group has an investment commitment related to
a capital contribution obligation for an unlisted fund
investment. Total investment commitment which has been
contracted but not yet reflected in the consolidated financial
statements amounted to approximated HK$73,819,000 as at
28 February 2025.
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31.

32.

R EREE ()
REEE (ERED) ARAGREEES (R
R |) B (H)

(20224 RIB MR INFT VAR (RIHZHE) (&
ARG (MEFTHRBI)ER =T =—FXA
TEAREBHRNE SEBEGEHZHE €
EBIEER S —AG R A—8 ([BER
HR|) AR RIBIERTIRD] - B B IR B B
HHSBEAEAREHAR AN RREE
B MAEAEREHBEARENRRER
%o tbsh ERE R R AN RREEZHH XD
B YRBEZEEBSERHZANRE —EAT
BatE-o

RBERR BB SR A M IS MR L BEATE -

BAREYE

AEFEE—BERERE PRAE—HEIFELTES
HENEF - RNZE-_RAE_A=-+/\RB" 257
HERERBMESEVEHRR ENIEERIES
84)/573,819,000/8 7T °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS R MR

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #Z—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\HILFE

THE COMPANY

33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 T3 7R )

33. AR T Z BB RE

Notes 2025 2024
BiaE —EC-RE —EUF
$'000 $'000
T T+t
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in subsidiaries RHTB AR ZKE 57,064 57,064
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries UK B A A 2 R IE a 174,380 174,314
Other receivables H e U R0R 298 2,961
Loans to a subsidiary ) — R B A AR
LB b 321,240 321,240
Cash and cash equivalents Be MRS FEY 5,766 21,721
501,684 520,236
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables FEET B A R B A FE T 5RIE 56 500
Bank loans RITER - 10,000
Amounts due to subsidiaries RSB A R 2 R IE a 261,629 228,325
Debt securities issued BEITERES 25 - 25,991
Tax payable FEIBIIR 851 794
262,536 265,610
Net current assets RBEEEEHE 239,148 254,626
NET ASSETS EEFRE 296,212 311,690
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#EiE 26
Capital LN 19,243 19,272
Reserves e 276,969 292,418
TOTAL EQUITY EREEE 296,212 311,690
Notes: BfaY

(@)  Amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free

and repayable on demand.

(b)  Loans to a subsidiary are revolving, unsecured, interest-bearing
at 6% (2024: 6%) per annum and repayable on demand.

FEY TN HIB AR Z FUAREER 28R

m—fEHE AR 2 ERAER  EER R
FHMEE% (ZF_F :6% )t B RIRER

g ym
HIR °©

B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BTSRRI EE

For the year ended 28 February 2025 #EZ—Z-_RAF_A -+ N\BILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A7 7051 7R )

34. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

At the end of reporting periods, the Company has direct or
indirect interests in the following subsidiaries, all of which are

private companies, particulars of which are set out below:

Principal country of operation

34. B AT Z2&F1E

T

CEMETIEER

R|BER - ARBR T E R
A RILARE) BEEZK M EELD

A(mER
EREY

Place and date Attributable equity
of incorporation/ Principal country  Issued and fully paid up interest and voting rights
Name of company establlshment of operation cagtgllregistered capital held by the Group Principal activities
A1/ _ EEAR FEEEAN )
NAER mlﬁﬁﬁﬁ% SEFAIEEAR  HREER/EMEA E%ﬁfﬁ&&?%m ITEH
S 3
Dlrectlyﬁ_held subsldlary
’L\ G
Oi Wah Holding Limited BVl Hong Kong 2,000 ordinary shares with no 100% 100%  Investment holding
31 May2012 par value )
0i Wah Holding Limited a%ﬁﬂﬁ% & 2000 EEE LBk RERR
Z3-—FRR=1-H
Oi Wah Investment Limited BV Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares 100% 100% Investment holding
13 June 2023
0i Wah Investment Limited ZERUHE Th 100RE Bk REHR
“E2-=§5AT=H
Indirectly held subsidiaries:
BEGENEAR:
0i Wah Pawnshop Credit Limited Hon% Kong Hong Kong 10,000,000 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Pawn broking and money lending
22 March 2000
BEMEERARAA Bt EA 10,000,008 % ik N
“ERRE=J-1°H
Hing Wah Pawnshop Credit Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% 100%  Pawn broking and money lending
) 12 April 2012 )
AERXEEERAA T 1RERR AR
“E2-EMmATZR
Wai Wah Pawnshop Credit Limited Hong‘ Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% 100%  Pawn broking and money lending
12 April 2012
BEREEEERAA & Bk 1REBR HERHR
“T-Z#WATZH
0i Wah Property Credit Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% 100% Money lending
) 20 February 2014 } )
ENFEERRAT T 1RERR HE
“T-PE-A=+A
Oi Wah Enterprises Limited Hong‘ Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% 100%  Consultant
4 April 2014 ,
BELRBRAA &t Bk 1REBR BRI
“Z-PmEMAMA
0i Wah Credit Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% 100% Money lending
o 29 January 2015 } )
BEFERRAA T 1RERR HE
T-RE-AZ ﬂLE
0i Wah Mortgage Limited Hong‘ Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% 100% Money lending
1 April 2015 )
FERIBERAA & Bk 1REBR HE
“Z-1¥MA-A
0i Wah Capital Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% 100%  Pawn broking and money lending
" 15 February 2016 } o
BEERERAA T 1RERR AR
“E-RE-ATEA
Po Wah Pawnshop Credit Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% 100%  Pawn broking and money lending
17 June 2022
BEREEEERAA & Bk 1REBR HERHR
ZEZZENATEA

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities

during both years and at the end of both years.

nshop Credit Holdings Limited BEREEEIERARAA

1A P (5 P R 1 P M1 F T2 K - 5L 4 B TR

RAIEHTEMAEEE
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www.pawnshop.com.hk
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